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VISION J?,\, 3

The Group aspires to be a leading Chinese property developer with a*

renowned brand backed by cultural substance.
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MISSION {8y -

The Group is driven by a corporate spirit and fine tradition that attaches

importance to dedication, honesty and integrity. Its developmetit strategy

. . . . . . %) g .
advocates professionalism, market-orientation and internationalism. It also

strives to enhance the architectural quality and commercial value of the

properties by instilling cultural substance into its prdperty projects.
Ultimately, it aims to build a pleasant living environment for its clrents and
create satisfactory returns to its shareholders.
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CHARMAN'S STATEMENT
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, with China progressively entering into a new normal
of economic restructuring, the government continued its two-
pronged approach for the real estate market with focuses on
“Inventory Reduction” and “Policy by City” throughout the
year, aiming to improve the market environment from both
demand and supply sides. At the beginning of the year, in line
with the nationwide stimulus policy of “Inventory Reduction”,
the rigid demand of property market and demand for
improved accommodations had been released and fed through
to a rally in housing transactions. In the second quarter, the
strategic “Policy by City” had been agilely implemented in the
first-tier, second-tier, third-tier and fourth-tier cities under
which different efforts were put to control the market risks by
taking into consideration of respective market conditions in
these cities. In the third quarter, local governments launched a
new round of control measures, under which greater efforts
were exerted to inhibit speculative investment needs. In the
fourth quarter, the control policies were further tightened,
giving rise to a downtrend in the housing prices and
transaction volume that rose to an unreasonable level
previously. Meanwhile, in response to the diversified market
conditions, the “Inventory Reduction” policy continued to
take effect in some regions with greater inventory level. In
conclusion, the real estate market in 2016 had continued the
recovery momentum prevailing in 2015. With the release of
rigid demand, sales area and sales amount of commodity
housing has reached a record high during the year.

During the year, the Group recorded profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$80,745,000, reflecting its success in
turning loss into profit, which was mainly due to the
significant improvement in overall gross profit margin as a
result of a higher gross profit margin of the recognised
property sales in certain cities. In addition, as the market
conditions of certain cities had a remarkable improvement
over last year, the sales amount recorded a dramatic increase.
Such two major reasons gave rise to the significant
improvement in profit attributable to shareholders.
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As the real estate industry and market environment continued
to recover, the Group has closely monitored and adapted to
the market conditions. By capitalising on market opportunities
and formulating proactive and flexible marketing strategies,
the Group consistently innovated and improved product
quality that satisfied market needs while increasing sell-
through rate during the year. As such, a historic high in sales
results was recorded. During the year, the Group launched 60
new and continual projects and property contracted sales
were on a stable rise. The total property contracted sales
amounted to RMB34.9 billion, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 16%. Contracted area sold
amounted to 2.79 million square metres, representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 9%, while the average
selling price amounted to approximately RMB12,500 per
square metre, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 7%. The sell-through rate of the new launches
recorded a year-on-year increase of 3 percentage points and
the sell-through rate of the continual launches recorded a
year-on-year increase of 5 percentage points. Inventory
reduction in large-sized residential products of 144 square
metres or above saw significant improvement as well.
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During the year, with the loose monetary policies and rising
housing prices in certain cities, land markets in first-tier cities
and some key second-tier cities remained booming. The high
land price continued to outpace market expectations. As
influenced by the overall market sentiment, land markets in
third-tier and fourth-tier cities started to pick up. During the
year, based on the prudence principle and its own needs, the
Group made reasonable adjustment to the development
progress and expansion scale of its projects. A total of 4 land
parcels in Shanghai, Kunming, Nanning and Yantai with a
GFA of approximately 1.23 million square metres were
acquired during the year. In respect of project development,
by adopting an asset-light operational model and a partnership
approach, the Group proactively developed its Shanghai
projects and continued to take advantage of its resources
amidst intensive competition to the extent that land costs were
well under control. During the year, two of the residential
projects of the Group in Hong Kong were in progress as
planned. The Hong Kong Kai Tak Project was officially
named as “Vibe Centro (%€ 2)” and will be launched in the
first quarter of 2017 while the construction of Tuen Mun
Project was successfully commenced during the year.

The Group has endeavoured to balance sales returns and
investments by accelerating sales and capital return on one
hand and enhancing capital management and investments on
the other hand. During the year, the net cash inflow from
operating activities reached HK$5.1 billion, while the gearing
ratio decreased as compared to that of last year. In addition,
as adequately supported by the loose monetary policies, the
Group duly grasped the available opportunities to adopt
flexible financing arrangements in order to achieve a
significant drop in the costs of all interest-bearing liabilities
and a continuous improvement in its financial structure,
which were conducive to the sustainable development of the
Company.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Upon the preliminary success of the policy of “Inventory
Reduction”, the government reinforced the importance of a
stable and healthy development of the real estate market in
the China Central Economic Works Conference held at the
end of 2016. The suggestion of “Houses are for living but not
for speculating (5 F = B 2R {E & - ~ & A K &) has
become the focus of the market development with an aim to
support the demand of self-occupied housing while strictly
l[imit the purchase of housing for speculating through a
comprehensive reform in respect of demand and supply. Due
to the continuous great pressure faced by macro-economy, the
real estate industry remains an important component for
stabilising the economic growth in the coming year. It is
expected that the government will continue to focus on
regulating market differences by implementing the “Policy by
City”. Moreover, the government will remain a stable
monetary policy to facilitate a financial system reform as well
as to establish a fundamental system and long-term
mechanism for the real estate market. By putting efforts in
proactively identifying and adapting to the new normal in real
estate market, the Group will continue to expedite the
progress of inventory reduction, improve development and
management standards, strengthen risk management, enhance
quality and effectiveness, and engage in continuous reforms
and innovations in order to facilitate a steady and sustainable
development.

The Group will continue to expand its marketing channels
and proactively explore customer resources to improve
operating results in accordance with its sales-oriented strategy.
Adhering to the policy of inventory reduction, the Group will
adopt a flexible pricing strategy, revitalise the inventory and
optimize asset allocation. The Group will continue to adhere
to a market-oriented approach, and focus on the improvement
of product quality, conduct precise control in the market
positioning of its projects, refine community planning and unit
design as well as enhance its products and services, so as to
gain competitive edges. Moreover, in accordance with the
long-term regulating mechanism in the industry, the Group
will enhance its capabilities and “soft powers” in respect of
product, service and brand.
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The Group will strive to maintain a stable financial position by
reducing leverage and maintaining a reasonable gearing ratio
to enhance its risk resistance capability. Meanwhile, by
focusing on the capital return, the Group will put more efforts
in enhancing its liquidity and continue to improve cash flows.
With the flexible use of various financing methods and
financial products, the Group will be able to expand its
financing channels and reduce related costs. In respect of
business expansion, the Group will be committed to
strengthening and accelerating its project development,
focusing on first-tier cities and regions with great potential and
equipped with our strong development teams. The Group will
also pay close attention to capture investment opportunities in
the market, proactively participate in projects such as
domestic urban renewal, primary land development and
acquisition. In addition, the Group will steadily promote
overseas investments with focus on Hong Kong and gradually
spread to other overseas markets to diversify its project
reserves.

The Group is committed to enhancing its capabilities, internal
governance and risk management. It will also strengthen the
supervision and risk control of its procedures and key aspects
so as to boost quality and effectiveness. Furthermore, the
Group also strives to implement refined management,
strengthen cost control, reasonably prepare budgets and
monitor their implementation to create and raise its value.

The Group adheres to combine its core business development
with reform and innovation while recognizes the importance
of innovation of products, techniques, brand, management
and business model. In respect of the upstream and
downstream of the industry chain, the Group strives to explore
business opportunities in the area of real estate finance,
property investment and strategic investment and pays
continuous attention to acquisition and merger as well as
other strategic investment opportunities. By adopting asset-
light operational models, the Group will attempt to develop
senior housing, cultural real estate, PPP or themed real estate
projects to provide new momentum and direction of the
transformation and upgrading of the Group.
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The Group strives to become one of the prominent and
leading real estate developers in China. Being the only
overseas-listed flagship of China Poly Group with real estate
as its core business, the Group is confident of its business
prospects and believes that it will continue to receive
continuous attention and full support from its mother
company. The Group will firmly take an active role in
business operation and development, strengthen the
implementation of its strategies, facilitate reform and
innovation, optimize asset allocation and adjust industrial
structure. Taking advantage of its own competitive edges, the
Group will continue to raise its corporate value to achieve
greater returns for its shareholders.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 (the “Year”), the
Group recorded a revenue of HK$30,580,326,000 (2015:
HK$24,933,367,000), representing an increase of 22.6%
when comparing to last year. Profit attributable to
shareholders amounted to HK$80,745,000 (2015 loss
attributable to shareholders: HK$2,817,149,000), while basic/
diluted earnings per share stood at HK2.21 cents (2015 basic
loss per share: HK76.94 cents) and HK2.21 cents respectively
(2015 diluted loss per share: HK76.94 cents). The Board of
Directors of the Group did not recommend payment of a final
dividend for the Year.

As at 31st December, 2016, shareholders’ equity of the Group
reached HK$24,696,715,000 (as at 31st December, 2015:
HK$25,560,015,000), along with a net asset value per share
of HK$6.74 (as at 31st December, 2015: HK$6.98).

During the Year, the total gross floor area of newly
commenced construction of Poly Property Group (the Group,
together with its joint ventures and associated companies),
was approximately 3,710,000 square metres. The total
contracted area sold amounted to approximately 2,790,000
square metres. There were 54 continual launches and 6 debut
launches during the Year. The gross floor area of the
completed construction for the Year was approximately
3,010,000 square metres. As at 31st December, 2016, Poly
Property Group had 67 projects in various phases, covering a
total gross floor area of approximately 37,260,000 square
metres.

In 2016, the Central Government has continued its strategy in
“Policy by City”, in its attempt to resolve the structural
polarization of the Chinese real estate market. The policy,
developed under the primary objective of inventory reduction,
strived to control the inflating housing prices of first-tier and
second-tier cities, whilst addressing the oversupply issues in
third-tier and forth-tier cities through customized regulations
based on the immediate market conditions of an individual
city. Facing an ever-changing market environment, the policy
soon focused its execution on market stabilization, thus
leading to an easing-then-contracting approach along the
Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Specifically regarding the policies, the People’s Bank of China
(the “Central Bank”), together with the China Banking
Regulatory Commission, took several adjustments in the
reduction of mortgage down payment ratio during the Year,
targeting cities that were not subject to property purchase
restrictions. In addition, the Central Bank, in collaboration
with the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
(the “MOHURD”) and the Ministry of Finance, also revised
the deposit rates of housing provident fund accounts.
Subsequently, the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration
of Taxation and the MOHURD introduced tax benefits in
housing deed tax and business tax during real estate
transaction, not to mention that on top of the aforementioned
adjustments, there were over 30 provinces successively
offering incentives, such as the inclusion into the housing
provident fund as well as housing/rental subsidies to migrant
workers, in order to encourage housing purchase in certain
cities. Supported by a series of housing policies, a relaxed
monetary and credit environment, and favourable tax benefits
and subsidies, the demand from owner-occupiers in over a
hundred of key cities have rose steadily which led to the rising
number of housing transactions, and in return, setting new
highs in annual transaction amount, land prices and housing
prices.
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Due to the increasing number of transactions as well as the
release of inelastic demand, the inventory pressure has been
relieved and housing prices have continued to rise. In the first
three quarters of 2016, price inflation remained significant,
especially in the major cities such as Shenzhen and Shanghai
where supply has been limited, and some of the third-tier and
forth-tier cities have also caught up with the rapid pace of
price rises. According to a report published by China Index
Research Institute, the average housing price in a hundred of
key cities recorded a continuous, month-on-month increase
between January and August, representing an 11.75%
cumulative growth during the same period. To counter the
pressure and risks associated with the high prices, particularly
on the economic development, financial system, and living
costs front, all levels of government have since adapted their
regulations in the fourth quarter, thus measures have gone
through a cycle of relaxing and tightening. By taking various
measures from expanding purchase restrictions, credit
tightening, to stricter enforcement of regulations, the market
struck a contracting note which helped to slow down the
growth in hotspot cities, especially in the first-tier and second-
tier cities. As a result, the growth rate of first-tier housing price
in October and November has successfully slowed by 5.59
percentage points when comparing to the last quarter. The
number of housing transactions in the 50 representing cities
has also dropped by 16.6 percentage points, or approximately
38.8 million square metres, during the same period when
comparing to the last quarter.

In terms of land supply and its price, although the total
national transacted land size for the Year has dropped on a
year-on-year basis, its price has demonstrated continuous
growth particularly in first-tier cities. Combining the land
scarcity with convenient financing channels from large
corporations, it was rather common for the growth in land
value to be far greater than the growth in property price in
major cities, with the two factors closely linked to each other.

From a real estate investment viewpoint, it has bottomed out
and started to increase since the beginning of 2016, driven by
the low base effect, the rapid increase in gross floor area of
new construction projects, as well as the rising land
acquisitions. However, in the second half of 2016, real estate
investment has entered into a period of fluctuation, due to a
combination of tightening land supply on a national scale,
along with the changing policies in land supply in some of the
major cities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Throughout 2016, the Group has taken an active position in
countering the fluctuations and challenges in the property
market. During the Year, carrying out its general principle of
“Inventory Clearance, Investment Control, Risk Prevention
and Efficiency Enhancement in an Innovative Way to Boost
Sustainable Growth”, the Group was able to deliver a
promising results and successfully turned loss into profit.
Leveraging on the brand theme of “Poly Brings You Joyful
Living” (/0> R Fl] o 1% & =), the Group has also continued to
uphold its market-oriented and customer-focused approach in
determining its production plan while making references to
sales volume. The approach was able to achieve a complete
breakthrough in sales performance. For the Year, Poly Property
Group has achieved a contracted sales of approximately

RMB34.9 billion, or 2.79 million square metres in area.
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Contracted

Contracted Area Sold

Sales in 2016 in 2016
by Region*  Percentage by Region  Percentage

—E—RF —E—RE

EHHESH BHHEER
&1 2 * 15 EE B2 ik

('000

(RMB million) square metres)

(BEBAR®) (FFFXK)
Yangtze River Delta Rk=A 13,214 38% 466 17%
Pearl River Delta ®K=A 6,152 18% 474 17%
Southwestern i3] 8,141 23% 1,134 41%
Others Hh 7,428 21% 714 25%

* including car parking sales * R

Contracted Sales in 2016 by Region
2016 5 Y4 & & BRI 0

Other Regions

Hith [
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21% Delta Region
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Contracted Area Sold in 2016 by Region
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE A HEH I

NEW LAND RESERVES 1% + i G

Adhering to its prudent investment strategy, Poly Property —Z—XF X BEEEEHENETENRESR
Group has acquired four pieces of land in four cities in 2016, B D RIERR - % EE N FENEHE
namely Kunming, Nanning, Yantai and Shanghai. The total BEATIIEH IR o B EEL 288 K @ 17
site area of the plots amounted to approximately 280,000 B BEEmMBENI123BIT XK -

square metres, with a total planned gross floor area of

approximately 1,230,000 square metres.

LAND RESERVES ACQUIRED IN 2016 —E-REHME T RBEIIE

Interests
Attributable to
the Group
(@asat  Current Status
31st December,  (as at 28th

Land Plot/Project Site Area  Planned GFA 2016)  February, 2017)
BEAEEELE HEEE
(B2 (BZ
RE “B-AF ZR-tF
i,/ 1B H 3 EEEE B¥E® t=-A=t-H) Z=A=tNAH)

(000 (000
square metres) - square metres)

(FEHK)__ (FFAR)

Kunming Poly One Family One World - Commercial, Resicential & Office 92 652 73%  Under construction
ERRMAR Al BRI

Nanning Poly Hearty, Phase II Residential 30 191 100%  Under construction
AERFOE S F=E ERT

Yantai Poly Ocean Luxe Residential 71 205 70%  Under planning
EARME HE e il

Shanghai Jiading Project Residential 87 182 14.867%  Under planning
LEEEHEAR iz &8l

Total: 85t 280 1,230
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SUMMARY OF NEWLY ACQUIRED
PROJECTS IN 2016

The project is located in the west side of the central area
of Wuhua District in Kunming, or east of Kunming New
High-Tech Park, with the location looking to become the
sub-business center of Wuhua District in the future. The
project, with a planned gross floor area of approximately
650,000 square metres on a site of approximately
90,000 square metres, is planned to be a flagship
community living project in Kunming, mainly targeting
first-time buyers, first-time upgrade buyers and inelastic
buyers.

The project is an urban renewal project located in
Mingxiu Road East, Xixiangtang District, Nanning.
Situated at the junction of Xingning, Qingxiu and
Xixiangtang District, the location represents a key
traditional commercial area at the center of Nanning,
and is well-positioned to enjoy the geographical benefits
of convenient transportation and comprehensive
ancillary facilities, such as educational, medical and
commercial amenities. The project is designed to
become a high-quality residential community
complemented by comprehensive ancillary facilities.
Nanning Poly Hearty is intended to become an
exquisitely-decorated flagship residential project in the
region.

The project is located in New High-Tech District, Yantai,
north to Gangcheng Street East and east to Haibo Road.
Itis 15 kilometres away from Yantai Railway Station, 10
kilometres away from Yantai South Railway Station and
50 kilometres away from Yantai Chaoshui International
Airport. With the continuous improvement in the
ancillary facilities in New High-Tech District, the
geographical advantages of the region has been ever
expanding. The project is designed to be a premium
living community featuring high-rise apartments to
accommodate the needs of first-time buyers in the
pursuit of quality lifestyle.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB A A EE AT

The project is located in Jiading New City, Jiading
District, Shanghai. It is situated east to Yongsheng Road,
south to Maiji Road, west to Hezuo Road and north to
Fengzhou Road. The project is merely 800 metres away
from the Jiading New City Station of Line 11 of the
Shanghai Metro, with well-developed ancillary facilities
around and high market potentials. The project is
positioned as an exquisite, entry-luxury mansions for
upgrade buyers.

PROJECTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION AND
PROJECTS UNDER PLANNING

As at 31st December, 2016, Poly Property Group had a total
of 67 commodity properties and integrated real estate
development projects in 20 cities. Of the 67 projects,
approximately 28% of the total gross floor area was located in
Yangtze River Delta and Pear| River Delta Regions, 49% in
Southwestern Region, and 23% in Other Regions. Meanwhile,
39 projects are under construction, with a total gross floor
area of approximately 8,960,000 square metres (attributable
area amounted to approximately 6,260,000 square metres),
and a total gross floor area of approximately 10,440,000
square metres under planning (attributable area amounted to
approximately 6,310,000 square metres).
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List of Projects under Construction and under
Planning as at 31st December, 2016

BE-_FE—ARFE+ZHA=+—HZ%E

ZEERFEERIXR

Interest
GFA under GFAunder  attributable
Project construction planning  to the Group
ERER FRER F5H
EH BEEEE LEEER FEfh s
(000 (000
square metres)  square metres) (%)
(FFHAK)  (FFHK) (%)
Yangtze River Delta Region REAKE
1. Shanghai Poly Deluxe Mansion 1. LERAXEFE 116 - 100%
2. Shanghai Poly Star Island 2. LBRMEGEE 164 - 100%
3. Shanghai Poly Phili Mansion/Greenland Plaza 3. H/BRFIBBER,4itES 273 - 25%
4. Shanghai Poly Phili House 4. LERFIBBAME 34 - 50%
5. Shanghai Shan Jin Poly Plaza 5. BBUSRNES 121 - 50%
6. Shanghai Poly Phili Regency 6. DBRNFEFE 124 - 50%
7. Shanghai Jiading Project 7. LBEEIWIER - 182 14.867%
8. Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa 8. EHMRMBERR 103 - 100%
9. Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion 9. ERJNRFEHEIER 517 100 100%
10. Ningbo Poly City 10. ERRFIM 88 299 100%
11. Ningbo Poly Wonderland 1. EREFEIAE 342 - 100%
12. Ningbo Poly Jordan International 12. EERASERERILE 13 281 100%
13. Deging Poly Origin 13. BERFIRE 25 68 100%
Sub Total 1B/ & 1,920 930 -
Pearl River Delta Region h=AE
14, Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay 14. BINRFIESE 98 466 55%
15, Guangzhou Nansha Poly City 15. BMNERFIE 245 392 85%
16. Guangzhou Poly Jade Hills 16. BIMNMRFISEL 93 - 100%
17. Foshan Poly Central Park 17. BLRAHRRE 411 - 100%
18. Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur 18. FMERFNLAK 100 - 80%
19. Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town 19. EMERFIG AR 155 553 70%
Sub Total BN 1,102 1411 -
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Interest
GFA under GFA under  attributable
Project construction planning  to the Group
ERER #RER r5HE
L BEEER  AREER FEfE
('000 ('000
square metres) ~ square metres) (%)
(FFHK)  (FFHK) (%)
Southwestern Region Eﬁiﬁg@
20. Guiyang Poly Spring Street 20. EGRNERAE 42 180 66.5%
21. Guiyang Poly Park 2010 21. fﬁﬁﬁﬂ ~E 2010 269 903 100%
22. Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake 22. Ef‘*ﬁﬁﬂ%fﬁﬂ 283 47 50%
23. Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay 23. EGRAIBEE 433 784 51%
24. Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future 24, ;E%leﬂmm 493 3,057 35%
25. Nanning Poly Crescendo 25. MERMLEE 209 160 100%
26. Nanning Poly Dream River 26, MERFIENE 210 - 30%
27. Nanning Poly Hearty 27. BERMOE 84 107 100%
28. Nanning Poly Town 28. EERMEFAM 907 720 41.5%
29. Liuzhou Poly Merization World 29, WIMNRFIATE 216 - 100%
30. Kunming Poly One Family One World 30. ERRAAR 420 = 73%
Sub Total BN 3,566 5958
Other Regions Hirth B ™
31. Wuhan Poly City 31 BUERAE 701 460 68%
32. Wuhan Yangyuan Project 32. REHEER 141 = 51%
33. Wuhan Poly Park 33. ERMRER - 252 55%
34. Wuhan Poly Up Town 34. HOERF 5 449 343 64.3%
35. Harbin Poly The Water's Fragrant Dike 35. MBERMKBERE - 250 58%
36. Harbin Poly City 36. MREBRFIN 241 265 100%
37. Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion 37. EERMEELE 133 = 100%
38. Jinan Poly Center 38. EEERAFL 326 - 85%
39. Jinan Poly Elegant Garden 39. ERRFMERE 157 = 80%
40. Yantai Poly Ocean Luxe 40. BERFIEHE - 205 70%
41. Weihai Poly Maple Valley 4. BERFAEAS 129 - 70%
42. Hainan Poly Peninsula No. 1 4. BEGRFIEE15 - 369 100%
43. Hong Kong Kai Tak Vibe Centro 43. BEREREE 70 - 100%
44. Hong Kong Tuen Mun Project 44, EBWFIER 21 - 100%
Sub Total &Nt 2,368 2,144
Grand Total A/F 8,956 10,443
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

COMPLETED CONSTRUCTION

In 2016, the Poly Property Group has achieved a total gross
floor area of approximately 3,010,000 square metres in
completed construction. 4 projects have completed all phases
of construction in the Year.

List of Completed Gross Floor Area in 2016

B wm AT

®TIHA

TE-RF BXEBRTEEN01EYS
Ko FREBRTIAEL4@ -

“E-RFRIZEEREIEK

Accumulated

completed
Completed GFA by the
Project GFA in 2016 end of 2016
HARFE
A “E-RER
RTITEEEE CRIEBEESE
('000 ('000
square metres) square metres)
(FF75K) (FF77K)
Yangtze River Delta Region R=EAM®E
Shanghai Poly Deluxe Mansion EBRAMRZFTE 64 64
Shanghai Poly Star Island PR 2 /FEE 71 313
Shanghai Poly Phili House EBRIZEE AR 215 215
Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa FR MR E PO = 184 274
Deqing Poly Origin EBRFRE 157 405
Pearl River Delta Region K=AE
Guangzhou Poly Up House J& N AR A5 5 155 155
Guangzhou Nansha Poly City J& M B AR AL 183 183
Foshan Poly Central Park IR F R RAE 250 250
Shenzhen Poly Joy-Zone FEIMR TR B IEE 135 135
Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town HMNERFIRS F 3k 58 154
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Accumulated

completed
Completed GFA by the
GFA in 2016 end of 2016
HE R E
—E—-XRF —E-RFER
MIREER CEBRIBEER
('000 ('000
square metres) square metres)
(TF75K) (FF7HK)
Southwestern Region it &=
Guiyang Poly Park 2010 S5 RMAE2010 75 802
Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake BB RFNE N 242 529
Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay SR EEE 75 337
Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future B RN AR AT 21 1,621
Nanning Poly Hearty AR )05 E 112 112
Liuzhou Poly Merization World WP ER A AT ER 219 713
Kunming Poly One Family One World EBRRMAR 231 231
Other Regions HibihE
Wuhan Poly City EUE RS 98 570
Harbin Poly Up Town 15 R ERF 3 23 186
Harbin Poly City Ia BB R A 114 114
Jinan Poly Center SE R R A0 37 151
Jinan Poly Elegant Garden T E AR EERE 145 262
Yantai Poly Blossom Garden R ERFELTEED 142 142
Grand Total: &5t 3,006 7,918
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RECOGNISED PROPERTY SALES EEIE H

A total of over 50 project sales of Poly Property Group has ~ —Z—x4F - E¥EE L HH 50 BB BIR
been recognised in 2016, with a total sales value of RMB26.16 & #4588  #£E S E261.6BTARE  #£E
billion and a total gross floor area of 2,355,000 square metres. [ 823558 F H K #EEEFLHHN A
The recognised average selling price was approximately 11,111 T AR "FHX - iREELET &
RMB11,111 per square metre. Among the sales recognised, B E1578% * BIZF(58% » FM1E10% » &
ordinary residential housing accounted for 78%, villas  fi{54% - @D F  R=ARK=AEHE
accounted for 8%, retail shops accounted for 10% and parking L #758% » P8 [2 545 th 49 22% » E fb[& 5515
spaces accounted for 4% of the total value. In terms of  [£#920% °

geographical distribution, Yangtze River Delta and Pearl River

Delta accounted for approximately 58% of the sales

recognised, while Southwestern and Other Regions accounted

for 22% and 20%, respectively.

List of Major Projects with Sales Recognised in —E-RNEFELEIEFYR
2016

Sales recognised

Project in 2016
HE “E-RFRESHE
(RMB million)
(ARERE&T)

Yangtze River Delta Region RE=A#E
1. Shanghai Poly Star Island 1. BBRNZ/EEE 1,220
2. Shanghai Poly Elegant Mansion 2. BBRMRIEEL 408
3. Shanghai Poly Deluxe Mansion 3. LEBRAXEFSE 978
4. Shanghai Poly Felicity 4. RN 7
5. Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa 5. EMERANBERE 2,024
6.  Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion 6.  ERMRFIEDA B 345
7. Ningbo Poly City 7. BRRTIM 390
8.  Ningbo Poly Jordan International 8. EFRIBEERIEER 254
9.  Deqing Poly Origin 9. BRI 437
10.  Others 10. HfEHRAR 926

Sub Total & /NET 6,989
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Sales recognised

Project in 2016
b= | =] —E-RFHESE
(RMB million)
(AREBET)
Pearl River Delta Region K=AME
11.  Guangzhou Poly Golf Shire 1. BMERNSERE 217
12.  Guangzhou Poly Zephyr City 12, BEMRFITEMR 50
13.  Guangzhou Nansha Poly City 13. EMEDRFI 1,015
14.  Guangzhou Poly Up House 14, BEINRF |R§i 1,085
15. Foshan Poly Cullinan Garden 15, #BILRFIR 179
16. Foshan Poly Prestige City 16. ﬁll.l{%*'JJ:jﬁZ 408
17.  Foshan Poly Central Park 17. #ILRFFRAE 1,240
18. Shenzhen Poly Up Town 18. RYIMRF| LIWIEE 88
19. Shenzhen Poly Joy-Zone 19. FRIMRFIEEIER 3,224
20. Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town 20. FBINERNIEG LI 218
21. Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur 21, FBMRFLZKER 305
22. Others 22. HftE#8IBEE 20
Sub Total E/NE 8,058
Southwestern Region AEtE
23. Nanning Poly City 23. FEAERAIK 31
24. Nanning Poly Aegean Sea 24. BMERMNEESE 516
25. Nanning Poly Hearty 25. FAERMOE 161
26. Nanning Poly Crescendo 26. FZERF] /?ﬁ 200
27. Liuzhou Poly Merization World 27. HNRFIAT 1,808
28. Guiyang Poly Spring Street 28. fﬁ%ﬁfu%iﬁ}_ 30
29. Guiyang Poly Clouds Hill International 29. EBSRFEL 30
30. Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Newisland 30. ;5@1%%'Jxm%’<¥ﬁyﬁ 58
31.  Guiyang Poly Park 2010 31. BBRMA l201o 552
32. Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay 32. ERRAE 559
33. Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake 33. ﬁﬁ%%ﬂ%xﬂ 1,172
34.  Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future 34, EFRRFAREHT 292
35.  Kunming Poly Lakeside Mansion 35. ERRMEHRZSR 75
36.  Kunming Poly Sky and Earth 36. EBARM;NE R 128
37. Others 37. BEfttE&RIER 26

Sub Total & /N ET 5,638
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Sales recognised

Project in 2016
BH ZE-RFHRESHE
(RMB million)
(AR®BEST)

Other Regions Hihith E@
38.  Wuhan Poly Blue Ocean District 38. EURMRFIEEGED 231
39. Wuhan Poly City 39. BEUERMI 893
40. Harbin The Tsinghua Summer Palace of Poly ~ 40. WMEERFEEREE 55
41. Harbin Poly The Water’s Fragrant Dike 41. MREBERMKERE 309
42. Harbin Poly Up Town 42, MRBERM LW 742
43. Harbin Poly City 43. BRBRMH 593
44. Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion 44. ERRNBIEALE 460
45. Jinan Poly Center 45, EERFIF L 356
46. Jinan Poly Elegant Garden 46. BRRTIERE 1,256
47.  Weihai Poly Triumph Mansion 47. BUBIRFIS\EE N ER 226
48. Yantai Poly Champs Elysees Mansion 48. EARNEBEWERE 105
49. Yantai Poly Blossom Garden 49. &S RNEIEE 80
50. Hainan Poly Peninsula No. 1 50. BERMES1HR 151
51. Others 51. HEARIAR 19
Sub Total it & /N 5T 5,476
Grand Total: &t 26,161

Recognised Sales in 2016 by Property Type

“E-AFEREYRERR

Sales

recognised
Property type in 2016 Percentage
EEE —E-AELEIE B
(RMB million) (%)
(ANREBET) (%)
Apartment NG 20,455 78%
Villa ol =4 2,151 8%
Commercial [k 2,526 10%
Office 3 66 0%
Parking space E=iva 963 4%
Total a5t 26,161 100%




POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2016

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREHHESH

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Poly Property Group has various investment properties and
hotels located in first-tier cities and second-tier provincial
capitals, reaching a total gross floor area of approximately
620,000 square metres, of which approximately 560,000
square metres are attributable to the Group. In 2016, the rent
of Poly Property Group’s office buildings and shopping malls
have increased steadily when comparing with the
corresponding period of last year. As for hotel operations, the
occupancy rates of Beijing Poly Plaza, Hubei Poly Hotel and
Regal Poly Guiyang Hotel also proved to be satisfactory.

List of Major Investment Properties and Hotels
as at 31st December, 2016

REWE

EXEERAZELR —SRBETR_REEW
MR EYESIBE - AEERELN 62 BF 77
Ko REBERGEREBLS6EF K —F
—A"FEXREETREFERBSLHEERR
F¥R HeKkIREFRBE-—FRMT - B
JERZETE - AEREFEMKE - BARFAE S
K EGRNE SR FOBE NERIMREF R 4T o

BE—Z—R"F+-A=+—HEZE
REVFREE &

Average Average Interests
occupancy occupancy attributable
Project GFA held rate of 2016 rate of 2015 to the Group  Property type
ZE-RF ZB-IF
L BREERR AR PR AREES  NEER
('000
square metres)
(FHR)
Beijing Beijing Poly Plaza 94.64 100% 100% 75%  Office building,
IR ERRHAE (Office building)  (Office building) hotel and theatre
69% (Hotel) 69%(Hotel) WO B Rl
100% (H#2)  100% GRAE)
69% (BE)  69%(E%)
Beijing Beijing Legend Garden Villas (partial) 30.40 99% 98% 100%  Apartment, Villa,
IR ERERERRIZE (55) commercial center,
and efc.
LB FHIERBR
Mg
Shanghai Shanghai Stock Exchange 48.10 92% 99% 100%  Office building
g Building (partial) HIN:
LBEFAE(HHR)
Shanghai Shanghai Poly Plaza (partial) 60.91 97% 99% 90%  Office building and
g FERAES (85) commercial
BOBRAR
Shenzhen Shenzhen Poly Cultural Plaza (partial) 132.87 100% 100% 100%  Shopping mall, cinema,
3l FIRMUCES (813) theatre, and etc.

a5 R RERS
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Average Average Interests
occupancy occupancy attributable
Project GFA held rate of 2016 rate of 2015 tothe Group  Property type
ZE-RE “E-T1fF
L BRRERR AR AR AEEEE  MERE
('000
square metres)
(T¥IK)
Wuhan Poly Hotel 34.08 74% 67% 100%  Hotel
e RFCEE B
Wauhan Wauhan Poly Plaza (partial) 126.77 81% 75% 100%  Office building and
HE RERTES (B14) commercial
BOBRER
CGuiyang Regal Poly Guiyang Hotel 39.13 51% 55% 66.5%  Hotel
g5 ERRNEFRSEE B
CGuiyang Guiyang Poly International Center 51.85 100% 100% 66.5%  Commercial
&5 EBRNERES A%
Total: Bit: 618.75
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT YREE

The Group holds various property management companies
which are engaged in the management of residential
properties, hotels and high-end properties. They have been
the leading players in the property management industry of
the PRC and have received numerous titles and awards, such
as “Outstanding Property Management Project in the PRC (&
EYEEREFIEE ) and “Outstanding Provincial Property
Management Project (& R ¥ ¥ E 2 E & 18 H)” in recent
years.

In 2016, the Group’s property management companies
realized a revenue of RMB492,577,000 from 132 projects,
representing a year-on-year increase of 10.9%. The projects
covered a wide range of property types including office
buildings, hotels, shopping centers, villas and residential
buildings, with a total gross floor area of 27,380,000 square
metres, indicating a 4.4% year-on-year increase.

AEERAZRNEEE  BEENRSHYEE
EOMERERQR EE2EMEERTERS
FIRIZE - W FRERS T ZEREBEIE - M
[2BEMEXEEEFHEB | R[EEMEEEE
FEBIE -

—=EF—

=

NEAEEVEERRARERBEAR
14925778 T AR X F R B LA
109% ' EEWMEEB132E - S RPERE -
EIE 75 BIEREESZEEE - Ktz
HEE2,7388BF 5K - REFREIERA.4% ©
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In mid-December, 2016, the Central Economic Work
Conference has confirmed that the economy would be looking
for steady improvement in 2017, as to create a solid
foundation and favourable market condition for the
development of the real estate market. It also emphasized the
importance of owner-occupation, and at the same time,
expressing a determined stance in controlling speculative
demand.

Looking ahead into 2017, it is expected that the Central
Government will continue to adopt the “Policy by City”
strategy, by using customized regulations in differentiating
regional property markets. In the meantime, the Central
Government also sees land supply as a crucial element in the
supply-side reformation. Through short-term adjustment to
land supply, it hopes to maintain a reasonable level of
inventory-to-sale ratio of residential properties among different
cities and ease the competitive atmosphere. To further
facilitate the supply-side reform, inventory clearance effort
will also be reinforced in third-tier and fourth-tier cities.
Specifically targeting major cities where property price is
unreasonably overpriced, it will also look into the possibility
of tightening credit policy as well as the equal distribution of
credits, in a way to increase the difficulty and costs of property
speculation.

In the long run, the Chinese Government aims to rely on
precise regulations, as well as a mid-to-long term effective
mechanism in regulating its housing development. By taking
advantage of the future forces of regional integration and new
urbanization, the Government intends to foster a solid
business environment for the stable and steady improvement
of the real estate sector.

PREEIESZN T F+_-_AhaE
E_T—tFRBEREBABTIERTE
W BERNEHEDTSFRERNRTR
B URAXKAEERE  RNEAFRER
BWEFRK - Ut EEQREEBIL -

RE-T—LF  BUTHERIA TRBHER] 8
BRABRZERCFEHETS - PRBR LM
EREHEHRGRNENERRE BBt
HENEHHE  EBTRMT{EEFHEL G
RIFEAEKF BB FIRE - RN= > TR
WHEBERCEBFHRE  REHFEE
R ST ERE I BREMRIUT - NHKRE
EREERR BEIREEER  LiRS™
SIREREIEBEENHE MR -

REMS @ PEBASAERENFZENP R
HE R B R E SR ER - ERES
WEBRRHART - AR —8(C - FEIWE
EEERER T - BRBRERIFERIRE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Despite the ever-changing nature of the market, the Group
will continue to pursue steady growth in operation and results
through prudent planning in various annual operating tasks. It
will also actively explore opportunities for transformation and
upgrades in order to provide further impetus for growth.

Amid the launch of Hong Kong Kai Tak Vibe Centro as
scheduled, the Group will also pay more attention to the
Hong Kong market. As a well-developed real estate market
with premier geographical location, stable and sound
investment environment as well as a comprehensive judicial
system, Hong Kong has always been favoured by purchasers
at home and abroad for years, with steadily increasing
demand and promising growth potential in the future. The
Group is optimistic about the prospects of the Hong Kong
property market, and regards the city as a market for long-term
development. Plans for business expansion in Hong Kong and
Macau are also in line with the recent development and
investment strategy of the Group. The Group will capture the
opportunity arising from the successful launch of Vibe Centro
to further explore premium land resources and develop
projects of high quality, with a view to promote balanced
development of the Group.

In 2017, Poly Property Group will strive to achieve the
following key operating targets: newly commenced
construction of a gross floor area of approximately 3 million
square metres; achieving a contracted sales of approximately
2.8 million square metres, or approximately RMB35 billion in
value.

BB EHWED T

HHZEOMISRE  AEEHEERRESR
FEED  BEBE  BIKELERERE
BREER  RNERRRELUTTR - SHH
HIERIEH - RAKEIEAFE S o

FIES - BEZ R ERIERERAEELTS K
SEMGEMETEEMS - ER—ERHEH
FHEMS BERAEUNMENE R
MRERR  ARBATENRDEHE - ZF
RK—BEXIRANERNER - AEREM L
B RERMARIIERE N - AEBEFHEL
BHATS  UREBRRBERNTS B
RO ARBIIFMNERMCEBE - K
SEBEZWLREEXNFHE  E—FPFHE
BNt ER FHESRENERE - #HEE
FEBE -

BEEERN T +tFNTELLEEEZ : #TH
TEEBMBAZ00EF K RYOEEEBELY
2808 F KR ERLIHESTELZS0B T AR -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R e T

SUMMARY OF MAJOR REAL ESTATE

PROJECTS

As at 31st December, 2016, the 15 projects of Poly
Property Group in the Yangtze River Delta Region
amounted to an aggregated gross floor area of
approximately 2,850,000 square metres, representing
approximately 15% of Poly Property Group’s land bank
portfolio. Of which, approximately 1,920,000 square
metres are under construction while 930,000 square
meters are under planning. 2 projects were completed,

12 were currently under construction and 1 had yet to

commence construction.

City/District

B/ B

Project

EH

Geographical Location

WENE

He—

Major Products

TRER

TEFMERBRRABN

T-RNE+-_A=+—0 BE%¥&
ERR-AERFEISEFEMRZE
B FAEAZEMBENINEFHIXK &
BAREAMBHNBETH K AL
285 BF AR I EXSEEEBEREZR
FRERLEEEMNI%  EF2@EED
BT 12EBE RRMEIMREE - 1{EEE
mARFAL o

Current Status

AR

Yangtze River
Delta

E=f =

Poly Deluxe Mansion

RARETE

Poly Elegant Mansion
RAMRIEE

Shanghai

Poly Star Island

Located in the prime area of Jiading
District, close to the Metro Line 11
REEREEMAZOR - B 115
HER

A theatre and a hotel
Blfx - 5

For sale (partially
delivered)

EEBHXD)

Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments
Rt

RRHEE

Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments

RN 2 GERE 2
REHE
Located in Baoshan District, Songnan Featured European style Delivered with sales of
Poly Felicity area, with community facilities and mifi-rise aRartr\nlents rimaining apartments
R convenient transportation BRI R 2t

rREILE - RERE  EEER &
mEE

EREE

Poly Phili Mansion/
Greenland Plaza
RABBEL/

B ES

Located at Dalian Road, Yangpu District,
CBD of waterfront Inner Loop, Golden
Triangle of Lujiazui

X BRAES - BRRETCBDAR
% BERXEERE=ABER

Residential, office and

commercial buildings
e 572 BE

Residential buildings sold
out (delivered)
commercial buildings for
sale

FEER(ERN)
EE




City/District

Project
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Geographical Location

Major Products

Current Status

Yangtze River
Delta
R=A

W/ e

HH

WENE

Located in Sijing, Songjiang, near Sijing

TEEM

Residential and commercial

BEHRR

Commercial buildings for

Station of Metro Line 9 with accessto | buildings sale residential buildings
Poly Phili House convenient transportation and full- FE BE (partially delivered)
RHEBEAE fledged ancillary facilities BMEEE
AN - A #oRRmTIs - FE(E@HRA)
ZREN  EERE
Located within the inner ring along the | Commercials Under construction and
waterfront at the Eastern Bund, in [EES prepared for sale
Shan Jin Poly Plaza proximity to Yangshupu Road Station of TE
L4 RFIES Metro Line 4 e
Shanghai TIRPRARN - RINEB I - 530
L B4R HR
o Located within the Eastern Bund in High-rise apartments For sale
Poly Phili Regency - =@ &
BAEETE Ya{)gpu District BEAE g
A5 AR RSN R b
Located in Jiading, 800 metres away Residential buildings and villas | Under construction
from New Jiading Station of Metro Line | {£% + 3|2 52
11, fully equipped with living facilities
Jiading Project . !
BN to a large capacity of population
SRR BRETHL - DI 1 BRERH
HE800 K - FIREERE THA
EX
Located in the economic development | Residential buildings and villas | For sale (partially
_ zone of Wuzhong District, the project | X%+ 5% delivered)
Poly West Bink Villa stands on a peninsula of Dushu Lake EE(FHHRM)
FHRERR HRRPEARSE - RRRETY
Suzhou B
M . . IS . .
Located in the economic development | Residential buildings and retail | For sale (partially
Poly Lake Mansion zone of Wuzhong District and the shops delivered)
R R northern tip of Yinshan Lake = EE(FHHRM)
A RPEEFREE - FIALR
Located in the east of Deqing County, | Residential, hotel, and For sale (partially
the project is a 5-minute drive from the | commercial buildings delivered)
Deging Poly Origin Hangzhou-Nanjing Passenger Railway | %€ - /% « % EEFHHRM)
EE R F| 25 with superior scenery

FIREEREHN - BERSHS 0 E
Bl FIEK - BELELES
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Region

Bl

Yangtze River
Delta
£=A

City/District
Wi/ B

Ningbo

T

Project

EH

Poly City
RA

Geographical Location

WENE

Located in the prime location of Zhenhai
Xincheng, facing the new administrative
and cultural center of Zhenhai

R ESHRZ LR - AT
i)

Major Products

TZER

Residential and commercial
buildings

E %

Current Status
B R

For sale (partially

delivered)

EE(HARA)

Poly Jordan International

RHIBEERIER

Located in the South of East Tanjialing
Road, and east of Chengdong Road,
Chengdong, Yuyao, the project is close
to the Hangzhou-Ningbo Canal and the
Hangzhou-Ningbo Expressway with the
provincial highway Yongliang Line
crossing from east to west, and the
Chengdong Road linking the crossing
bridge of Hangzhou Bay; making it
convenient to travel by water and land
IR R TIRRER EREIAR - BER
BIAR EBNBET  NARER
% AERAREERA  BRBEE
MNEBEARE - KEREERE

Residential and commercial
buildings
FE-mE

For sale (partially
delivered)

EE@H2RA)

Poly Wonderland
RAEDLR

Located at Shuixiang Lane, Dongshang
New Town, Ningbo

IR ERREHAAEE

Residential and commercial
buildings
FE- mE

For sale

s

As at 31st December, 2016, Poly Property Group had 13
projects in the Pearl River Delta Region with a total gross
floor area of approximately 2,510,000 square metres,
accounting for approximately 13% of the total gross floor
area held by the Group. Among which, approximately
1,100,000 square metres was under construction and
approximately 1,410,000 square metres was under

planning. 7 of these projects were completed, and 6

were under construction.

251 BFHK
FREZEABEMN13%
BT - 6fEEB ERIELREEL

BHE-_Z—RFt+-HA=1+—8 B%%
BRIk =-ARSEI13EFEERZE
B EREREEENIN0ETLA K &
BEEEEENINBELK
MEEZFSEEERERK
H7EBEE

CEIES S
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City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
W,/ e 5H WENE TEEM REHRR
Located in Huadu District; adjacent | Residential, villas, and office| Delivered with sales of
to the Asian Games New Stadium at | buildings remaining apartments
Poly Golf Shire Fengshen Avenue and the Metro Line| £% - 5IE - BF1& 2
RAEBAE 9 that is currently underway Baye
R EHE - EFHESRERESH
ERRRERILE RS
Located in the center of Xinhua Town| High-rise apartments and | Delivered with sales of
) of Huadu District, east to the district | retail shops remaining apartments
Poly Zephyr City - -
R government mEXE BH R
R FEBRIERT L - TEHEBH R®EE
B4
Located in Huadu District at the Residential, featuring mainly| Delivered with sales of
Pearl River Delta | Guangzhou junction of Wuhan-Guangzhou basic and compact unit remaining apartments
%=A M High-speed Rail, Guangzhou- types 2t
Qingyuan Light Rail and Airport FE-UR% - BEEER RRHEE
Poly Up House . y
R North Station APM, next to Metro RE
Lines 3 and 9
R TERDE - B3t - o
EERN - ARRERE  BEEY
R 510 55 APM R (B B
Located in the South of Liwan Residential, apartments and | For sale
District; adjacent to the Guangzhou | commercial buildings EE
Poly Gratified West Bay Metro Line 1 with commercial and | % A% @%
RMFE educational facilities
IRBERER - ABLEM 15
o BE BERERZE
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City/District

W/ e

Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
EH R E TEER BRMRR
Located within the Toyota Auto City | Residential and commercial | For sale
in Huangge Town, Nansha with buildings EE
Nansha Poly City access to a comprehensive (B SH
DR transportation network
I EYERES A RSN EH
BrE
Located at the junction of North Residential buildings, For sale
Poly Jade Hills Jianshe Road and Sandong Avenue in| apartments and retail shops | 7£&
RMZER L Huadu (EE AN T

frATERBE R BR B = RAER A

Guangzhou
M

Pearl River Delta

h=#
Foshan
Bl

Poly Cullinan Garden
RMRELE

Located in the centre of Chancheng
District neighbouring the Asia Arts
Park in the west and equipped with a
full range of community facilities
iR ERR T LR AHEED
REAERERMETE

Poly Prestige City
{RM L3

Residential, office and
commercial buildings

FE BFE BF

Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments
R

EEHEE

Located in Longjiang Town of Shunde
District with the benefit of an
extensive transportation network and
thriving commercial activities

(I B BT - ER AR\
& BERSEE

Residential and commercial
buildings
HE-mE

Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments
R

ERHEE

Poly Central Park
RAFRAE

Located in the north of Shunde New
City, the project stands in the heart of
Pearl River Delta and at the junction
of Daliang and Lunjiao, neighbours
Panyu, Guangzhou, and enjoys
convenient transportation

IR IBEATRILE - MR IR = Bl
RAR - REXA - AEMEE—K

Bk ERRETE  BET

Mid-rise apartments, a
commercial center, a
five-star hotel, and a
supermarket

HE - BETL - DERE
& W

For sale (partially
delivered)

EEHBARA)




City/District

Project
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Geographical Location

Major Products

Current Status

Pearl River Delta

h=fA

W/ HE

EH

HENE

Located in the prime commercial

TEER
Residential buildings and

BRI

Delivered with sales of

location of Longgang District, the retail shops remaining apartments
project is easily accessible by the Fx & 2t
Metro Line 3 and is also REHE
Poly Up Town . !
RF| LS c.olmpleme-nted Wlt.h. éducatlona[ and
living ancillary facilities
URNEEEERZOBER  HE3H
Shenzhen Sonty - BEEA BE - HERE
3l TE
Located in Longhua, Bao’an District, | Residential and commercial | Delivered with sales of
Shenzhen; close to the transportation | buildings remaining apartments
terminal and the metro station, with | %~ B RfF
Poly Joy-Zone . . v
R sou.n.d. business and community RREHEE
facilities
IRANERREE  EBREAE
U ETE BEEE RERE
Located next to the Shenzhen- Residential buildings For sale (partially
Shantou Expressway and Palm Island | 2% delivered)
Poly Sunshine Town Golf Course, the project enjoys an EE(FHBAIRN)
fRFIB R environment of natural scenery
RRLRRARE - ERGEES
Huizhou BRIG  AARGEE
EM

Poly Deutch Kultur
AL

Located in the prime area of Huibo
and the northern bank of East River,
the project is only a 10-minute drive
from downtown of Huizhou
frREERL - RIILE - BEMD
DIEE 10

Residential buildings, villas
and retail shops

FE - 5IZ B

For sale (partially
delivered)

EEEHARA)

As at 31st December, 2016, Poly Property Group held
18 projects in the Southwestern Region with a total gross
floor area of approximately 9,530,000 square metres
(comprising a gross floor area under construction of
approximately 3,570,000 square metres and gross floor
area to be developed of approximately 5,960,000 square
metres), accounting for approximately 49% of the total

gross floor area under construction and to be developed

held by the Group. Among them, 7 projects were

completed while 11 were under construction.

BHE-_ZT—XE+-_A=+—1H B%=
ERAmEt RN TEE 18 EEERE
HE  RBEEERBELNIS7TET K
FEREEEEBNS6BIF K At
HIS3BIF K HIhEBEXEEEELRE
MR BEEMEN49%
BRI 1EABEEEREIREE -

Hih7{EER
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City/District

Project

Geographical Location

Major Products

Current Status

W/ e

Southwestern

(i

Guiyang
&

L

Poly Hot Spring Newisland
RAVRR I

WENE
Located in Wudang District amidst a
picturesque setting at the center of

lake areas

IRSEE  MERY  REEE

TEEm

A comprehensive residential
establishment with hot
spring facilities

AEBRNILEEIEE

RRARR
Delivered with sales of

remaining apartments

2 BEHE

Poly International Center

Located in the heart of Nanming
District and standing on the bank of
Nanming River with a shoreline of

Residential, commercial and
office buildings
% @ 2578

Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments

R BEHE

RANERES approximately 300 metres
IR TERRARRERAR - &S
300K 4R
Located in Yunyan District, the Residential and commercial | Delivered with sales of
project is an important spot linking | buildings remaining apartments
Jinyang District to the city's FE BE 2T - BEHE
downtown area by leveraging a full
Poly Clouds Hill transportation network; a 5-minute
International drive from the downtown of the city,
RAZ L R it is convenient and easily accessible
IR EER - EEHRL - RN
EELH  HEXERBEZETE
05 HEER  AETR R
i
Located in the south of Wudang Residential buildings, villas, | For sale (partially
Poly Spring Stret District, the project is 1 kilometre api commercial buildings deliveie:d) N
PHEFAE away from thefenter of the district | % HIZ - B EE(BARM)
iR SERER ESEETFLIA
B
Standing against the backdrop of Residential buildings, villas, | For sale (partially
Huaxi National Wetland Park, the and commercial buildings | delivered)
o . : s e R
e Ol v R
RHEH

of Huaxi District
IATERE E IR R RO
& BEERETKERLAR
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Southwestern

(i

City/District

Hi /e

Guiyang
&k

Project

EH

Poly Park 2010
RMRE2010

Geographical Location

BV E

Located in Wudang District and in
close proximity to the district
administration center, the project
incorporates an 18-hole international
standard golf course and enjoys
established community facilities in
the neighbourhood
URSERTHRFLE - HE TR
ERRESRANS  BELERE

=)
TE

Major Products

TEEM

Residential buildings, villas,
and retail shops

FE - 5IZ B

Current Status
RRARR

For sale (partially
delivered)

EE @R

Poly Phoenix Bay
RMEEE

Located in Nanming District; built on
the site previously occupied by
Guiyang Power Plant (E[5EH), the
project is a transportation hub linking
the downtown of Guiyang, and
Xiaohe and Huaxi Districts in the
south
frREAE - EREGEHEL -
REZEGTR AR N - R
MR B ER

Residential, office buildings
and commercial buildings
I% B¥E BF

For sale (partially
delivered)

EEE2RM)

Zunyi
febs

Poly Metropolis of Future

MRS T

Located in the south of Zunyi; the
project is close to the center of
transportation created by the
government and links to the old town
of Zunyi
IREREH - ZHBHTENER
ERZRENTBRR

Residential, commercial,
office buildings, and villas
% @% 57E 5

For sale (partially
delivered)

& (ER)
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City/District

Project

Geographical Location

Major Products

Current Status

W/ e

Southwestern Nanning

[l HE

L

Poly Crescendo

WENE

Located in the north of Nanning, the
project is approximately 20 minutes
away from the city center

fIREETRLE  EFRO205

TEEm

A residential community of
low-density residential
buildings, high-rise
residential units and

BERR
For sale (partially
delivered)

EEHARM)

R E
b, BERE serviced apartments
WEZERERE BER
ERABREHALLE
Residing at the emerging new High-rise residential Delivered with sales of
community in Jiangnan District, the | buildings and retail shops | remaining apartments
Poly City project is only 10-15 minutes away | SEEE - B i RRHEE
R from the city center
IR IAEHERNEERERER
B ERENTLEI-15DESE
Located in Xiuxiang main road and | Residential buildingsand | Delivered with sales of
neighbouring the Lion Hill Park, the | retail shops remaining apartments
project enjoys convenient = wH i RERHEE
Poly Aegean Sea transportation and community
RME=E facilities

frREEMARAL  BOALD
B EEN - BELEREREE
E3

Poly Dream River

RAEE

Located in the heart of the Liusha
Peninsula, the project neighbours the
Party School of CPC, the state
guesthouse Liyuan Resort and Qing
Xiu Mountain Golf Course in the east,
Liusha Eco Park in the west with a
planned gross floor area of over a
thousand acres, as well as a
spectacular view of river in the south
MRS+ B U RERZE
R BEEZELE  EFLRRE
5 PEARETRAOD AR
CEELEIR  HELEEY

14 single buildings in
neo-classical architectural
style

4REEE  FHAER
REER

Under construction and
prepared for sale

EREGE
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City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
W,/ e EH WENE TEEM REHRR
Located at the junction of Qinghuan | Residential, commercial For sale
Road and Fengling South Road in buildings, office and EE
Qingxiu District, the premium apartments

property development at the heart of | 1%+ B % - BFE « 0E
Nanning is in proximity to the 3
CBDs of Dongmeng, Longgang and
Poly Town Wusxiang, facing Qingxiushan Park in
(REBFFI the west and overlooking Yong River
in the south and connected to
Dongmeng to the north

N EARFREERHERIE
2 RE# - BEM - AR=KCBDT
L BEESILAE - EEEL &
BRE BERRELR

Located at Mingxiu Road near the Residential, office and For sale

Nanning
HE

former site of Chongzuo CPC commercial buildings EE

Southwestern Academy, the project is a premium | (%« BFE - %
p Poly Hearty

ML

residential development in Beihu
Sub-district

URAFRREA BRELINT - F
bl Al UNEL: 1

Neighbouring the old town of Liubei | Residential and commercial | For sale (partially

on the west and the business district | buildings delivered)
on the south, the project enjoys e A% EEFHAIRM)
established facilities and amenities of
both the old town and the new

. - business area. Standing on the Liu
Liuzhou Poly Merization World

oM RMAITE

River bank with a shoreline of more
than 200 metres, the project boasts a
prime location and natural scenery
AEMILERR  BBRATHE =
REPRMFFROEERE BT
EREBB200K REUERY -
BREE
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City/District

Project

Geographical Location

Major Products

Current Status

Wi/ HE

Southwestern Kunming

il EH

5H

WENE
Located in Ninghu Xincheng of Datun
District in Anning City, the project

FEER
Service apartments, office
buildings and commercial

BERT
Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments

shares the same neighbourhood of | buildings RAT - RBHE

Poly Lakeside Mansion “Kunming Sunny Lake & Splendid | BEXAE - BFIE %

RMEHESR Life” which is one block away
IR R EAEHEERN - EEE
HRE-BZR  ERARNERE
BRA
Situated in the prime area of Renmin | Residential buildings, Delivered with sales of
Road in the downtown area, the service apartments, office | remaining apartments
project is next to the City Stadium | buildings and commercial | Zf - B#IHE
Station serviced by the Metro Line 3, | buildings
which is currently under construction, % EEAAE - BF

Poly Sky and Earth The neighbouring area offers 2 mx

NN

comprehensive ancillary facilities
R ERTIHEARBRLE
BERFRE  BOARMNIE 3T
BMEERY - AREERERE—
[EE2

Poly One Family One World

RMAR

Located in the intersection of Er Huan
Bei Road and Puji Road in Kunming
MRBRAT R REEETRER

Office buildings, retail
shops, hotels and
apartments

BYE EHHOAE LF

For sale

EE

As at 31st December, 2016, Poly Property Group has a
total of 21 projects in other regions, namely Wuhan,
Harbin, Jinan, Hainan and Hong Kong. The land bank
amounted to a gross floor area of approximately
4,510,000 square metres that contributed to roughly
23% of the Group’s property development portfolio.
Projects under development accounted for a total gross
floor area of approximately 2,370,000 square metres and

an approximate gross floor area of 2,140,000 square

metres was reserved for future development. 7 of the

projects were completed, 12 were currently under

construction and 2 had yet to commence construction.

2378BFFK -
SEFAK

23%

BRI BFEH K
XSEEERCERGEBEEREN
CHAP7EEEERT - 12@EE R
RETREER - 2 @B B MARMAL ©

HE2E-_ZT—"F+-A=+—"H0 E%X%
BERZ BKRE - Bm - - BEEkEEE
HWEFHE2IEER  ERAEEMEL
HRBEEMBEN2148

MIEE
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City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
W,/ e EH WENE TEEM REHRR
Located in Wuchang, the High-end office buildings,| For lease and for sale
administrative and cultural center of | and commercial buildings | (delivered)

Poly Plaza
il

Wuhan, Hubei Province, the project
is a comprehensive commercial plaza
integrating commerce, fashion and
culture

ArRMIER TR D - BUER B
B REEE BH A —EBH
RALEERS

EH EE EXRN

Poly Blue Ocean District
RAME R

Located at the prime area of

Residential buildings and

Delivered with sales of

Wuchang District, the project boasts | retail shops remaining apartments
unparalleled panoramic lakeside EcR T AT REHE

views. Close to the Wuhan Metro
Line 2, the project enjoys an excellent
transportation network
IRRETHEROE - — R -
MERERE R B ERY

Others Wuhan
it B Located in Wuchang, the main area | Residential and Commercial| Under planning
Yangyuan Project of the Central District of Wuhan City | buildings 5
BEEE and near the Yangtze River FE #F
URRETIHERS  BORT
Located at Hongtu Avenue in Residential buildings and | For sale
Dongxihu District, Wuhan, which retail shops &
stands close to the Metro Line 2, the | % &%
Poly Park o
RFAEF prOJ.ECt is sur'rf)fmded by numerous
ancillary facilities
UREETRESRZEAE il
2GR FBEERE
The project is located in Hongshan | Residential buildings, office | For sale
District, Wuhan, and is buildings and commercial | 7E&
Poly City complemented by a full range of buildings
RF community and educational facilities | (£% + BT - B%

RERETRIE - BBEE - #E

EEKH
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City/District

il

Project

Geographical Location

Major Products

Current Status

Others
Htty

W/ e

Wuhan
HE

5H

Poly Up Town
FRA L35

R E

Located in the newly emerging
Baishazhou area of Wuhan, the
project is adjacent to the old town of
Wuchang and the new town of
Nanhu. Two crossing channels,
namely Yingwuzhou Yangtze River
Bridge (2835 — RILAH) and
Yangsigang Yangtze River Bridge (15
BRI will be built in the
neighbourhood in the future. Located
within the Second Ring, the project
neighbours the planned Metro Line 5
A RET RGN DM E -
SHREZHE - MARRE TN
B AREERRERTRE — B
BMRIABHSNARIAR © fi
R - ZHRBE 5 FR

TEER

Residential, commercial and|
office buildings

T BX BFEZS

RRARR
For sale

&

Harbin
REE

Poly The Water" s Fragrant
Dike
RMKERE

Located in Songbei District, the
project neighbours major provincial
government offices in Harbin and is
only 500 metres away from Songbei
Avenue, with improving municipal
facilities in surrounding areas
AL E - AR BE T B A
& BEHMEREE 500K H@%E
MHREERGERSFE T

A large-scale, low density
and high-end residential
community, mainly
comprising villas
URIERENAR SHER
BEELE

Ek}

For sale (partially
delivered)

EE @A)

The Tsinghua Summer
Palace of Poly

Situated in the Nangang District, the
central district of Harbin, which is the
cultural and education base for higher
education, the project enjoys benefits
from well-established community

Residential buildings and
retail shops

% H

Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments

R REHE

RFBERE I
amenities
ﬁ%%@%ﬁ¢®ﬁﬁﬁﬁ€ 5%
BRES  HARERETE
New residential community located | Residential and commercial | Delivered with sales of
alongside Songhua River in Harbin | buildings remaining apartments
Poly Up Town West, developed as a key project FE B% 2 BEHE
RA L designated by the government

IR IR BB T A AT DRI —

EK&H@%H%MEE%&
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
W,/ e EH WENE TEEM REHRR
Located at the junction of Qunli No. | Residential buildings For sale
Poly Ciy 2 Aven.ue, Langjiang Road and T EE
BRI Y\ar}gmmgtan Avenue A
URENFE-KEETRE - B9E
RERER
Located in the Honglou business area| Residential and commercial | For sale (partiall
of the Licheng District, a commercial | buildings delivered)
Poly Hyde Mansion center of the new district in the east | % * B EE@ARN)
RAGELE of Jinan
fIRERE  AERRDPHERET
b HEREE
Jinan Situated at the west of the southern | An integrated project For sale (partially
B City, the project is adjacent to the comprising Residential delivered)
Poly Center Jinan West Market that is renowned | buildings, apartments, HE (FARAT)
R as a hundred- year-old commercial | offices and commercial
RFIF T
market buildings
R ETmERE BEEER TS (1T 2B BYE B
ER—ERSAHERR
Neighbouring the Honglou business | Residential and commercial | For sale (partially
area, the project is located in the buildings delivered)
Poly Elegant Garden Lixia District with convenient FE Bx EEEHARA)
fRAERE transportation
kBT - BEEEE  RE
i
Located next to the Phoenix Mountain| Residential and commercial | Delivered with sales of
Poly Champs Flysees Reservoir in Yantai, Shandong b\uildings‘ Emaining apartments
Mansion Province, the project enjoys a k EE SR A RBHE
T convenient transportation networ
FHERERE HRAURAEAT - BRABLK
& - BEM
Located in the geographical center of | Mid-rise apartments, Delivered with sales of
Yantai, the core area of the Southern | equipped with a primary remaining apartments
New City, the project is about 500 | school and commercial Zft - BEHE
Yantai metres away from Guanzhuang buildings
Za Station (B £ 34) in the Yantai section| & NSE @ EE/E .

Poly Blossom Garden

RMKBEES

of the planned Qingrong Intercity
Railway (& &R E 5 ), creating a
circle of which Qingdao, Yantai and
Weihai can all be reached within one
hour

IREBIERD — BEFIRZL
B BEAREXIREREARE
AUAR500K - BE - ER - BUER
BRI \RAEEE

GES
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BIEE R e T

Others
Htty

City/District

W/ e

Yantai

A

Project

L

Poly Ocean Luxe

RHE NS

Geographical Location

R E

Situated in the core area in High-tech
District of Yantai, Shandong Province,
the project is north to Binhai Road
and is approximately 300 metres
away from the coastline, offering
unparalleled sea views
IRIREEETRHEPOME
RS B RERRD300
K BERGEE

Major Products
TEEm

Residential buildings
Fe

Current Status
BERR
Under planning
g

Weihai
g

Poly Triumph Mansion
LD N

Situated in the Huancui District of
Weihai, Shandong Province, the
project is close to the Xianguding
Scenic Spot and is east to the ocean
offering unparalleled sea views
IR ERETRER - B
HESEBE  RARE  BERR
Bx

Residential buildings, villas,
and retail shops

EE - HIE - A

Delivered with sales of
remaining apartments

Y REREE

Poly Maple Valley
RAAER

Located in the heart of Huancui
District, Weihai, the project is
surrounded by hills in three
directions. In proximity to Darunfa
business circle and Green Zone
planning area, the site is easily
accessible with comprehensive
ancillary facilities in the
neighbourhood.
IRESTREREERE - ZER
W ZMARRABE - SR -
B FEREREER

Residential buildings
%

For sale

EE

Hainan

sl

Poly Peninsula No. 1

RAFE T

Located in the resort district of
Shenzhou Peninsula in Wanning City,
Hainan Province, the project enjoys
beautiful coastal resources
frRgrmEBET M+ BREER
B FHEMERXNEFER

A large-scale mixed-use
premium residential project
featuring high- rise
apartments and villas, an
international yachting
community and a resort-
style marina club
NBEFEERTNAREA
¥RIER  BERELBR
HIE - ERERLE EE
AERELHNS

For sale (partiall
delivered)

EEHARA)




Others
Hth

City/District

W/ e

Hong Kong
BB

Project
5H

Kai Tak Vibe Centro
RiEEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B wm AT

Geographical Location

WENE

Located in the Kai Tak Development
Area of Kowloon East, the project will
be developed as a part of the core
business district of Kowloon East. It is
near the Kai Tak Station along the
Shatin — Central MTR line and will
take only 10 minutes by MTR to
reach the core areas of Hong Kong
Island in the future
UREBNERBEHERREA -
BERANERZOBERN TR
AEERAED T RRBYE - R
100 EERAEESTOE

Major Products
TEEM

Residential buildings
T

Current Status
RRARR

Under construction and

prepared for sale

FREE

Tuen Mun Project

BFER

Located in the Castle Peak Beach
section of Castle Peak Road, Tuen
Mun, the project is a low-density
beachside residential project
encircled by ancillary facilities such
as Harrow International School Hong
Kong, Gold Coast and Tuen Mun
Hospital in the neighbourhood
RERTFRBILAKELESR -
RBERYEEZEETRE - BE
BRELD m=EERF ERBRE
ERER

Villas and low-rise
residential buildings

NEREEEE

Under construction and
prepared for sale

EREE

Bt %55 51 R

REBEEREARERE
RZE—RNE+_A=+—HB AR FZHRE
FE(ERE RS 4B %E 5 24,696,715,0008 T(ZFE—H

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Structure

As at 31st December, 2016, total equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to
HK$24,696,715,000 (2015: HK$25,560,015,000), while the £ : 25,560,015,000& ) - &R ARE & &%
net asset value per share was HK$6.74 (2015: HK$6.98). Asat ~ fE/6.74 87T (ZF— A% : 6.9887T) e K=
31st December, 2016, the Group’s gearing ratio (on the basis ZT—AFT_A=+—H AEEZEERBE
E(GFEEARBBRERRAEERE) R
77.9% (ZF—H%F : 77.3%) °

of the amount of total liabilities divided by the amount of total
assets) was 77.9% (2015: 77.3%).
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As at 31st December, 2016, the Group had an outstanding
bank and other borrowings (including the notes payable) of
HK$47,624,279,000. In terms of maturity, the outstanding
bank and other borrowings (including notes payable) can be
divided into HK$13,398,644,000 (28%) to be repaid within
one year, HK$20,901,635,000 (44%) to be repaid after one
year but within two years, HK$11,830,293,000 (25%) to be
repaid after two years but within five years,
HK$1,493,707,000 (3%) to be repaid after five years. In terms
of currency denomination, the outstanding bank and other
borrowings (including the notes payable) can be divided into
HK$36,278,653,000 (76%) in Renminbi, HK$7,018,893,000
(15%) in United State dollars, and HK$4,326,733,000 (9%) in
Hong Kong dollars.

48.8% of the bank and other borrowings (including the notes
payable) of the Group are subject to fixed interest rates and
the remaining 51.2% are subject to floating interest rates.
Therefore, under circumstances of interest rates uncertainty or
fluctuations or otherwise as appropriate, the Group will
consider the use of hedging instruments (including interest
rates swaps), in order to manage interest rate risks.

As at 31st December, 2016, the Group had a net current
assets of HK$42,837,416,000 and total bank balances of
HK$18,366,789,000 (2015: HK$49,369,077,000 and
HK$18,348,554,000 respectively). With the available banking
facilities and cash revenue from business operations, it is
believed that the Group has sufficient resources to meet the
foreseeable working capital demands and capital expenditure.

The monetary assets and liabilities and business transactions
of the Group are mainly carried and conducted in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and United States dollars. The Group
maintains a prudent strategy in its foreign exchange risk
management, where foreign exchange risks are minimised via
balancing the monetary assets versus monetary liabilities, and
foreign exchange revenue versus foreign exchange
expenditures. The management believes that the foreign
exchange rate between Hong Kong dollars and United States
dollars is relatively stable. Due to recent devaluation of
Renminbi exchange rate against Hong Kong dollars, the
Group closely monitors the fluctuation and adopts policy to
minimise exchange rate risks, if necessary.

RZE—RF+_A=+—8 KEBHFKE
B2RORAEMEE(DREENEER) A
47,624,279,000 87T ° #ZE B HE - REE
RITREMEE(REENER)AIDABE—F
W 1E & 2 13,398,644,00078 7T (28%) * £ — F
% 1BFAERE 2 20,901,635,00078 7T (44%)
EMFRERFANEZEZ11,830,293,0007% 7T
(25%) &E£$1§ B 18 2.1,493,707,00078 7T
(3%) ° BHIREEDLE - ?ﬁféﬁfﬂ TREMEE
(BERENMER) IS ARARKEHEZ
36,278,653,00078 JT(76%) * & X LT E 2
7,018,893,00078 T7T(15%) M & & T+t B 2
4,326,733,000 8 7T (9%) °

REE48.8%RITREMEE (BIEENZER)
ABIEBEFE MR TN51.2%RIF8) B X
PR Bt R EAEESR B HEMEE
EAT - AREHEREAER A (BENE
HHY) BEEF R o

RIEBE—RE+-_A=+—8 " KEBZRE
B EFE 542,837,416,00078 7T fﬁﬁ,ﬁ@%ﬁ
#%18,366,789,000 B (=T —HF : 55l &
49369077000,%75&18348554000,575)

BTRAHARTEER Z“‘*g*iﬁﬁﬂﬁz '$H1é$
SEABRRERENAAR CZEESHELK
KREARFR

AEBZEREERABREBRIHTIBNE
T ARBMETREBEMINERET - AEE

FINERBEE T EEFEE 2 HH - BBRF
EE G E RS G F LA RIMNE WA EINE F
% BINERRBRERE - BEEEMRE - BT
HRETZEXRBHIBTE -BAN&OEARKENES
TEXRE ANEETYEREE WEKE
R BRI SR Rl (K B R LB o
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Pledged Assets CEHEE

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of the — R4 HIF » ANEE O IKIFIEARNEBERY
Group’s assets which were pledged to secure credit facilities CERANIERMEEETMENT ¢

granted to the Group are as follows:

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FETT

Investment properties REME 2,809,663 4,532,142
Hotel properties BEY 507,865 503,929
Buildings EF 36,076 104,254
Prepaid lease payments TarEEIA 194,866 191,321
Properties under development BREPYE 13,792,049 17,782,220
Properties held for sale BeHEWE 3,017,770 1,319,957
Bank deposits RITFR 785,305 440,437

21,143,594 24,874,260

In addition to above pledge of assets, at 31st December, 2016 [k Fill EERITIN  RZT—RNFR=ZFT—F
and 2015, the Group’s interests in certain subsidiaries was F+_ABA=+—H AEEBRETFHBRRTHN
pledged to secure credit facilities granted to the Group. The B B E AR EBERHNEE RIS M IE
details of net asset value of subsidiaries are as follows: R o MBATIEEFENSEBIOT

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TET

Total assets BEE 9,413,596 12,498,665
Total liabilities BEE (8,486,520)  (11,466,405)

927,076 1,032,260
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The Group arranged mortgage loan facilities with certain
banks for purchasers of property units and provided guarantees
to banks to secure obligations of such purchasers of
repayment. The maximum guarantees given to banks
amounted to HK$28,393,520,000 as at 31st December, 2016
(2015: HK$22,704,939,000). Such guarantees terminate upon
the earlier of (i) issue of the real estate ownership certificate;
and (ii) the satisfaction of the mortgage loans by the buyers of
the properties. The Group has not recognised any deferred
income in respect of these guarantees as its fair value is
considered to be minimal by the Directors. The Directors also
consider that the fair value of the underlying properties is able
to cover the outstanding mortgage loans generated by the
Group in the event the purchasers default payments to the
banks.

At 31st December, 2016, the Group had given guarantees to
certain banks in respect of credit facilities granted to certain
associates and joint ventures of the Group amounting to
HK$Nil (2015: HK$1,827,619,000) and HK$1,853,932,000
(2015: HK$952,381,000) respectively, of which HK$Nil
(2015: HK$1,827,619,000) and HK$1,853,932,000 (2015:
HK$952,381,000) had been utilised by the associates and
joint ventures respectively.

As at 31st December, 2016, the Group employed about
12,029 employees with remuneration for the year amounted
to HK$1,040,798,000. The Group provides its employees with
various benefits including year-ended double-pay,
contributory provident fund and medical insurance. In
addition, share options and discretionary bonuses are also
granted based on the Group’s and individual’s performance.
Employee trainings are also provided as and when required.

REBERMEEMNERRAE TIRITLHIZE
EXRE  WHRITREERABRZEER
BTERET R_ZE—R"F+_A=+—
H - % TRITO &S ERREE28,393,520,000
BT (T —FRF :22,704,939,000/87T) ° H
RN T EBEEAR (UAREHEEBE)
WIE - (WVBEEEHEMEEE  RIWEER
BHZBER ASEBYWERZSERERT
AIEZEWA - LTV ARESERAEAFEL T
BR-BEBENRAE AFEERTEMBTE
FoRBEUEZATEDRUNEFAERES
ZMAREBIRIBER -

RZZE—XRE+-A=+—8 KEBHRAE
EETHERAMAGELEMEREERESD
B AEBEEIT(ZZE—RHF 1,827,619,0008
7T ) }1,853,932,000/% w( — & — R F
952,381,000 7T ) A& THR1THE L HEIR - M
ERRIRAECEEDRBREFRTEL(Z
T—FF 1 1,827,619,0007% ) & 1,853,932,000
BT (ZZE—HF : 952,381,000 7T) °

R-ZE—XRE+-_A=+—8 X&EEHE
12,029% & 8 © F A< &1,040,798,000 %
T ARBAEEREFRERE  RESKEB
BREEZSEEN - N RXEBTREARE
B & E R R B 2 RIR m% LEARE R RIS
A ETER ER AEBRBEEIE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

This corporate governance report (“CG Report”) presents the
corporate governance matters of Poly Property Group Co.,
Limited (the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) during the period covering the financial year
ended 31st December, 2016 and up to the date of this CG
Report (“CG Period”). The Company devotes to the best
practice on corporate governance, and to comply to the extent
practicable, with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) .

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the CG Period, the Company has complied with
the code provisions as set out in the CG Code, other than
code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 and E.1.2. The reasons for
deviations are explained below:

Code Provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the CG Code

— Nomination Committee

Under code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the CG Code, listed
issuers should, among others, establish a nomination
committee with specific written terms of reference. The
Company has considered the merits of establishing a
nomination committee but is of the view that it is in the best
interests of the Company that the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) collectively reviews, deliberates on
and approves the structure, size and composition of the Board
and the appointment of any new director. The Board is tasked
with ensuring that it has a balanced composition of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses
of the Group and that appropriate individuals with the relevant
expertise and leadership qualities are appointed to the Board
to complement the capabilities of the existing directors.

AL A S/
PEEAME

AhFE RS ([EEERMRSE]) 2NNRNE
EEEBAR AR (TARA] - EREMNEQAHE
RIAEEDBE-_ZT—R"F+_-_A=1t—H
LTHBREEARBEEAPEE ARE 2 A HH
R EEREARRENHD 2EXEREHE - A
RBEBAETRELRERAESR  XEDEA
TERTETEERARIMARARRES L
AR EMARR D) M &+ e R ER
STRN(TREERTAI 285 °

A}

M REEAT
RARREEEABRESHEAN—EEBTLEE
JASFRIFTENST AR - R EEVESFRIZ <A
EXEASTEAS54KREI2IEERIN  REERE
ST
TEERFHZFAMKIEASTE
AS541f — IREEES
REEERTAZTAEXEASTEASS
ik B TAR(EFRE)KIREEE
T ERAEAEHBESE - ARREZE
FRZIREEEEHEL  ERABRARAES
2((EFe ) HAEH BELILEESTEN
M MEREANUAREEFEETFEAQF]
WEENRZ ZEF2EARRKRZEHAHRRSE
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Code Provisions E.1.2 of the CG Code
— Attendance of Chairman of the Board at the
AGM

The chairman of the board (the “Chairman”) should attend
annual general meetings. Due to his health conditions at the
relevant time, Mr. Xue Ming, the Chairman, was unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”)
held on 31st May, 2016.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
SET OUT IN APPENDIX 10 TO THE LISTING
RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having
made specific enquiry of all the directors of the Company
(“Directors”), all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code and the code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions adopted by the
Company throughout the CG Period.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board comprises five executive directors (“ED”), one non-
executive director (“NED”) and three independent non-
executive directors (“INED”). The three INEDs, representing
more than one-third of the Board, have constituted a proper
balance of power maintaining full and effective control of
both the Group and its management. The Company has
received from each of the INEDs a written confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules and has considered that all INEDs are independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules. Biographical particulars of the Directors are set
out on pages 116 to 120.

S| SFEE X BE12E
— EEgTFEHERRAEARE
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Chairman and Chief Executive

In order to reinforce their respective independence,
accountability and responsibility, the role of the Chairman is
separated from that of the managing director of the Company
(the “Managing Director”). The Chairman provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice and
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board. With the support of
the management, the Chairman is also responsible for
ensuring that the Directors receive adequate, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate
briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Managing Director focuses on managing the Company
and its subsidiaries, developing and implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
In addition, the Managing Director is in charge of the Group’s
day-today management and operations and is also responsible
for developing strategic plans and formulating the
organisational structure, control systems and internal
procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board collectively takes responsibility for all major
matters of the Company, including the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal
control and risk management systems, financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. The day-today management,
administration and operation of the Company are delegated to
the Managing Director and the management. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transaction
entered into by the officers.

Nomination of Directors

The Board shall be composed of members with mixed skills
and experience with appropriate weights necessary to
accomplish the Group’s business development, strategies,
operation, challenges and opportunities. Each member of the
Board shall possess, be recognised for and be able to exhibit
high and professional standard of a set of core criteria of
competence.
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The Company had adopted a nomination policy for the
criteria, procedures, and process regarding the appointment
and removal of Directors.

Under the nomination policy, the board of EDs has been
delegated the full power to the administration of the
nomination policy and the appointment and the termination
of directors, where the full Board remains to have the full and
overriding power and absolute right thereover.

During the CG Period, the EDs held one meeting for the
appointment of Director.

The Board adopted the board membership diversity policy for
maintaining the appropriate skills and experience required by
the Company’s business and a diversity of perspectives on the
Board. In considering the new appointment of Directors, the
Board will consider a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, and industry
and regional experience.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The appointment of the directorship is subject to, as to EDs,
retirement, rotation and re-election at least once every three
financial years and, as to NED and INEDs, their specific term
of office or their retirement by rotation at AGM, at which they
being eligible can offer themselves for re-election.

Separate resolutions are proposed for the election of each
director. One-third of the Directors, or if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third, must
retire from office at each AGM and their re-election is subject
to a vote of the shareholders. Any Director appointed during
the year to fill a casual vacancy is subject to re-election at the
next AGM.

Mr. Zhu Weirong was appointed as an ED on 8th August,
2016. In accordance with Article 99 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, he shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM as he was appointed as an ED in the year. He is eligible
and will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
He is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election as
required by the Company’s Articles of Association thereafter.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wang Xu, Mr. Choy Shu Kwan and Mr.
Wong Ka Lun shall retire by rotation and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
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Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional

Development

All Directors, including INEDs, should have good
understanding as to their collective responsibilities as directors
and the businesses and activities of the Group. Each newly
appointed Director would receive an induction package
covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory and
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company. The
Group also provides briefings and other training to develop
and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills, and updates
all Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and to enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. During the CG Period, all existing
Directors have received relevant trainings on topics relating to
corporate governance and regulations and have provided their
training records. The Company is of the view that all Directors
have complied with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code
based on the above.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance in respect of legal action arising from the
business of the Group against the Directors and officers.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group and to discuss future
strategy. Four regular Board meetings were held in 2016. At
the Board meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters
including the Group’s annual and interim financial statements,
proposals for final and interim dividends, annual report and
interim report. At least 14 days’ notice is given to all Directors
for all regular Board meetings and all Directors are given the
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda.
The agenda and Board papers for each meeting are sent to all
Directors at least three days in advance of every regular Board
meeting. All minutes of the Board meetings are kept by the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
and are available to all Directors for inspection. In addition,
the Chairman had an annual interchange with all the non-
executive Directors (including the independent non-executive
ones) of the Company without the other executive Directors
present.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings

and AGM in 2016 is set out below:

Name of Director

ESHR

Xue Ming
el

Han Qingtao

Ak
ﬁ&/ﬁ V=i

Wang Xu
)

Ye Liwen

£ 3

Zhu Weirong

ZIRR

Ip Chun Chung, Robert
EIRB

Choy Shu Kwan
Yk

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia

RFES

Wong Ka Lun

e

Board capacity
REZSZ254%
ED, Chairman
HITES I

ED, Managing Director
WTES EFRLE

ED
HITES
ED
HITES
ED
HITES
NED
FMTES

INED
BIFITER

INED
BIFITES

INED
BUIFRITES

THAREEEN T "FHEEEEIER

BREFAGHHFLCE

Attendance

i E R

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

11

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

AGM
BRBEAE

N/A
NE



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) from the adoption date and
currently consists of one ED and three INEDs, being Mr. Han
Qingtao, Mr. Wong Ka Lun (Chairman), Mr. Choy Shu Kwan
and Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia.

The role and function of Remuneration Committee include:
e formulating remuneration policy;

° recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
policy for the Directors;

e review of, approval of and recommendation for (if any)
the remuneration package of each Director including
benefits in kind, pension right, performance bonus
payment and compensation payable;

e review and approval of the compensation payment to
any Director upon his/her cessation of directorship in or
employment with the Company; and

e engagement of external professional advisers to assist
and/or advise Remuneration Committee on its duties
when necessary.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee had been
compiled since the establishment of Remuneration Committee
and were revised in December 2015 and were endorsed and
adopted by the Board. It is available on the Company’s
website.

The summary of the work performed by Remuneration
Committee for the financial period under review is as follows:

e endorsement to the remuneration policy for the
Directors; and

e assessment of the performance of EDs, review and
approval of the remuneration package of each Director
including benefits in kind, pension right, bonus payment
and compensation payable.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid to and/or entitled by each of the
Directors for the financial period under review is set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

During the CG Period, Remuneration Committee held one
committee meeting. The composition of Remuneration
Committee and the respective attendance of the committee
members are presented as follows:

EEME
REBEMBARMSEEINR AEEESE
BzME  ERAFRFEE W HRRMTE -

ERWMEHEA HFNEEERTT —
CE oTWNEESZHARUKREZES
ZHFEENT

i

Attendance

Name of Members Board capacity
ZEHE REZS254%
Wong Ka Lun (Chairman) INED

"R (E/E) BUIFRTES

Choy Shu Kwan INED

kS BUIFRTES
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia INED

RFES BUIFRTES

Han Qingtao ED, Managing Director

CEy P WITES  EFHKE

R

11

11

11

11



AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
was established on 19th March, 1999 and currently consists of
one NED and three INEDs, being Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert,
Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia (Chairlady), Mr. Choy Shu Kwan
and Mr. Wong Ka Lun.

Throughout the CG Period, the Company had maintained an
Audit Committee. The major role and function of the Audit
Committee include:

e monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the
Group;

e  providing independent review and supervision of the
effectiveness of the internal control of the Group;

e review on the adequacy of the external audits;

e review on the compliance issues with the Listing Rules
and other compliance requirements;

e providing independent views on connected transactions
and transactions involving materially conflicted interests;
and

e considering and reviewing the appointment of the
auditor and the audit fee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee had been
compiled since the establishment of the Audit Committee and
revised by the Board on 21st January, 2009 and 18th
December, 2015 respectively. It is available on the Company’s
website.
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Acknowledgement of Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The members of the Audit Committee acknowledged their
responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of the
Group. In preparing the accounts for the financial period
under review, the members have:

e  based on a going concern basis;

e selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

*  made judgements and estimates that were prudent, fair
and reasonable.

Review of Internal Control

During the financial period under review, the Audit
Committee had arranged to conduct a review over the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
including functions of financial, operation, compliance and
risk management. The review had been reported to the Board.

External Auditor and Their Remuneration

The external audit provides an objective assessment of the
financial information presented by the management. Shu Lun
Pan Union (HK) CPA Limited was engaged as the external
auditor of the Company. Their independence and audit
process are reviewed and monitored by the Audit Committee
which considered the scope of the audit work, audit fees, non-
audit services as well as their appointment and retention.

For the year ended 31st December 2016, the fees paid or
payable by the Group to the auditor in respect of their audit
services amounted to approximately HK$7,954,000. In
addition, the Group has also paid HK$1,674,000 to its
network firm in respect of other services provided to certain
subsidiaries in the PRC. Other services mainly consist of
taxation services, advisory and other professional services.
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During the CG Period, the Audit Committee had held four
physical meetings for discussing and/or approving the final/
interim results of the Group and for discussing the internal
control of the Group.

The report of the work performed by the Audit Committee for
the financial period under review is set out in the section
headed “Audit Committee Report” of this CG Report.

The composition of the Audit Committee and the respective
attendance of the committee members are presented as
follows:

Name of Members Board capacity
REHS REEGZ254H
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia (Chairlady) INED
RES(X/F) BUIFRITES
Ip Chun Chung, Robert NED

EiRE FHWTES
Choy Shu Kwan INED

£H8 BUIFRITES
Wong Ka Lun INED

EEN BYFITES
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The risk management committee of the Company (the “Risk
Management Committee”) was established in December 2015
and currently consists of two EDs being Mr. Han Qingtao and
Mr. Ye Liwen, one NED being Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert and
three INEDs being Mr. Choy Shu Kwan (Chairman), Miss
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia and Mr. Wong Ka Lun.

Throughout the CG Period, the Company had maintained a
Risk Management Committee. The major role and function of
the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

*  monitor and review the process of the risk management
and advise to the Board about the effectiveness of and
improvements to be made to the existing risk
management system;

e provide guidelines to the management on risk
management and set up procedures to unveil, assess and
manage material risk factors; and ensure management
discharges its responsibility to implement an effective
risk management system;

e review the internal control policies in respect of the
control procedures of risks, including the risk
management and the communication and co-operation
with operating units;

e analyse the result of the material investigations on the
risks identified and management’s feedback on the
investigation; and report to the Board with the findings
of deficiencies of the existing risk controls and make
recommendations on improvements;

e ensure the risk management is embedded in the structure
and culture of the management team within the Group;

e review and report to the Board the effectiveness of the
risk management system;

ElREEEES

ApmzEREEZES ((RRERERZEE])
R-F—RF+-_AKY - BATAMEBHNITE
T RBFNTESFA=RBUFATESFMA
B BREBEBLL  ERESLL  BIRGE
£ BEEHEE(ER)  REF/NEMERR
A e

RERERY C ARAEIRARBRERZ
Bg- }—L”i %%@2 EAENMBEWT

o  ERDBRIEREEAARE  RHEHRER
e B IR R A W R EMGER M A =
EERHER

. Wﬁﬁ?fﬂﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ'ﬁf &3l - HIE H
R FEREREARBEZRHREN - &
ﬁﬁﬁ BERTEBEERBMNRAREE

o BEREERRF - R AREERER
R EE N E T’FI[%E‘J/%ﬁ&EE/\'

o YHREBEFNINEAFACLERILREEEY

AEREIEEITHE LNESSHRE

EREIERANEZERIELEREIED
1BIEES

o EREAREERANSEEEEFNRE

KX

. RETHMEETERRBREREZGANEX
M



e review with the Group’s management, external auditor
and internal auditor, the adequacy of the Group’s
policies and procedures regarding internal controls
(including financial, operational and compliance
controls), risk management system and any statement by
the directors to be included in the annual accounts prior
to endorsement by the Board;

e review and monitor the scope, effectiveness and results
of internal audit function, ensure co-ordination between
the internal and external auditor and ensure that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Group; and

e discuss with management the scope and quality of the
risk management and internal control systems and
ensure that management has discharges its duty to have
effective systems including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

The terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee
has been compiled since the establishment of Risk
Management Committee and has been set out on the
Company’s website.

During the CG Period, the Risk Management Committee had
held two physical meetings for discussing matters in relation
to the risk management of the Group.

The report of work performed by the Risk Management
Committee for the financial period under review is set out in
the section headed “Risk Management Committee Report” of
this CG Report.
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The composition of the Risk Management Committee and the
respective attendance of the committee members are
presented as follows:

Name of Members Board capacity

REHE REESGZ5H

Choy Shu Kwan (Chairman) INED

ek E D) BUIFRTES

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia INED

RIS BYIFPITES

Wong Ka Lun INED

e BUIFRTES

Ip Chun Chung, Robert NED

ERA FHITES

Han Qingtao ED, Managing Director

BB HITES  EFAKE

Ye Liwen ED

ERE HITES
COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping detailed
minutes of each meeting of the Board and the committees
including any dissenting views expressed by the Directors,
which should be available to all Directors for inspection. She
is also responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures
comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations and
advising the Board on corporate governance matters. All
agenda, relevant materials and documents are required to be
sent out at least three days prior to the intended dates of the
Board meetings or meetings of the Board committees. It is the
responsibility of the Company Secretary to send the draft
minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board committees
to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after
the aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings
of the Board and the committees are also required to be sent
to all Directors for record. All Directors have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that
the Board procedures and all applicable laws are followed.
Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping
all Directors updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory
requirements, as well as internal codes of conduct of the
Company.
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During the CG Period, the Company Secretary had confirmed
that she had taken no less than fifteen hours of relevant
professional training in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
shareholders of the Company.

Procedures for Convening a General Meeting
Shareholder(s) holding not less than 5% of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders have a right to vote at general
meetings can submit a written requisition to convene a general
meeting in accordance with Section 566 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The written requisition must:

(i) state the general nature of the business to be dealt with
at the meeting;

(i) contain the signatures of all the requisitionists (which
may be contained in one document or in several
documents in like form); and

(iii) be deposited at the Company’s registered office (Room
2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower 1, 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company Secretary.

If Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene a general meeting
for a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the
notice convening the general meeting is given, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a general meeting, but any general meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months
from the said date.
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Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary through the
following methods:

(i) in writing to the Company’s registered office at Room
2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower I, 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong; or

(i)  fill in the enquiry form set out in the “Contact Us”
section of the Company’s website.

Proposing Directors for Election at General
Meetings

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for
election as a Director are laid down in Article 120 of the
Company’s Articles of Association:

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election as a Director at any general meeting, unless there
shall have been lodged at the registered office of the Company
a notice signed by a shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed) entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which
such notice is given of his/her intention to propose such
person for election and also a notice signed by the person to
be proposed of his willingness to be elected. The period for
lodgement of such notices shall be no less than seven days
and shall commence no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.
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Accordingly, if a shareholder wishes to nominate a person to
stand for election as a Director of the Company at the general
meeting, the following documents must be validly served on
the Company Secretary at the registered office of the
Company:

() his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution at the
general meeting; and

(ii) a notice executed by the nominated candidate of the
candidate’s willingness to be appointed together with:

(@) that candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
and such other information; and

(b) the candidate’s written consent to the publication
of his/her personal data.

Shareholders” Communication Policy and other Corporate
Governance Principles of the Company could be reviewed at
Company’s website.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Board evaluates the effectiveness of the internal control
system based on the reviews made by the Audit Committee,
the executive management and the external auditor.

For the financial period under review, the Audit Committee
had performed the following duties:

e reviewed and commented on the audited full year
financial statements and the unaudited interim financial
results of the Group of the financial period under review
before submission to the Board for adoption and
publication;

e endorsed the policy on the engagement of external
auditor for non-audit services;

e met with the auditor to discuss the financial matters of
the Group that arose during the course of the audit
process, and reviewed the findings, recommendations
and representations of the auditor;

RIUBXEBMERRA = —T-XFFRH

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

_I_I_/v N

TEERWRE

At - WREEERRERE FIRZALTRE
KARESE M%MTX#Eﬂ =N/
At ERER A ARWE

() EHIWBRRBRRASRERZEZZ2BA
54

(il FERZGREARBRTEEEEEISE
E2@EA - ER

(@ RELTRAFE1351Q) K 2RER
THREZIREABHLAREME
&

b REAFBEANEZEBEAEHORE

==
=

AREZBRBABE R E M EEE AR
RAR B EUEER] o

BREEEHRE
EFSEBBREEE  ATTEEURINE
BBED 2R - T BB R A 2 S 1
H3PA -

REBEPEEE - EREZEeCET MIBE

o  EHKFWmAKENDENBEIE KR
REFMHRERAMAREELH B E
B BERTEFSRMANTIHE

o RARBINEZBENEITIFZBRE 2K

W

o HZEEEH  IWNZEUBEMELSR
BAKE M ER I%ﬁﬁ@%Zﬂ
EHER HEBER MR



POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2016

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERRE

e reviewed and approved the remuneration and the terms
of engagement of the auditor for both audit services and
non-audit services for the financial period under review;
and

e reviewed the internal audit reports and the Company’s
statement on internal control.

After due and careful consideration of the reports from the
management of the Group and the auditor, the Audit
Committee was of the view that no suspected irregularities,
internal control deficiencies, or breach of regulations had
been found. The Company has taken necessary measures to
strengthen its internal control system so as to ensure that it is
adequate and effective.

During the year, the Board continued to review the internal
control system of the Company on a regular basis, including
whether the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the accounting and financial reporting functions were
adequate. Based on the information available to the Board
and its own observation, the Board was of the view that there
were sufficient resources and staff qualification for the
accounting and financial reporting functions of the Company.

The Board reviewed the self-assessment report on the internal
control of the Company and was of the view that the internal
control system of the Company was fundamental and sound,
and there was no material default as to its completeness,
compliance and effectiveness.

Based on the reviews and discussions performed by the Audit
Committee, the Audit Committee had:

e recommended to the Board for the approval of the
audited financial statements of the financial period under
review together with the Independent Auditor’s Report
attached thereto, before the announcement of the annual
results; and

e recommended to the Board for the approval of the
unaudited financial statements of the financial period
under review before the announcement of the interim
results.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Group has been dedicated to identifying, monitoring and
managing risks related to its business activities. The internal
control system of the Group is designed to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatements or losses.

During the financial period under review, the Risk Management
Committee had performed the following duties:

e monitored and reviewed the process of the risk
management and advised to the Board about the
effectiveness of and improvements to be made to the
existing risk management system;

e provided guidelines to the management on risk management
and set up procedures to unveil, assess and manage material
risk factors; and ensured management discharged its
responsibility to implement an effective risk management
system;

e reviewed the internal control policies in respect of the
control procedures of risks, including the risk management
and the communication and co-operation with operating
units;

e analysed the result of the material investigations on the
risks identified and management’s feedback on the
investigation; and reported to the Board with the findings
of deficiencies of the existing risk controls and made
recommendations on improvements;

e ensured the risk management was embedded in the
structure and culture of the management team within the
Group;

e reviewed and reported to the Board the effectiveness of
the risk management system;
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e reviewed with the Group’s management, external auditor
and internal auditor, the adequacy of the Group’s
policies and procedures regarding internal controls
(including financial, operational and compliance
controls), risk management system and any statement by
the Directors to be included in the annual accounts prior
to endorsement by the Board;

e reviewed and monitored the scope, effectiveness and
results of internal audit function, ensured co-ordination
between the internal and external auditor and ensure
that the internal audit function was adequately resourced
and had appropriate standing within the Group; and

e discussed with management the scope and quality of the
risk management and internal control systems and
ensured that management has discharged its duty to
have effective systems including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget.

The Group has established and implemented a sound risk
management system within the Group. The system is designed
to manage and reduce rather than eliminate the risks arising
from failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Risk Management Committee has
discussed the effectiveness of the risk management system
established by the Group, evaluated the identified risks and
analysed corresponding measures in its meetings.

The Risk Management Committee collects information through
the reporting procedures of the risk management system, and
including the discussion of such risks and other risks that the
management has not identified into the agenda of its meetings.
The Risk Management Committee will supervise the follow-
ups agreed upon in accordance with the recommendations.
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This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the “Report”) published by Poly Property Group Co., Limited
(“Poly Property”; collectively the “Group” or “We” together
with its subsidiaries), which outlines the economic,
environmental and social policies, performances and
measures adopted or achieved by Shanghai and Hong Kong
headquarters and several wholly-owned subsidiaries of Poly
Property.

Given that businesses in Mainland China account for the
majority of investments of Poly Property, while business
operations exert a significant impact on its sustainability, this
Report mainly focuses on the environmental and social
impacts brought by the Group’s property development
projects in Mainland China.

The Report mainly covers relevant information of the Group
from 1st January, 2016 to 31st December, 2016, with a
reference to information of previous years. Since this is the
first time for the Group to compile the Report, relevant
information is restricted to specific environmental and social
indicators. We will continue to improve the collection
methods and expand the coverage of information in future
reports.

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
contained in Appendix 27 to the latest version of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The board of
directors of the Group (the “Board”) and all members of the
Board confirm that there are no false representations,
misleading statements and material omissions in this Report,
and are severally and jointly responsible for the authenticity,
accuracy and completeness of the content herein.

Poly Property values your inputs on our performances of
sustainability. If you have any comments and suggestions,
please send us an email at admin@polyhongkong.com.hk. For
more information on the corporate social responsibilities (CSR)
of Poly Property, please visit our official website at
http://www.polyhongkong.com.hk.
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The Poly Property Family
is Always At Your Service
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Our Vision, Mission and Values BPNES - £ k&0 EE
Vision =

The Group aspires to being a leading Chinese property ZAEBEEKAEAEXILAN @ REZEN
developer with a renowned brand backed by cultural  FREISESEEHER R o
substance.

Mission EdT

The Group is driven by a corporate spirit and fine tradition ~ ANEBRFA [ AL ME - BEMA ] OLER
that attaches importance to dedication, honesty and integrity. 187118 R {E#7 - #EH L - W5 - BB
Its developmental strategy advocates professionalism, HBEREREE  EZ AR RARENRE
market-orientation and internationalism. It also strives to ~ FIF¥(EE @ ARFHERITNERRE [
enhance the architectural quality and commercial value of B &AM ERAIEIEEA O -

the properties by instilling cultural substance into its property

projects. Ultimately, it aims to build a pleasant living

environment for its clients and create satisfactory returns to

its shareholders.

Values BMEE

The Group is in pursuit of corporate excellence with  BEHEE & HEEE  WEREBE  BEERE -
trustworthy management, efficiency and sustainable

development.
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Our strategy of sustainable development is based on four key
themes: civilization inheritance, working together, caring for
employees, and protecting the environment. Sustainable
development is to ensure the long-term success and win-win
of our business, clients and communities. We build awareness
for environmental protection, occupational safety and social
responsibility in day-to-day operations and risk management,
and work closely with all stakeholders to promote corporate
social responsibility.

Civilization Inheritance

Expertizing in Cultural Real Estate,

Dedicating in Building 20 Cities

The Group’s business purpose — “Poly Brings You Joyful
Living” — fully embodies its philosophy and determination to
build cultural real estate and enrich the cultural life. With this
purpose in mind, the Group strives to ensure that people can
feel the perfect blend of culture and life in every corner of its
residential projects, business center projects, parks, shopping
malls, club facilities and transportation facilities, be it
hardware or ambient environment.

Incorporating Green Products into Property

Development

As a brand affiliated to one of the largest cultural enterprises
in China, Poly Property has always focused on the
development of cultural real estate and insists on injecting
cultural substance into real estate, to promote the
development of Chinese cultural undertakings. Poly Property
is dedicated to becoming a cultural real estate enterprise with
green influence by exploring the extensive and in-depth
integration of green products and cultural contents and hence
laying a solid foundation for the green building concept. The
Group is committed to building homes and serving clients
with love, contributing to the community, and serving millions
of households, to lead people’s way of life with properties that
have cultural substance and warm people’s lives with culture.
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Safety Management

As a leading property developer in China, the Group fully
understands the inherent risks of the industry and is committed
to minimizing the risks. In order to fulfill the Group’s
supervision responsibility for safety production, Poly Property
will specify the responsibility main bodies and establish a
long-term mechanism for safety production, to prevent and
mitigate safe production accidents and guarantee the life and
property safety of all employees of the Group and other
people.

Pursuant to relevant PRC laws and regulations, the Group has
established the Measures for the Supervision and
Administration of Production Safety, which defines the scope
and contents of safe production responsibilities, urges the
Group and subordinate enterprises to define the responsibility
main body for safety production, and realize the synchronous
planning, implementation and development of safe production
and enterprise development. Such a supervision mechanism
ensures that the Group and subordinate enterprises supervise
safe production inputs, sort out hidden hazards and manage
emergent situations in accordance with established rules and
regulations. The Hong Kong headquarter and subsidiaries of
the Group also formulated corresponding occupational safety
and health policies with reference to regulations of local
regulatory authorities, and strived to improve the working
environment of employees and the safety management levels
in line with the business needs of the Group.

The Group also pays attention to safety production education
and training. The Group and subordinate enterprises have
formulated the rule only employees with certificates may carry
out corresponding jobs and the system of training and
appraisal, and actively develop publicity materials for safe
production education and warning, in order to eliminate or
reduce occupational health and safety risks. This year, Poly
Property performed a total of 587 emergency drills and
trainings, involving around 14,400 employees.
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During the reporting period, Poly Property adjusted staffing of
the safety supervision and administration departments of the
Group and subsidiaries, and revised the Measures for the
Supervision and Administration of Production Safety, the
Emergency Response Plan and other basic management
systems of all subsidiaries. In addition, the Group also
amended and enacted the implementation details for its four
businesses of real estate development, property management,
property operations and engineering construction, and further
refined corresponding safety management measures and
emergency response plans. As at the end of the reporting
period, the affiliated enterprises of the Group have set in place
sound safe production responsibility system in accordance
with the aforementioned measures and defined safe
production responsible persons while providing trainings for
them, to clarify their job duties.

During the reporting period, the Group had no casualties or
direct economic and property losses caused by production
safety accidents.

The Group currently has 259 safe production management
personnel and 7 registered safety engineers.

Safety Production Overhaul

This year, in order to ensure the implementation of the safety
production responsibility system and various safe production
rules and regulations, Poly Property has carried out regular
comprehensive supervision, inspection and checks on the
production safety of construction in progress, operating
properties and residential communities under management.

Construction in Progress

The Group organized two full-fledged inspections on the
safety production of its construction in progress, involving 69
contracting units, 50 supervision units, and more than 200
subcontractors and covering a total of 8 million square meters
and 106 sections. The inspection mainly focused on safety
threats or deficiencies in relation to fire management, scaffold,
formwork support, electricity usage for construction,
construction equipment, and work-at-height operations of
projects under construction.
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Operating Properties

The Group arranged eight large-sale inspections on the safety
production of operating properties with an emphasis on five
dimensions: management agency and regulations, equipment
maintenance and safety protection, daily inspection and
hidden threat rectification, emergency plans, and training and
education. In addition, the Group also re-examined whether
the deficiencies found during the inspections were rectified by
subsidiaries.

Residential Communities under Management

The Group's property companies organized a full-scale safety
production check on residential communities under the
Group’s management, inspecting 110 residential projects and
projects of sales offices in 16 regions throughout the country.
The inspection checked the management regulations,
operating standards, education and training, emergency plans
and other aspects of the residential property management
agencies, with a primarily focus on the day-to-day operation
and maintenance of the fire service installations and
equipment, special equipment, gymnasium facilities and
recreational facilities for children.

Safety Production Emergency Management, and

Education and Training Systems

From April to November this year, there occurred several
typhoons, heavy rain and other disasters in southern China,
which brought many uncertainties. With regard to projects
under construction, Poly Property arranged attendance
personnel, strengthened safety risk investigation and
rectification, and timely improved contingency plans for
severe weathers pursuant to the guidance on flood prevention
of China Poly Group Corporation, to ensure that there were
no casualties and property damages for the construction
projects. Thanks to proper response, operating properties and
residential projects withstood various catastrophic weathers of
this year and suffered no casualties and significant property
losses.
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In May this year, the Group actively engaged in “Safety
Production Month” and “Safety Production Ten Thousand
Hour” activities. Various subsidiaries responded
enthusiastically by carrying out real-scenario training and
drills. Wherein, the property management headquarters
organized a course called Risk Identification and Control in
Property Management; Shenzhen Poly Cultural Plaza staged
emergency drills for scenarios such as flooding of the garage
or people being trapped in the elevator, while operating
properties carried out fire drills. The Group will continue to
build a “safety risk control + risk investigation” double
prevention mechanism with robust working system, advanced
technical means and stringent supervision and inspection by
taking into consideration various supervision and management
indicators and its actualities.

Supply Chain Management

In order to assure product quality, enhance brand image and
improve work efficiency, the Group has officially rolled out
centralized procurement for projects developed by regional
companies in 2010, and gradually optimizes the management
rules, procedures, operational guides and related management
requirements for centralized procurement through actual
communication with regional companies and with reference
to actual situations of each region. Open or invited tender is
performed for each procurement project based on the
principles of openness, fairness, impartiality and honesty, and
appropriate suppliers are selected through full competition.
The implementation of centralized procurement in each
region is also incorporated into the scope of the Group’s
internal audit.

The Group has also established a transparent contract cost
management system and sound supervision mechanism to
ensure fair competition among suppliers, maintain reasonable
interests of various stakeholders, and enhance the brand
image and competitiveness of the Group.
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The Group also assessed the execution and implementation of
supply chain management by partners, to drive the continuous
improvement of partners, mitigate their management and
control risks, and better their product quality. Companies of
relevant projects set up dedicated departments responsible for
the assessment, grading, improvement, and tracking of the
Group’s strategic partners. Partners are graded from different
indicators in a fair, just and independent manner based on
established scoring criteria; for unqualified indicators, the
Group lists down specific questions, analyzes the causes and
checks the implementation of rectification methods. Contents
of assessment cover clean cooperation, quality control, safety
management, performance quality, technology, and other
major aspects.

In terms of tender for construction projects, the Group leans
more toward environmental protection measures during
construction, such as technical measures for noise reduction
and environmental pollution reduction, compliance with
state-level laws, regulations and standards on environmental
protection, soil and water conservation and pollution
prevention enforced in the locality where the project is
located, and fulfillment of environmental and ecological
protection responsibilities.

All procurement-related personnel must comply with the
Professional Codes of Conduct, adhere to the honesty and
trustworthy principles, abide by professional ethical standards,
and carry out procurement, tender, contract and other
management tasks in an objective, impartial, independent and
scientific manner. All departments should actively work with
each other, promote full communication and information
sharing, and make full use of respective professional
knowledge and abilities to promote and optimize the
professional management and standardized systems of the
Company.
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Poly Property is driven by a corporate spirit and fine tradition
that attaches importance to dedication, honesty and integrity,
and strives to enhance the architectural quality and
commercial values of the properties by instilling cultural
substance into its property projects, to build a pleasant living
environment for its clients. As a result, the Group attaches
great importance to quality supervision measures and their
execution. In addition to the overall strength of suppliers, the
Group also focuses on the abilities of suppliers in terms of
contract fulfillment. The Engineering Contract Management
Measures promulgated by the Group dwells on the planning,
contract signing and fulfillment under its engineering contract
system, including on-site certification management and
engineering settlement. A series of complete audit,
certification and acceptance procedures are conducted upon
project completion, to ensure that each project has strictly
followed requirements on schedule, quality, safe and civilized
construction, etc. as specified in the contact and related
documents. In the event that the project has quality issues or
the contracting unit has breached the contract during the
contract fulfillment process, relevant departments will explain
the situation and handling opinions in detail. In order to
standardize the management of the supply chain to suit the
Group’s sustainable development, the Group will further
strengthen communication and work together with suppliers,
to offer the best and most comfortable living environment for
our esteemed clients.
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Risk Management and Enterprise
Governance

Headed by members of the Board, the Audit Committee and
the Risk Management Committee of Poly Property are
responsible for examining the Group’s risk management and
internal audit system and regulations and carrying out routine
internal audits, in a bid to strengthen risk control and optimize
business structure of the Group. The two committees strive to
ensure the implementation of effective internal control and the
attainment of business objectives and overall strategic
objectives via the internal control system within their
respective powers. At the same time, audit teams of the Group
and subsidiaries should fully understand the internal control
environment and system of audited units, and conduct
thorough audits for main businesses of the Group and
subsidiaries in an independent, objective and impartial
manner.

Onsite audit mainly checks the implementation of various
regulations, their operational efficiency and effectiveness, and
completeness of compliance and progress documents by
means of substantive inspection, onsite inventory and staff
interviews. Audit evidences should be collected in strict
accordance with laws, regulations and corporate systems, to
ensure their legitimacy and effectiveness. Contents of onsite
audits should include, without limitations to, accounting,
tender management, contract management, sales
management, human resources management, and cost and
fund management. For more information on internal controls,

please refer to relevant chapters of the annual report.

ElEEREXER

R BENETZEERAREEZESSH
EXeNBEEE  MEZEEBENAMNERR
ERREBELEBEERNRE  BREAEERR
EERAINETECEAMGE > TEHTRLE
AHIEE cWMEZEEeRBEESERE B8
REPIEFIE R - RECEBRERAIDIEG
BRCLEZRBEHRKEIZNER - R
EERTBARSETEBRANIBETTIED
B BREMRALYE  2HEEEEEEMN
*IH %IJiaiR&aw CHEEME TNTBARE

BEBETEREZ -

RGBT THENREEAHENRNITEER

N LEBEBHRERANE  ABEABMBRER
m*%@ﬁzﬁ CEREEMRE  RHBRY

FMABGHK  #ETEEEEZ - FTINERNET
BEVEABRKETER  EZRREMQE

B LWRBEFEAEBENGRERBRIE - BRIB
B TB2TIEFRNRERETRR @ ZE

BRIEEE AREE - HEEE  ANBRE
B ZRELEES EZHRBERIMEIENF
1% F2HFHRANBEEEL



RIUBXEBMERRA = —T-XFFRH

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Poly Property always pursues stringent anti-corruption policy
and safeguards interests of the Company by strictly abiding by
laws, regulations, industry conventions and corporate rules
and regulations, and adhering to the principle of seeking truth
from facts. The Group has formed a clear set of supervision
and reporting guides, under which all units or individuals
have the right to report any violations of the Company or its
departments. Subsidiaries should set in place reasonable,
feasible and effective supervision and reporting channels
based on respective actual situations and appropriately protect
the whistleblower and keep his identity confidential. The
Audit Committee of the Group sets forth clear guides for the
acceptance scope, violation behavior, reporting channels,
handling methods and information confidentiality of whistle-
blow incidents in accordance with related management
regulations, and is fully responsible for handling whistle-blows
and petitions of law or disciplinary violations.

All relevant personnel should strictly abide by related
regulations and corporate rules and regulations on clean and
conscientious procurement in accordance with the
Professional Codes of Conduct, protect the Company’s
business secrets, intellectual property rights and know-how,
strictly follow the principles of fairness and impartiality, and
reject any improper benefits. Meanwhile, relevant personnel
are obliged to communicate the principles hereof to advisory
agencies, suppliers and contractors, and attach the Integrity
Agreement as annex to the contract.

The Group regularly publishes details of reporting channels on
its website or by posting an announcement, specifying the
address, telephone, email and other information for whistle-
blowing, to facilitate employees’ commenting or providing
feedback.

During the reporting period, the Group is not involved in any
corruption incidents.
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All personnel who have come into contact with technical and
business secrets of the Company and clients are obliged to
undertake confidentiality obligations, strictly abide by the
non-disclosure provisions of the Company, and shall not
disclose any of the Company’s confidential information,
important internal information or business secrets to any other
unit or individual in any manner.

Working Together for Charity
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PUBLIC WELFARE OF POLY

Driven by a corporate spirit and fine tradition that attaches
importance to dedication, honesty and integrity, Poly Property
insists on its corporate culture of building homes for the
people without neglecting corporate social responsibilities.
With regard to community welfare, we learn the community
needs in various regions and take practical actions to serve the
public and fulfill corporate responsibilities.

Poly Property Blue Charity, which serves as an overall
platform for all cultural and public welfare activities of the
Group, guides the subsidiaries to work together and organize
charitable activities in various regions of the country, so that
each subsidiary is able to provide the most effective solutions
and support for the most relevant issues of their respective
locality. At the same time, the Group actively encourages and
calls on subsidiaries, all employees, owners and club
members of Poly Property as well as the public to engage in
various community welfare initiatives to show care for more
people.
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With continuous efforts, Poly Property has established its
foothold in more than 20 Chinese cities and built Blue Charity
bases across the nation. Through cooperation among different
cities, the philosophy of Poly Property Blue Charity has been
propagated throughout the country. The six Blue Charity
operations, namely, Future Project, Earth Project, Ribbon
Project, Exceed Project, Care Project and Tent Project, are
utilized to pass on positive social forces, deliver warmth to
people, and change the future with action. As a central
enterprise with a high degree of social responsibilities, Poly
Property has over the years been committed to the
development of community welfare by delivering warmth with
love, gathering efforts with action, and repaying the trust of
owners and the general public with continuous efforts.
Currently, Ploy Property has formed a series of large-scale
cultural and public welfare activities with brand
characteristics.
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FUTURE FROJECT

Future Project: Care for Children

Our children are the ones upon which the futures of our
society depend, so concern for the healthy growth of children
and youngsters is the core of our Blue Charity. The Future
Project is designed to build healthier and more comfortable
living and educational environment for children and
youngsters around the country with colorful arts and caring
activities, enhance their artistic and cultural education, and
bring them more warmth and care.

In May this year, Yunnan Poly Property formed a youth
volunteer service team. Ten young volunteers of Yunnan Poly
Property brought more than 600 books donated by employees
and owners to Jile Primary School in Jile Village, Jijie County,
Xun Dian Township, Kunming City, Yunnan Province. The
activity was called “Poly In Action e Love Jile & Care for
Students in Mountainous Areas”. Together, the volunteers and
students celebrated the Children’s Day with games and songs,
and the warm atmosphere helped build affection and trust

between volunteers and the children.
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In June, Guizhou Poly Property, together with Guiyang
Municipal People’s Government, Guiyang Artists Association
and Guiyang STV, held the large-scale activity themed at
“Little Painters e Poly Helps Realize Your Disney Dream” &
Guiyang First Children Painting Competition. As the first
scaled painting competition for children in Guizhou, Poly
invited heavy-weight art experts in Guizhou and even China
as judges. A total of 18 “little painters” with talent and
potential and 2 “popular painters” with highest votes online
were selected, and these 20 children and their families set foot
on a three-day-two-night dream trip to Shanghai Disney under
the sponsorship of Poly.

In July, under the calling of the Party branch of Guangxi Poly
Property, more than 50 people composed of Poly employees,
owners and the general public went to the San Tan Village of
Heng County for the fifth consecutive year, to help local
students in poverty and practice social responsibilities that
should be undertaken by a central enterprise. In the past five
years, the volunteers and students have established deep
relations. The volunteers witnessed the growth of the students
from primary to junior high. Such an activity has become a
unique culture of Guangxi Poly Property.

( Kids playing games with volunteers in a joyous environment
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EARTH PROJECT

Earth Project: Environmental Protection

When the problem of earth pollution has been aggravating
along with social and economic development. Governments
around the world have formulated corresponding measures. In
proactive fulfillment of its duty as a central state-owned
enterprise, Poly Property has readily taken on the mission of
promoting environmental protection in the community by
dedicating to group-wide environmental works and
establishing the Earth Project. The Earth Project advocates
environmental protection in more than 20 regions across the
nation through promoting environmental protection awareness
and putting environmental theories into practice so as to
contribute to the betterment of Mother Earth.

Guizhou Poly Property teamed up with Guomao Group and
Weiming Education and organized the “Defend Our Planet o
We Are In Action — Recycled Paper” activity, during which
children made recycled paper under the guidance of parents.
The activity hopes to raise the environmental protection
awareness of more families so that people would care for their
homes.

All subsidiaries actively responded to the Tree Planting Day
on 12th March, and rolled out a variety of featured activities.
Even the damp weather did not halt the enthusiasm of units
and volunteers. They passionately engaged in meaningful
parent-child environmental activities, to create a green
tomorrow and better home with love and enthusiasm.
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6000 citizens participated in the “Plant a Tree for Yongjiang River”

community welfare activity organized by Guangxi Poly Property
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RIBBON PROJECT
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Ribbon Project: Care for the Elderly

Honoring the aged is a traditional virtue of the Chinese people
that underlines the fundamental spirit of Ribbon Project.
Through Ribbon Project, Poly Property is actively engaged in
charitable campaigns for the elderly, calling for all parties in
the society to put their charity in practice by showing respect
for their senior members and rallying for elderly services.

Zhejiang Poly Property team made a visit to the Camel Street
Elderly Home located in Zhenhai District, Ningbo City with
children from the Poly Artists Group and delivered gifts into
the hands of the elderly. The volunteers also staged on
carefully prepared performances, bringing blessing and
laughter into the elderly home. This is the fourth consecutive
year that Zhejiang Poly Property makes a visit to the elderly
home, which is a real practice of the “sharing love” concept
of Poly Property.
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In March this year, various Poly Property developments
organized property service employees and volunteers to carry
out a week-long activity named “Carry forward Spirit of Lei
Feng & Provide Caring Property Services”. Wherein, the Poly
Harbin Contemporary No. 9 Park Life cut the hair for the aged
with trouble of moving around, and made conversations with
them during the haircut, which strengthened the bond with
the aged. Meanwhile, in Tsinghua Summer Palace of Harbin
Poly, the property service personnel together with volunteers
went to the homes of Korean War veterans, delivering care
from Poly by helping them clean up or chatting with them.
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CARE PROJECT

Care Project: Aid for the Impoverished

With its active engagement in relief for backward regions and
aid for the impoverished, Care Project lets in a ray of hope to
impoverished regions and eases the worries of the
underprivileged, enabling more people to live in warmth and
security. This year, Poly Property went to Zhenhai of Ningbo
and delivered special purchases for the Spring Festival as well
as daily necessities and blessings to more than 100 low-
income households. During the visit, the volunteers conversed
with local people, understanding their living conditions in a
hope to give them warmth both physically and spiritually.
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In March, Beijing Poly Plaza echoed with the Group and
launched a series of volunteer activities to carry forward the
spirit of Lei Feng. Volunteers brought dumpling flour and
stuffing to Tian Rui Rehabilitation Center for the Intellectually
Challenged, and taught the people there how to make
dumplings. They spent a wonderful time together making
dumplings and singing. These activities reflected the
commitment of Beijing Poly Plaza to helping the

underprivileged.
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TENT PROJECT

Tent Project: Disaster Relief

When one in trouble, all come to help. Poly Property is
always ready. Tent Project serves as an active driving force
behind the participation of local Poly Property companies in
disaster relief campaigns, ensuring that relief supply kits were
delivered to the wanting victims in a more efficient and timely
manner. From June to July this year, continuous heavy rain
struck Wuhan. Poly Property Hubei subsidiary made
deployments in advance, took preventive measures for the
power distribution room and other key facilities, and
organized real-time monitoring for hazardous sources and
manpower patrol 24/7, to ensure the safety of life. The Group
also transported sandbags despite heavy rains and carried out
rescue operations in the mud. It can be said that employees of
Hubei Poly built the most solid fortress for the lives and
property of owners with their own hands.
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— Vow of a Hubei Poly Property employee
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The rain soaked our clothes and our feet have been bathed in yellowing sewage for more than 10 hours.
But we will not budge, as we are the backbone of thousands of owners during disasters. We have the
safety of the community and the life and property safety of more than 50,000 owners on our back.
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In the same period, Funing, Sheyang and other places of
Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province also suffered extreme
weathers. Some areas were even stricken by rare tornadoes,
leading to collapse of a large number of houses as well as
severe casualties and property damages. Learning that his
hometown Funing was affected, the employee of Suzhou Poly
Property Zhang Wensheng asked for leave to visit his families
in the stricken areas. During the visit, he learnt that the 120
rescue officers and soldiers from the Lianyungang branch of
Armed Police Force had difficulties in logistics, so, as a
veteran, Zhang volunteered to deliver heat control and disaster
relief materials as well as logistics support to front-line rescue
officers. His excellent logistics support and soldier spirit even
after discharge were highly praised by the captain Wang
Zhijun and soldiers of the Lianyungang branch.
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Care for Employees

Care for employee should be the top priority of any enterprise,
so Poly Property attaches great importance to the health,
growth, development and treatment of employees as well as
their relations to the Company. We strive to provide all
necessary support for employees so that they could create a
better future for clients and communities together with the
company.

As for recruitment, Poly Property intends to attract talent all
over the country to join the “Poly family”, helping them to
cultivate themselves in terms of both professional ethics and
characters, so that they could be equipped with the “four
characters” and four “spirits” and complete the transition from
growth to maturity and then to success. At the same time, the
Group supports and carries out various exchange and care
programs for all employees, regardless of city, subsidiary and
post.

“Four Characters”: Conscience, Sense of Responsibility,
Compassion, and Honesty

“Four Spirits”: Team Spirit, Scientific Spirit, Humanistic Spirit,
and Professional Spirit

Every year, Poly Property holds a sports event for all
employees, which has entered its eighth consecutive year.
This year, six teams of around 380 athletes composed of
representative from subsidiaries in the Yangtze River Delta
region competed in the Shanghai Oriental Sports Center.
Competition items included both team games such as health
exercises, tug of war and long rope jump and individual
games such as short rope jump, push-ups, and sit-ups. With
active participation and unity, the teams showcased their style
and competence with blood and passion. They will engage in
daily work with more enterprising spirit and morale and hence
make even greater contributions to the sustainable
development of Poly Property.
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We are committed to caring and respecting employees of the
Group that are scattered in more than 20 cities in China. In
addition to various activities organized by the Group, each
subsidiary also creates most caring and appropriate programs
for employees, communicating with employees, helping them
grow and taking care of not only employees themselves but
also their family members. In January this year, Guangdong
Poly Property initiated the community welfare activity of “Love
with Poly” in Poly Central Park, to help migrant workers go
back to their hometowns. More than 30 migrant workers who
work in Shunde and could not purchase a train ticket, after
eating the delicious New Year’s Eve dinner, happily boarded
the train to their hometown with gifts specially prepared by
Poly in their hands. Many migrant workers said that the
activity was very thoughtful, not only solving their imminent
needs, but also bringing them warmth and love.
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Loving heart of the employees of
Poly Property Colleagues

RAEERE L

Inspired by the Group, employees of Poly Property also take
the initiative and regularly carry out a variety of community
welfare activities to return to the society and show care for
others and the collective. This year coincided with the 53th
anniversary for the Learning from Lei Feng campaign.
Employees of Shanghai subsidiary enthusiastically volunteered
in subway services and took turns to patrol in the subway
every month. Such an activity not only passes positive energy
around the society, but also inspires the love and volunteering
spirit in every employee.

In July, an employee of Guizhou subsidiary unfortunately
became ill. He was all alone in Guiyang without many savings
and hence could not afford the huge medical bill. Learning
about the situation, Guizhou Poly Property immediately
organized employees to make donations, while spreading the
message via WeChat and other social networking tools so that
more people are able to extend their love and provide
assistance. Many employees, owners and clients made
donations, raising a total of RMB130,000 within only a week.
On top of that, Guizhou subsidiary gave another RMB10,000
as special subsidy to the sick employee.

In response to the evolving market environment and
challenges, Poly Property encourages and supports managers
and employees to improve their professional knowledge and
skills. The Group provides all-round trainings for employees at
all levels, so as to enhance their professionalism and
comprehensive abilities. At the same time, the Group also
enhances communication and exchange among employees to
better human resources management and sustain operations of
the company.
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Poly Property organized the senior officer training course and
young backup officer training course at Shanghai Jiaotong
University in May and October respectively, benefiting over a
hundred managers. During the reporting period, Poly Property
again organized a systematic human resources training
session, to improve the professional qualities of human
resources managers of subsidiaries through hands-on training
and sharing. Joining forces with the leading training institution
in the real estate industry Brains Team Study, Poly Property
arranged professional training for 21 trainees in seven
sessions, thereby continuously improving the professional
qualities of employees in functional departments. Meanwhile,
managers were also selected to attend the series of special
topic trainings by the SASAC and the Group, such as the
medium- to high-rank officer training session of the Group,
training course for enhancing the overseas propagation of
central enterprises, training session of CCPS SASAC Branch,
special human resources training session of the Group, etc.
These training activities have improved the professional
abilities and overall qualities of trainees, with good results.

The training session covers policy interpretation, expert teaching, experience
sharing, etc.
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“Human resources supply is the top priority for
enterprise development. Poly Property Group is
currently in a critical period of innovation and
transformation, so we need to unswervingly
implement the strategy of empowering the
enterprise with talent, further improve our level
of management and enhance the overall
qualities of employees. This is the foundation to
ensure the healthy, stable and sustained
development of the Group.”

Deputy General Manager
Mr. ZHAO Shenhai
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In addition, Poly Property once again teamed up with
Shanghai Jiaotong University and launched the fourth young
backup officer training session for 45 young managers from 18
units of the company. Selected excellent professors and
industry experts created a good and lively learning
environment and atmosphere for the trainees through
discussion, exchanges and interactions. Contents of such
training included clean education, macro vision, capital
operation, Internet marketing, real estate research, science of
management and innovative thinking, so that trainees may
keep up with the development pace of the times, open up
horizons, train their way of thinking, strengthen management
knowledge, and improve leadership skills. This provides a
guarantee for the sustained, stable and healthy development
of the Group.

Attentive instructors and trainees

k LETREEE  BEMYBERL R

Growing Together

The Group is driven by a corporate spirit and fine tradition
that attaches importance to dedication, honesty and integrity
and priorities the development of employees. It attends to the
needs of all 12,000 employees, and provides good welfare
and sound development and training programs for them, in a
hope to identify and retain talents who will fight and grow
with the Group.
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In order to actively cope with forever changing business
environment and challenges, the Group regularly reviews and
revises its HR policies, strictly abides by relevant labor laws
and regulations, and prevents the employment of child or
forced labor. The Employee Handbook revised in 2015 (a.k.a.
the Regulations on Employment and Contract Management)
sets out the terms of service and rules of employment in detail,
covering remuneration, working hours, holidays, career
prospects, training and other benefits. The Group also
regularly updates personal information of employees including
address, marital status, children, professional qualifications,
other professional titles, etc. The Handbook also dwells on
confidentiality policies and measures for relevant information
and privacy and standardizes methods of dealing with
employee information, to avoid any leakage of information
and protect commercial confidentiality and client information.

The Group is convinced that fairness, honesty and integrity
are our important assets, so employees should defend the
good reputation of the Group. At the same time, the Group
also actively discourages clients from giving gifts or employees
from accepting gifts. For more information on anti-corruption,
please refer to the relevant section in this Report.

The Group provides welfare such as wedding, maternity and
paternity leaves, year-end bonuses, medical program,
retirement program and personal accident insurance for
employees. Moreover, to ensure its employees stay healthy,
the Group encourages employees to have physical check-ups
regularly, so that they would pay attention to their health
conditions.

In order to establish a multi-layered old-age assurance system,
Poly Property has implemented the enterprise annuity program
since 2012, which constitutes an integral part of the
company’s welfare system. The program takes the retirement
needs of employees into full account, under which both the
company and the employee contribute a portion as annuity.
Employees can choose whether to join the program
voluntarily, while the contributed annuity is invested. Pursuant
to relevant regulations, the annuity belongs to the employee
himself or his successors and can be withdrawn upon the
employee’s retirement, death, or settlement in another
country.

B e REARE
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The Group keeps a close eye on state and local policies, laws
and regulations, and strives to effectively guarantee the

welfare and health of employees.

As at 31st December, 2016, the Group had no violations of
employment rules and regulations that may severely impact
the development, performance and business of the Group.

Overview of the Group’s Employees

Staff headcount (unit: person)
ST@B(EM: A)
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0 .
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Analysed by gender
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8

2013
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5,512
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Location
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Hong Kong & /&

Shanghai /&

Other locations E fth i [&

Protecting the Environment Together

Environmental Protection

Climate change has become a common challenge for the
entire international community. As a central enterprise, Poly
Property is committed to working closely with local
governments, subsidiaries, suppliers and other stakeholders to
understand the habits of resource use, so as to develop
appropriate emission reduction targets and corresponding
measures. The ultimate purpose is to mitigate greenhouse gas
emissions and other environmental impacts, improve the
quality of life in all regions and further achieve the goal of
sustainable development.

The Shanghai and Hong Kong headquarters of Poly Property
have made improvements in energy saving and emission
reduction. The specific measures include replacing ordinary
light bulbs with energy-saving ones, regularly updating and
maintaining heating and air conditioning systems and
equipment, and improving the recycling of paper and other
resources. This year, the Shanghai headquarters consumed a
total of 720 tones of water and recycled 160 kg of waste
paper. At the same time, the Group also raises the
environmental protection awareness of employees through a
variety of means.

B e REARE

Age Male Female

Fir 5 X

>50 7 4

41-50 3 7

31-40 4 5

<31 1 3

>50 71 18

41-50 108 53

31-40 155 128

<31 77 153
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<31 2,077 2,001
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During the reporting period, the electricity consumption, gas
consumption and greenhouse gas emission of the Group as

counted in partnership with third-party vendors are as follows:

ABERAN  BHNIBEARBEREZRAEE
AREMAEREIRENT :

Electricity consumption (kWh) RE=(TRE)
Gas consumption (m?) ARE (GLAHXK)
Greenhouse gas emission (tones) RERBHNE (REE)

The construction supervision is focused on the rectification of
hidden dangers, improvement of environmental protection
awareness, and practice of ecological-based green
development. To mitigate the impact of construction on the
environment, the Group strictly complies with relevant
standards and regulations promulgated by the state and local
governments, and asks the general contractors to explain in
detail the environmental protection guides and specific
measures to be adopted during construction, including but not
limited to reduction of waste water, dust, and exhaust
generated during construction, noise and light pollution
control, energy saving and emission reduction measures,
disposal measures of solid wastes, reuse of non-renewable
resources, and protection measures for water and soil erosion
along the construction slopes.

The Group implements actual control measures in accordance
with the construction plan of the general contractor and
requires the general contractor to revise and improve the
construction plan in a timely manner. The control measures
hereof are designed to ensure that the general contractor takes
appropriate control and mitigation measure and sets up
corresponding treatment systems, to avoid the pollution of the
construction site and ambient environment by harmful
substances, prevent potential impacts on water quality or air,
minimize the impacts of the construction on surrounding
areas, and meet relevant requirements of the state and local
governments.

Shanghai HQ Hong Kong HQ
EBERAT EFHRALNT
127,680 92,140
29.016 -
112.59 71.87
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In addition, the Group also requires the general contractor to
use green materials, products and engineering equipment that
are enlisted in the catalogue of national certified products, to
ensure no harm is caused to human body.

In response to the state's call for green buildings and the
relevant strategic plans, Poly Property rolled out the green
property development strategy in 2012 based on its own
characteristics, existing conditions and market demands. The
goal of the strategy is to incorporate green products into
property development so that Poly would become a unique
“Cultural Property + Green Property” developer in China that
pays attention to energy conservation, emission reduction and
other environmental impacts in the course of new market
explorations. With a dedication to providing clients with
comfortable, energy efficient, human, environmental friendly
and green cultural properties, the Group offers products to
clients that far exceed their expectations with the integration
of technology and culture as well as technology and
humanistic care. This creates superb values for clients and the
harmony of people and their living environment.

Poly Property strictly complies with relevant laws, regulations
and standards on energy conservation and environmental
protection, implements the green development goals and
vigorously promotes energy conservation and emission
reduction tasks via strengthened management. The Group
adheres to scientific, systematic and differentiated green
property guiding ideology and does its utmost to offer green
property options for clients.
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Scientific

NEfE

\

Develop green building
and customize technical
strategy by taking customer
demands, market
requirements, economic
costs, technical maturity,
customer acceptance and
other factors into full
consideration
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Ordinary property:

TEEE -

b 5 B O BT 2R A

/

Systematic

BRI

Form a set of systematic
green building practices
through integrated design
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Differentiated
=21t

\

Tap the core values of
cultural real estate and
strengthen the cultural
substance of the brand by
combining the advantages
of cultural real estate and
green technologies, to
differentiate from other
property development
companies.
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Low-cost green technologies: Consider design
in terms of the building’s geographical
location, climate conditions and human
environment, take measures to highlight
advantages and bypass shortcomings, and

maximize energy efficiency.
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Medium-to high-end residential property:

FREREE

+

Obtaining the national green building
evaluation certification: Improve the ratio of
properties with fine decorations and attain the
Group’s green and energy-saving goals.
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High-end residential property:

BimEE

+

Hotels, office buildings, urban complexes and other

Paying attention to high-quality, green and
healthy lifestyle: Adopt various green and
low-carbon technologies to improve indoor
health, provide clean indoor air, and achieve

low energy consumption.
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public buildings:
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+

Obtaining international green building
certification: Establish relevant databases that
store the effects and testing results of
corresponding green and energy-saving

technologies and measures.
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Strategy of Green Development

Poly Property has made persistent efforts to promote the
implementation of the green property strategy through
constant popularization, research input, and pilot projects.
Currently, Poly Property owns a total of 30 green building
projects, as represented by Shenzhen Poly Up Town, Shanghai
Poly Plaza, Poly Harbin Contemporary No. 9 Park Life, and
Shanghai Poly Felicity. Each project adopts differentiated,
innovative green building technologies, to drive the overall
development of green projects across the Group. The Group
will seize opportunities and make preparations calmly to set
new records.

Existing Green Building Certifications of Poly Property

RIBXBAREEERR

3-star national certification

2-star national certification

1-star national certification

LEED-CS Gold certification

Green building certification at provincial and municipal
(directly under the central government) levels

Total

Shenzhen Poly Up Town

Shenzhen Poly Up Town is located at the southwest of the
heart of Longgang’s central business district in Shenzhen. The
project absorbs the essence of cultural and life visions of Poly
Property and un-curtains the new realm of high-end life with
its ultimate pursuit and mapping of the trend in contemporary
urban development. Wherein, Buildings 7 and 8 of Phase 1
obtained the 2-star certification under China’s Green Building
Evaluation Standard in 2011 and were awarded the certificate
and medal in the same year. Meanwhile, Building 6 was
awarded the LEED-CS Gold certification, the first ever
municipal-level residential project to receive such an honor in
Shenzhen, symbolizing the Group’s consistent thoughtfulness
and outstanding performances in sustainable site selection,
water resource management, energy and gas emissions,
material and resources, indoor environment quality and
innovative design.
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Shanghai Poly Plaza

Shanghai Poly Plaza is a high-end commercial and office
complex located in Lujiazui financial district of Pudong,
Shanghai. The project has won Shanghai White Orchid
Award, Luban Prize and other construction awards. Employing
breathable curtain walls, efficient and energy-saving
electromechanical units, building within building, rooftop
garden, and other green building technologies, the complex is
environmental friendly and provides excellent landscape
views for offices.

The breathable curtain wall is composed of double curtain
walls with inner ventilation. The outer glass curtain wall is
completely closed, while the inner glass curtain wall has air
vents at the bottom. The hot air channel is connected to the
ventilation duct of the ceiling heating system, so that indoor
air would enter the hot channel through the air vent. The
mandatory air flow loop renders the surface temperature of
the inner curtain wall at or approximately at the indoor
temperature, hence greatly saving heating and cooling energy
consumption and achieving energy conservation.

Looking to the Future

Facing the future, the Group will adhere to the core operation
philosophy of “Expertizing in Cultural Real Estate” with a
focus on “culture, harmony, nature and high end”. Driven by
a corporate spirit and fine tradition that attaches importance to
dedication, honesty and integrity, the Group will make
persistent efforts to enhance the architectural quality and
commercial value of the properties. Ultimately, it aims to
build a pleasant living environment for its clients, shareholders
and partners, create satisfactory returns to its shareholders,
and build a positive social image by shouldering corporate
social responsibilities and creating social values.
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Safe production is the basis and foundation on which business
operations are unfolded. Without safety, all operating results
will be in vain. The Group will adhere to the scientific
concept and guiding principle of “people-oriented and safe
development”, further strengthen safety awareness, and
enhance the leadership of safe production operations. In
addition, the Group will intensify supervision, accountability
and rectification of safety tasks, and do its utmost to curb all
kinds of safety incidents, so as to create a sound safe
production environment for the stable and sustained
operations of the Group.

In response to the slogan of “Poly Brings You Joyful Living”
put forward this year, Poly Property will be firmly footed in its
main businesses and build “dynamic, healthy, smart and
cultural communities” from the four dimensions of
“innovation, cross-border, collaboration and experiencing”. In
order to highlight the humanistic and cultural substances of
Poly as a life and artistic expert, the “Blue Charity” program
will continue to carry out a variety of community welfare
activities, to make due efforts in the construction of a
harmonious and beautiful life for the general public.

Looking to the future, the Group will strive to improve the
education and training system for employees and establishes a
multi-layered, fully-covered training system with different
categories and forms as well as distinctive characteristics. The
system aims to fully tap into the potential of employees and
nature talent in a continuous manner, which will help
guarantee the achievement of the Group’s goals.

The main objective of green property is to boost green
building rating and to increase the ratio of decorated
properties, so as to obtain the under China’s Green Building
Evaluation Standard.

B e REARE

REEETHREEREE TENERMRE
BRBERE  —JINREXRERKET  A&E
BERRZEEE[RAAR/K R2¥ERE] WHEE
SHEBRA E SRR LT EEE - MR
REEETENRE  E—TRIEEE  RE
B MAZ2EEI(ENE  BRBHIHE
REEH  RRAARREEFEZERTRE
HERE -

RORERMESFREA [OEA - HER] A
St M REELATRIR  BR AR #R)
MA#®E  ZRUAEHNERE  @FELER B2
Mg~ XfEitlE | FOAREER - ZBEMNER
BMERNAXLER - RA ] B ] BEE
MREBVANAHEE SARTRERE
EMEMMBLE - B ERBBRO L -

RERK  FESBRHITEEINHEEIE
Z RUFABRALERRENZER D8
Al 2R 2BENHEHRIIRE  Bht
DERETER  BEAT  RERKERRE
REFEEN AT RE -

iR E B B RS R R R TR
R E L DI BA RIS - LUER
oh B4 (2 TR SR T ST (R -



POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2016

EN\/IRONN\ENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE g hEARE

Index of Environmental, Social and ERBMEXZMAERATKERIE -
Governance Reporting Guide Issued by The #HE8RERFEIESIIABTEI
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Environmental, Social and Governance %‘Efﬁﬂp ERXRZMERABCRE -
Reporting Guide issued by The Stock Exchange REABERESDRAFENZE
of Hong Kong Limited and references of this ﬁﬂ

Report

KPI Description Page/Notes

BRERER i HA B R

A. Environmental

AR5
Aspect A1: Emissions General Disclosure
EmEAT : Hr — AR EE
Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws 103-106
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
BRERSRERBYN ﬁ*&iﬂ%ﬁﬁ BENEE
BEEVNELENERRMETHETABERTZENERA
R RRBIE R
KPI'AT.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. -
RS A IRIR AL B R ARRRBE A
KPI'A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total 104
R AAIEIRAL.2 BERBAYHE
KPI' A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced -
RSB RUEIRA1.3 EARERRMBE
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced -
BB MIEIR AL 4 MELEBRZRENEE
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results 103-106
achieved
RSB RUEIRALS R BE D& B0 FE b M TS ACR
KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are 103-106

handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved
AR BIEIZAL.6 HEEEEREZTEEMN AL  BIEEALSHRE MR
(EIRES
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KPI Description Page/Notes
RBENER 5t B B
Aspect A2: Use of Resources ~ General Disclosure 103-106
EmA2 : EREH — AR EE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials

BRERER(BREER - KEEAMFEM ) R

KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption in total by type and -
intensity

RASRABRUIEIR A2.1 RRAEDNERELEEEREEEREE

KPI' A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity -

RS AR IR A2.2 BB REE

KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results 103-106
achieved

FASAE NIRRT A2.3 et LR (E A e it 8 M ISR

KPI' A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that 103-106
is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved

RS AR A2.4 R SKEUE AR LR B EM AR - AR AKRas st &l
K FSRER

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products -

FASAE NIRRT A2.5 MR BRMHNEE

Aspect A3: The Environmental ~ General Disclosure 103-106

and Natural Resources

EEA3 : RIRMRAEIR — AR EE
Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources
EETALRREERABERENEATEHNBR

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 103-106
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them

BB RIER A3 LR RDERERRRERNEARZERCKINEER
AT ENTHY
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KPI Description Page/Notes
BRANER B Hig 8
B. Social
B. #&
Aspect B1: Employment General Disclosure 96-103
EEB1 : ER — R E
Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities,
diversity and other benefits and welfare
BRI AE - BIERETT - TIERE - RE - TSHKe -
LI LA R H A 58 AR M M BUR M B <F R B iR BRI A
A~ BRI EAR B &R
KPI'B1.1 Total workforce by gender, functions, age group and 103
geographical region
RASRAE AR 1R B1.1 RIER - BRER - FiAR RiES D HES B
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover by gender, age group and geographical -
region
RS AR IR B1.2 RIER -~ RIBEE - SR MRS D rEBIRKLL X
Aspect B2: Health and Safety ~ General Disclosure 80-83
[EMB2 : FEZTE —REE
Information on the policies and compliance and major
violation with relevant laws, regulations and rules relating to
the provision of a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards
FRRERLZ2TIERELREREBLBELEENERNL
BT MR EERAABEER - RRIRRGIRE R
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities 80
RASR A8 AR B2.1 ATEREMIL T AR L&
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury -
RASR AR IR 1R B2.2 ATBERTIERH
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 80-83

adopted, how they are implemented and monitored
BRAEMIERB2.3 R PTRAMBR R R 21506 - ANARREINIT MieE )y
A



KPI

BRENER
Aspect B3: Development and

Training

[EE B3 : B EMZH

KPI B3.1
RABARUIEIR B3.1
KPI B3.2

PR AR I 1R B3.2

Aspect B4: Labor Standards

[EE B4 - $E%ER

KPI B4.1

FAS AR IR R B4
KPI B4.2

FABHAMIEIR B4.2
Aspect B5: Supply Chain

Management

[EEBS : fEREE

KPI B5.1
RS IR IR B5.1
KPI B5.2

A A8 51 B5.2
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Description Page/Notes
Bl B &8
General Disclosure 98-99
—REE

Policies on improving employees” knowledge and skills for

discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BRRTEEETTERENANBLREENEER - fEFd

RE

The percentage of employees trained by gender and functions -
BRI REERERESNZIEBEB DL

The average training hours completed per employee by gender -
and functions

RIERINEEERED - TR E T IH T8

General Disclosure 100-101
—RIEE

Information on the policies and compliance and major

violation with relevant laws and regulations relating to the

prevention of child and forced labor

BRAR L ZE Talsa 55 TR M8 7 MBRE 12 R AHRR 2R »
AR R BIEE Y

Description of measures to review employment practices to 100-101
avoid child and forced labor

g RIS G B hEIA R R E T Mot T

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when -
discovered

e 35352 5B HER B B IE LT R ER Y 25 B

General Disclosure 83-86
—REE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the

supply chain

BIE B ARG S A E R R BUR

Number of suppliers by geographical region -
miEE o e R EREE

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number 83-85

of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how
they are implemented and monitored
G REEROED - MERTERENNHERR
B ARBEEEHNRITRERTA
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KPI Description Page/Notes
BRANER B Hig 8
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility General Disclosure 80-85
EEB6 : EmALE —BEE

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods
of redress

BREMREHERMRENEERLZE B  RRAMLESE
HARBRTENBR L ETHETABERFZENHERE
REROINER

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls  Several rounds
for safety and health reasons of quality
supervision

guaranteed the
products of
Poly Property
are safe and
harmless, and
there are no
product recalls

due to the
above reasons.
RASR A8 IR B6.1 BEEXEEXEMBET R 2 RIEFEERMAR KL KbzmmE
Bk 5T RIE
ERBEMA
e BRERE
EuL iR AR
i F U e
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received -
and how they are dealt with
RASR AR WIS 1R B6.2 RIERANE m MRS RER B A R EH TR
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to maintaining and protecting 83-84
intellectual property rights
FASAE N IE1R B6.3 ft S E RREE S ERAHENED
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures 85
PR AR IR B6.4 it an G e E B KA fn B IR R
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, 88

how they are implemented and monitored

FASAE IR 1R B6.5 W EE BRRE RALBEBER - URABBRITRER A



KPI

BRENER

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BHEB7 : RE)S

KPI B7.1

BSR4 IR 1R B7.1

KPI B7.2

RS AE IEIR B7 .2

Aspect B8: Community
Investment

EEBS : ftRIE

KPI B8.1
RAR A IR 1S B8.1
KPI B8.2
ASEE IR IE BS.2
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Description Page/Notes
Bl B &8
General Disclosure 87
— R EE

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws

and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering

B LLREE 9R - HEFAMLRENER LB THETA
BERZENERERSIRGIHER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices 87
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting

period and the outcomes of the cases
REFHAHRITAREERRLY D EENET
BB B KRS

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing 87

%

AESES

ol

procedures, how they are implemented and monitored

WP E s i N BRI R - A MARREEIT REE R A
General Disclosure 88-95

—RIER

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of
the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests
FRAUAHBRSEXBREEREHRFZNRREELEH
B E BALR A SABR

Focus areas of contribution 88-95
HrEREEE
Resources contributed 88-95

EHEISBERBRER
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55 RRMELASAEEAERRN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

XUE Ming, aged 55, holds a master’s degree in Economics
from Renmin University of China, a doctorate degree in
Economics and Management from Beijing Forestry University
and is a senior economist. Mr. Xue has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company since April 2006, was the
Managing Director of the Company during the period from
July 2009 to October 2014, and has been the Chairman of the
Board of the Company since April 2010. As the Chairman of
the Board, Mr. Xue is primarily responsible for the overall
management, major decision-making, strategic planning and
business development of the Group. Mr. Xue is also a deputy
general manager of China Poly Group Corporation (“China
Poly”), the chairman of Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited
(“Poly Holdings”) and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group with over 36 years’ experience in management.

HAN Qingtao, aged 56, holds an Executive Master Degree of
Business Administration from Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law. Mr. Han was the managing director of
Poly Southern Group Limited (“Poly Southern”) during the
period from December 2005 to September 2007, an executive
Director of the Company during the period from October
2007 to August 2011, and a senior officer of the Real Estate
Department of China Poly during the period from August 2011
to October 2014. He has been appointed as the Managing
Director of the Company since October 2014 and is primarily
responsible for the operation and management of the Group.
He is also the managing director of Poly Holdings and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group with over 20
years’ experience in finance and management.

WANG Xu, aged 57, has been an executive Director of the
Company since October 2007. Mr. Wang had been the
chairman of Poly Southern during the period from March
2003 to September 2007, the Managing Director of the
Company during the period from October 2007 to July 2009
and is also the chief economist of China Poly, the deputy
chairman of Poly Holdings and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group with over 24 years of extensive
experience in investment and management.
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YE Liwen, aged 46, holds a bachelor degree from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics and a master degree in
Business Administration from Beijing University. Mr. Ye was a
senior officer with China Poly for the period from 1994 to
2001 and joined the Company in 2001 as a manager of
investments department. He has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company since November 2006 and
is also the Chief Financial Controller of Poly Holdings, a
deputy general manager of Poly Holdings and the Company,
and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ye has
over 20 years of experience in management.

Zhu Weirong, aged 54, holds a master’s degree in
International Relations from the Department of International
Politics at Peking University. Mr. Zhu worked for China Poly
from 1994 to 2001, joined Poly Holdings and the Company in
2001. He has been appointed as the Director of the Company
since August 2016 and is also a deputy general manager of
Poly Holdings and the Company, and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Zhu has over 20 years of
experience in management.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

IP Chun Chung, Robert, aged 60, has joined the Company as
an independent non-executive Director since January 2001
and has been redesignated to the position as a non-executive
Director since July 2004 and currently is also a member of
Audit Committee and Risk Management Committee. Mr. Ip
has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong since 1985 and
is the proprietor of Messrs. Robert C.C. Ip & Co. with over 30
years of extensive experience in legal aspects and more than
16 years of experience in listing related matters and corporate
takeover, merger and acquisition areas. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Changhong Jiahua
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8016) and was as an
independent non-executive director of Value Convergence
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 821) from March 2012 to
October 2016.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

CHOY Shu Kwan, aged 62, holds a master degree in Business
Administration and has over 20 years’ extensive experience in
financial business and investment management. Mr. Choy
worked for the CITIC Group Hong Kong for over 20 years.
Before his resignation in 2007, he was the managing director
of CITIC Capital Markets Limited. Mr. Choy has joined the
Company since July 2004 as an independent non-executive
Director and currently is the chairman of Risk Management
Committee, a member of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Choy is also an independent non-executive
director of Skyfame Realty (Holdings) Limited (Stock code:
59).

Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia, aged 53, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Miss Leung holds a
bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from City University of
Hong Kong and had studied as an external student and passed
the accredited examinations and obtained a bachelor of laws
degree from the University of London. She is an associate of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Miss Leung
has joined the Company since August 2010 as an independent
non-executive Director and is currently the chairlady of Audit
Committee and a member of both Remuneration Committee
and Risk Management Committee. Miss Leung is currently an
independent non-executive director of both China Aerospace
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 31) and Prosper
Construction Holdings Limited (stock code: 6816), shares of
both are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
and a director of VC Capital Limited, a company licensed to
conduct type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activity under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. She has
over 20 years of experience in company secretarial and
corporate finance advisory.
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WONG Ka Lun, aged 67, holds a bachelor degree in Social
Sciences from The University of Hong Kong majoring in
Economics and Psychology. Mr. Wong had held various
executive and management positions with Cathy Pacific
Airways, John Swire & Sons (China) Limited and Swire Travel
Limited. He has joined the Company since November 2012 as
an independent non-executive Director and currently is the
chairman of Remuneration Committee, a member of Audit
Committee and Risk Management Committee. Mr. Wong is
also an executive board member of Hong Kong Air Cadet
Corps, a director of the board of The Hong Kong International
Film Festival Society Limited and a council member of The
Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE

POON Man Man, aged 47, holds a Bachelor degree in
Business Administration from Simon Fraser University in
Canada majoring in Finance and Marketing. She is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators,
and a member of the Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association. Miss Poon joined the Group in March 2013 and
currently acts as the Company Secretary, authorized
representative and is the head of executive Directors’ office of
the Group.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ZHAO Shenhai, aged 59, holds an EMBA from Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law and is a senior political
engineer. Mr. Zhao joined China Poly in October 1992 and
joined the Group in September 2007. He currently acts as a
deputy general manager of the Group assisting the general
manager in managing the human resources department in
Mainland China and is responsible for Suzhou subsidiaries.

WU Guangming, aged 55, holds a PhD in Business
Administration from China Academic Affairs Division of
Liberty University, U.S.A, and is a senior economist. Dr. Wu
joined China Poly in January 2005 and joined the Group in
September 2007. He currently acts as a deputy general
manager of the Group assisting the general manager in
managing the safety control and supervision department,
Guangxi subsidiaries, Guizhou subsidiaries, Yunnan
subsidiaries and some property management companies.
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CHAN Hiu Lai, aged 54, holds a bachelor degree in
Economics Management from Navy Engineering College. Ms.
Chan joined China Poly in February 2002 and joined the
Group in November 2012. She currently acts as a deputy
general manager of the Group, assisting the general manager
in managing the administration department and legal
department in Mainland China, union work and media work
and certain business management companies.

ZHAO Guoang, aged 47, holds an EMBA from Tongji
University and is a senior economist as well as qualified
property valuer. Mr. Zhao joined China Poly in 1995 and
joined the Group in January 2006. He currently acts as a
deputy general manager of the Group assisting the general
manager in managing the cost contract department. He is also
responsible for Shanghai subsidiaries, Zhejiang subsidiaries
and the construction company.

CHOI Wai Sang, Kenny, aged 45, holds a bachelor degree in
Computer Science from the University of Hong Kong. He is a
Chartered Financial Analyst. Mr. Choi joined the Group in
August 2001 and currently is a deputy general manager of the
Group, the managing director of Poly Property (Hong Kong)
Co., Limited and the general manager of Shanghai Puli Real
Estate Development Company Limited*.

WAN Yugqing, aged 41, holds an EMBA degree from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business and an EMBA degree from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law. Mr. Wan joined
China Poly in 1997 and joined the Group in September 2007.
He currently acts as a deputy general manager of the Group
assisting the general manager in managing the investment
management department, brand marketing department and
product management department. He also serves as the
chairman of Guangdong Poly Property Co., Limited* and
Hubei Poly Investment Co., Limited*.

PUN Chi Ping, aged 50, holds a master’s degree in finance
management from the City University of Hong Kong. He is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Pun joined Poly Holdings in May 1994 and
joined the Group in April 2000. He is an assistant to the
general manager and the financial controller of the Group and
is in charge of the financial affairs of the Group.

* Certain of the subsidiaries are Chinese entities and their names have
been translated into English for reference only.
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The board of Directors present its annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of Poly Property
Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31st December, 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 50 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
on page 147 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2015: Nil). The
Directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31st December, 2016 (2015: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31st December, 2016, the investment properties of the
Group were revalued by an independent firm of professional
surveyor and property valuer on an open market value basis at
HK$10,406,785,000.

Details of these and other movements during the year in the
investment properties of the Group are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31st December, 2016 represented the
accumulated profits of HK$2,705,882,000 (2015:
HK$2,864,398,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group
for the preceding five financial years is set out on page 332.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The business overview for the year ended 31st December
2016 of the Group is set out in the “Chairman’s Statement ”
on page 4 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
page 20 of this annual report.

POTENTIAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
OF THE GROUP

The financial position, operating results, business and
prospects of the Group may be affected by various risks and
uncertainties. Major risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group are set out below. However, there may be other
material risks or uncertainties which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could turn out
to be material in the future.

BUSINESS RISK

A majority of the operational assets of the Group are located
in the PRC, and the Group expects that a substantial portion of
its turnover will continue to be generated from the operations
in the PRC. Operating results and prospects are subject, to a
significant extent, to economic, political and legal
development in the PRC. The PRC economy differs from the
economies of most developed countries in many respects
including the level of government involvement, the level of
development, growth rate and government control of foreign
exchange. The Group are unable to predict whether changes
on the political, economic and social conditions, and laws,
regulations and policies of the PRC will have any material
adverse effect on the current or future business, operating
results or financial position of the Group.
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FINANCIAL RISK

The financial risk management of the Group is set out in note
7 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Xue Ming (Chairman)

Han Qingtao (Managing Director)

Wang Xu

Ye Liwen

Zhu Weirong (Appointed on 8th August, 2016)

Non-executive Director:
Ip Chun Chung, Robert

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Choy Shu Kwan

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia

Wong Ka Lun

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Zhu Weirong, who was appointed as an
executive Director during the year, will retire and being
eligible, offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wang Xu, Mr. Choy Shu Kwan and Mr.
Wong Ka Lun will retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.
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The term of office of Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert, the non-
executive director, and Mr. Choy Shu Kwan, the independent
non-executive directors, is three years from 6th October,
2014, subject to retirement by rotation as required by the
Company’s Articles of Association.

The term of office of Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia, the
independent non-executive director, is three years from 11th
August, 2016, subject to retirement by rotation as required by
the Company’s Articles of Association.

The term of office of Mr. Wong Ka Lun, the independent non-
executive director, is three years from 23rd November 2015,
subject to retirement by rotation as required by the Company’s
Articles of Association.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive directors
concerning their independence and considered that the
independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2016, the interests and short positions of
the directors and their associates in the shares of the Company
and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies were as follows:
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Long position

Ordinary shares of the Company

Mr. Xue Ming is holding 1,020,000 shares (0.03%) of the
Company.

Mr. Choy Shu Kwan is holding 300,000 shares (0.01%) of the
Company.

Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia is holding 33,000 shares (0%) of
the Company.

Mr. Wong Ka Lun is deemed to be interested in 80,000 shares
(0%) of the Company, being the interests held by his spouse.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31st December, 2016.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set out
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings set out in note 38, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December, 2016, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO shows that, other than the interests disclosed
above in respect of certain Directors, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests in
the issued shares of the Company:
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Ordinary shares of the Company

Name of shareholder

Long position

¥R
Congratulations Company Ltd.

Beneficial
owner

BEHEEA

1,037,975,080

RATREHER

Number of shares

RIEE

Held by

controlled
corporation(s)

2 2
NEAEFH

Source Holdings Limited 228,398,760 100,086,800

Ting Shing Holdings Limited - 1,366,460,640
(Note 2) (ff1zt2)

Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited 112,410,476  1,366,460,640

RA (BB IERERAR]

Poly Southern Group Limited 253,788,246 =

RNEAEEERAR

China Poly Group Corporation - 1,732,659,362

FERAEE AR (Note 4) (Hf5t 4)

Total number
of shares

1,037,975,080

328,485,560
(Note 1) (Hfa#1)

1,366,460,640
1,478,871,116
(Note 3) (K1a+3)

253,788,246

1,732,659,362

Approximate
percentage

of the issued
share capital of
the Company
EA AT
ERITRAZ
BMAOE D

28.35%

8.97%

37.32%

40.39%

6.93%

47.32%

Notes:

1.

Source Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be interested in
328,485,560 shares of the Company as a result of its direct holding
of 228,398,760 shares and indirect holding of 100,086,800 shares
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Musical Insight Holdings
Limited and Wincall Holding Limited, of 44,658,800 shares and
55,428,000 shares, respectively.

Ting Shing Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be interested
in 1,366,460,640 shares of the Company as a result of its indirect
holding of 1,366,460,640 shares through its subsidiaries, Source
Holdings Limited and Congratulations Company Ltd., of
328,485,560 shares and 1,037,975,080 shares, respectively.
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3. Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be
interested in 1,478,871,116 shares of the Company as a result of its
direct holding of 112,410,476 shares and indirect holding of
1,366,460,640 shares through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Ting
Shing Holdings Limited.

4. China Poly Group Corporation owns 100% of Poly (Hong Kong)
Holdings Limited and Poly Southern Group Limited and is
accordingly deemed by the SFO to be interested in the shares
directly and indirectly owned by Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings
Limited and Poly Southern Group Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued
shares or underlying shares of the Company as at 31st
December, 2016.

PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS OF
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Disclosures pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the

Listing Rules
On 16th May, 2013, the Company (as the issuer) and China
Poly Group Corporation entered into a keepwell deed in
relation to the US$500,000,000 4.75% notes due 2018 issued
by the Company.

On 27th May, 2014, the Company (as the borrower) entered
into a facility agreement with certain banks for dual currency
term loan facilities of US$400,000,000 and HK$853,000,000
for a term of 36 months.

On 5th November, 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as borrower, and the Company, as guarantor,
entered into a facility agreement with certain banks for a total
term loan facility of HK$5,000,000,000. The final maturity
date of the facility will be the earlier of (a) the date falling 48
months after the date of the facility agreement and (b) the date
falling 6 months after a certificate of compliance is issued by
the Director of Lands in respect of the development of New
Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6527, Kai Tak Area 11 Site 3,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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On 2nd September, 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as borrower, and the Company, as guarantor,
entered into a facility agreement with certain banks for a total
term loan facility of HK$1,900,000,000. The final maturity
date of the facility will be the earlier of (a) the date falling 48
months after the date of the facility agreement and (b) the date
falling 9 months after a certificate of compliance is issued by
the Director of Buildings and Lands in respect of the
development of Tuen Mun Town Lot No. 542, Castle Peak
Road, Castle Peak Bay, Area 48, Tuen Mun, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the aforesaid keepwell deed and facility
agreements, the Company undertakes with the banks that, if,
among other things, China Poly Group Corporation (a) ceases
to be the single largest shareholder of the Company or ceases
to maintain at least 40% direct or indirect beneficial
ownership of the issued shares of the Company; (b) ceases to
maintain management control of the Company; or (c) ceases
to be under the control and supervision of the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the
State Council of the People’s Republic of China, all loans
together with accrued interest may become immediately due
and payable.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

We set out below the connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions of the Group during the year pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”):

(1) The Construction Agreement

The Company entered into a renewal of the construction
agreement with Poly Southern Group Limited (“Poly
Southern”) on 12th November, 2014 (the “Construction
Agreement”) for provision of construction work service
and other services ancillary to the provision of
construction work service by Poly Southern and its
subsidiaries. Pursuant to the renewal of the Construction
Agreement, both parties agreed to renew the
Construction Agreement for a period of three years from
1st January, 2015 to 31st December, 2017. The
proposed annual cap for the construction fee payable
under the Construction Agreement for each of the three
years of 2015, 2016 and 2017 is RMB2,100 million,
respectively.
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The pricing policy of the construction service fee is
determined at the state-prescribed prices or where there
is no state-prescribed prices, on prices no less favourable
than those offered by Poly Southern to independent third
parties or those charged by other independent third
parties to the Group.

Poly Southern is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Poly Group Corporation (“China Poly”), a controlling
shareholder of the Company, and accordingly Poly
Southern is a connected person of the Company. As
such, the renewal of the Construction Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder therefore
constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules.

The renewal of the Construction Agreement and the
proposed annual caps for each of the three years ending
31st December, 2017 were approved by independent
shareholders of the Company on 18th December, 2014.

During the year under review, the total construction
service fees paid or payable to Poly Southern under the
Construction Agreement are RMB347,600,000
(approximately HK$399,535,000) which did not exceed
the cap of RMB2,100 million.

Financial Framework Agreement

On 31st December, 2013, the Company and Poly
Finance Company Limited (“Poly Finance”) entered into
a financial framework agreement of a term of three years
from 1st January, 2014 to 31st December, 2016 (the
“Financial Framework Agreement”). Pursuant to the
Financial Framework Agreement, the Group will utilise
financial services including deposit services offered by
Poly Finance.

Under the terms and conditions of the Financial
Framework Agreement, the Group will from time to time
place deposits with Poly Finance at interest rates which
are more favorable to the Group than the rates available
from an independent third party for similar services in
the PRC. The Group and Poly Finance will monitor the
amount of funds deposited by the members of the Group
from time to time.
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The annual caps (being the maximum daily deposit
balance) for the deposit services under the Financial
Framework Agreement for each of the three years ending
31st December, 2016 is RMB550 million, respectively.

Poly Finance is owned as to 76% by China Poly, a
controlling shareholder of the Company, and its
associates, and accordingly Poly Finance is a connected
person of the Company. As such, the Financial
Framework Agreement and the deposits services
contemplated thereunder therefore constitute a
continuing connected transaction of the Company under
Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules.

As all the applicable percentage ratios of the annual cap
for the deposit services under the Financial Framework
Agreement are less than 5%, the Financial Framework
Agreement and the deposit services contemplated
thereunder are subject to reporting and announcement
requirements but are exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule
14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, deposits placed with Poly
Finance did not exceed the maximum daily balance of
RMB550 million. As at 31st December, 2016, deposits of
RMB407,645,000 (approximately HK$458,028,000)
were placed with Poly Finance.

Financial Framework Agreement

On 20th December, 2016, the Company and Poly
Finance entered into the Financial Framework
Agreement (the “Financial Framework Agreement”) for a
term of three years from 1st January, 2017 to 31st
December, 2019. Pursuant to the Financial Framework
Agreement, the Group will utilize financial services
including deposit services, unsecured loan financing
services, unsecured guarantee services and settlement
services offered by Poly Finance.
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According to the terms and conditions of the Financial
Framework Agreement, the Group will place deposits
with Poly Finance from time to time, and the interest
rates should be higher than the interest rates offered by
independent third parties for the similar services
obtained in the PRC. The Group and Poly Finance will
monitor the deposit of the Group’s member entities from
time to time.

The proposed annual cap of the deposit services (i.e.
maximum daily deposit balance) under the Financial
Framework Agreement is RMB410,000,000 for each of
the three years ending 31st December, 2019.

Poly Finance is owned as to 82.83% by China Poly, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, and its
associates. Therefore, Poly Finance is an associate of a
connected person of the Company. The Financial
Framework Agreement and the deposit services
contemplated thereunder therefore constitute a
continuing connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As all the applicable percentage ratios of the annual cap
for the deposit services under the Financial Framework
Agreement are less than 5%, the Financial Framework
Agreement and the deposit services contemplated
thereunder are subject to reporting and announcement
requirements but are exempt from the independent
shareholder’s approval requirement under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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Formation of Joint Venture

On 19th May 2016, Jinan Poly Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Poly Jinan”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Shandong Heshun Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Shandong Heshun”) entered into the joint venture
agreement, pursuant to which, the parties will jointly
develop the “Wu Li Pai Fang” project through the Poly
Newtown Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Poly Newtown”). Poly
Newtown is owned by Poly Jinan and Shandong Heshun
as to 70% and 30%, respectively. The parties propose to
inject a total of RMB160,000,000 to Poly Newtown in
the combination of capital contribution and
shareholders’ loans before 2017. Such funding will be
provided by Poly Jinan and Shandong Heshun on a
70:30 basis. The total funding in the long run to be
contributed to the Poly Newtown by both parties will
not exceed RMB500,000,000.

Shandong Heshun is a substantial shareholder of a
number of the Company’s subsidiaries and therefore a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary
level. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the joint venture agreement constitute a connected
transaction of the Company. The Board (including the
independent non-executive directors) has approved the
joint venture agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder and confirmed that the joint
venture agreement has been made on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group, and that its terms are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole. As such, the transactions
contemplated under the joint venture agreement are
subject to reporting and announcement requirements but
are exempted from the circular, independent financial
advice and shareholders’” approval requirements
pursuant to Rule T4A.101 of the Listing Rules.
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(5)

Formation of a Fund

On 25th November 2016, Poly Property Group Co.,
Limited ({8 7 & % % B & R & 7)) (“Poly Property
Shanghai”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the partnership agreement with the general
partner, China Poly Group Corporation and other
investors for the formation of Poly Limin (Tianjin) Equity
Investment Fund (L.P.) (RFIFIR (K2) EREES
EREE(BAREE)) and agreed to make a capital
contribution of RMB30,000,000 to the fund as a limited

partner.

China Poly Group Corporation is a controlling
shareholder and hence a connected person of the
Company. The general partner and the other investors
are each a subsidiary or associate of China Poly Group
Corporation and hence also a connected person of the
Company. Accordingly, the transaction contemplated
under the partnership agreement constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company. Since the highest applicable
percentage ratio set out in the Listing Rules in respect of
such transaction exceeds 0.1% but is less than 5%, the
transaction is subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but is exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A

of the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL REVIEW AND CONFIRMATION
REGARDING CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS IN PURSUANCE OF RULE
14A.55 AND 14A.56 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the

continuing connected transactions (the “Transactions”) set out

above and confirmed:

1.

2.

the Transactions were entered into in the ordinary and

usual course of business of the Group;

the Transactions were conducted on normal commercial

terms or better; and
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3. the Transactions were entered into in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company had reviewed the Transactions
and provided an unqualified letter to the Board in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and confirmed, inter
alia, that the Transactions have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
Transactions and the Transactions have not exceeded their
respective annual caps as disclosed in the relevant
announcements and circulars.

OTHERS

A summary of significant related party transactions during
the year are disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements. Transactions as disclosed in note 47(a)
“Transactions and balances with China Poly Group” to the
consolidated financial statements also constitute connected/
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (where
applicable) with respect to the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions entered into by the Group
during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the financial year and as at the date of this report, a
qualifying indemnity provision made by the Company for the
benefit of the Directors is in force as required by section 470
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of
Hong Kong).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director nor any entity connected with a Director is or
was materially interested, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract, which is of significance
to the business of the Group and to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, its parent company and the subsidiaries
of its parent company was a party, subsisting at any time
during, or at the end of, the year ended 31st December, 2016.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, both the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers and the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were less than
30% of the Group’s sales and purchases, respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31st December, 2016.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2016 have been audited by Shu
Lun Pan Union (HK) CPA Limited (“Shu Lun Pan HK”).

Shu Lun Pan HK will retire at the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The Board has resolved,
with the recommendation from Audit Committee, to propose
the appointment of BDO Limited as new independent auditor
of the Group. The proposed appointment is subject to
approval by the Shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

XUE Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st March, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

E3E: +852 2218 3812
{55 +852 2815 1403

TO THE MEMBERS OF POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO.,
LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Poly
Property Group Co., Limited and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 147 to 331, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st
December, 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31st December, 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Tel: +852 2218 3812
Fax: +852 2815 1403
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Room 1609, 16'" Floor,
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
“Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and, in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Revenue recognition from sales of
properties

The Group recognised revenue arising from sales of
properties of HK$28,931,153,000 for the year ended
31st December, 2016.

Revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the
Group which gives rise to an inherent risk that revenue
could be recorded in the incorrect period or subject to
manipulation.

Sales of properties are recognised as revenue at the point
in time when substantial risks and rewards of ownership
of the property are passed to the buyer. Determination of
this point in time is dependent on the contractual
arrangements for a sale, the laws in the relevant
jurisdiction and may require management judgement.

Refer to note 8 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 203.

Our response:

Our procedures involved sampling revenue transactions
for the sales of properties and specifically included:

e obtaining evidence regarding the transfer of
substantial risks and rewards of ownership
(including, where relevant, completion certificates,
occupation permits and acceptance letters);

e  reading the signed sales and purchase agreements
to identify contractual arrangements;

e reconciling the amounts from the ledger and
agreeing the corresponding contracted terms to the
signed sales and purchase agreements; and

e  agreeing the deposits, final payments or mortgage
receipts to bank statements.
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REYFRMLE

(ii) Valuation of investment properties (i)

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group'’s
investment properties to be HK$10,406,785,000 at 31st
December, 2016, with a revaluation gain for the year
ended 31st December, 2016 recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss of HK$116,000.

Estimations of fair value are dependent on certain key
assumptions and unobservable inputs that require
significant management judgement, including
capitalisation rates and market transaction prices for
comparable properties.

Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in fair value of the
Group’s investment properties and the corresponding
adjustments to the gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. As a result, the
financial performance can be greatly affected by the
assumptions and unobservable inputs.

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 179.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of
investment properties included:

e evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of independent external valuers;

e  obtaining external valuation reports and meeting
with external valuers to understand the results of
their work. We assessed and challenged the
valuation methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the significant assumptions,
including market transaction prices for comparable
properties and capitalisation rates. We
benchmarked these assumptions to relevant market
evidence including specific property sales and
other external data; and

e checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used as supporting
evidence.

The significant inputs have been appropriately disclosed
in note 16.
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(iii) Impairment of properties under

development and held for sale

The net carrying amount of the Group’s properties under
development and held for sale as at 31st December,
2016 was HK$73,764,899,000. An impairment loss of
HK$86,207,000 was recognised for the year ended 31st
December, 2016.

Estimations of net realisable value of the Group’s
properties under development and held for sale are
dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant management judgement, including current
schedules of the projects, construction progress by
contractors, estimated costs to completion, intended use
and management’s expectation on future property
market.

Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in change in net realisable
value of the Group's properties under development and
held for sale and the corresponding adjustments to the
impairment recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. As a result, the financial performance can
be greatly affected by the assumptions.

Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 183 and 184.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessments
of the net realisable value of the properties under
development and held for sale included:

e assessing the valuation methodologies used;

e challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions,
specifically including future market value,
estimated costs to completion, intended use and
current market environment, based on our
knowledge of the Group’s business and property
industry; and
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e reconciling, on a sample basis, the input data used
as supporting evidence, such as approved budgets
of the project and most recent transaction prices of
comparable properties in the market, and
considering their reasonableness.

We also assessed the recoverable amount of properties we
deemed at high risk of impairment by reviewing independent
publicly available information, such as property industry
reports for potential impairment triggers. Where the market
environment or estimated costs to completion changed
significantly, we challenged management as to whether this
indicated impairment had occurred.

Other information in the annual report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Directors’ responsibilities for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Shu Lun Pan Union (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Amy Yau Shuk Yuen

Practising Certificate No. P06095

Hong Kong
21st March, 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—B-RFE _ZE—1F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BitEE FTHERT FETT
Revenue W A 8 30,580,326 24,933,367
Cost of sales $HE R AN (25,582,484) (22,064,695)
Gross profit E| 4,997,842 2,868,672
Increase in fair value of investment a7 AN EE
properties 16 116 654,745
Other gains, net H s 358 9 157,148 57,481
Selling expenses HERY (688,183) (845,236)
Administrative expenses THRY (1,404,984) (1,272,734)
Gain on disposal of interest in a HE B A B 2 U zs
subsidiary 53 644,158 -
Impairment loss on properties under 2R RiF{EHEY S
development and held for sale SEER (86,207)  (1,321,390)
Other operating expenses Hi @R (430,176) (306,387)
Finance costs & Bl AN 10 (910,434) (1,091,723)
Share of results of associates N[N = (15,530) (12,835)
Share of results of joint ventures SEEEDEEE (30,529) 33,565
Profit (loss) before income tax expense [ PS54 5 2 gz A (E518) 13 2,233,221 (1,235,842)
Income tax expense ETS R X 14 (2,012,049) (1,536,449)
Profit (loss) for the year FERER (BE) 221,172 (2,772,291)
Attributable to: TFI pEAS -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ Y =N 80,745 (2,817,149)
Holders of perpetual capital KABRIEFEARA
instruments 39 72,325 131,812
Non-controlling interests JEPE IR RE RS 68,102 (86,954)
221,172 (2,772,291)
Earnings (loss) per share FEEF| (EE)
(expressed in HK cents) (BAZEALER) 15
— Basic — HK 2.21 (76.94)

— Diluted — s 2.21 (76.94)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEWER

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—F—NFH+-A=+—HIFE

Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on
translation of financial statements
of foreign operations

Change in fair value of
available-for-sale investments

Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

(Deficit) surplus arising on revaluation
of properties

Other comprehensive income before
tax effect

Deferred tax liability arising on
revaluation of properties

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Holders of perpetual capital
instruments
Non-controlling interests

FraEF (&BR)

HttZ2mEBA

HIE R REEFT 7 IR 2B e i)
EH :

BINEIS 2 SRR R
EEZERER

>

s

b

A RE 2 AT ES

TEEH D REEmMIEER

MEER (BM) B8R

BRETE o2 EYE

FREMEEYES - HRBIR

FREERSEAE

TR
ZA/NCIE7 ZWN
KABARITARFAA

ESRlives £

Notes
B 5T

2016 2015
—E-RF —HRF
HK$/000 HK$'000
FExT FET
221,172 (2,772,291)
(1,285,505)  (1,553,039)
(7,289) (20,282)
(1,292,794)  (1,573,321)
(71,323) 54,785
(1,364,117)  (1,518,536)
17,831 (13,696)
(1,346,286)  (1,532,232)
(1,125,114)  (4,304,523)
(863,300)  (3,931,470)
1,741 71,464
(263,555) (444,517)
(1,125,114)  (4,304,523)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ra IR R

As at 31st December, 2016
R-E—NF+-HA=+—H

2016 2015
—EB-AF —ZT—AF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE FHExT TET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties KEMZE 16 10,406,785 11,095,284
Property, plant and equipment Mm% - BB K& 17 2,016,012 2,118,470
Prepaid lease payments FBEERIE
— non-current portion — EmBIE D 18 316,243 346,172
Goodwill EES 19 - 281,331
Interests in associates NN P 20 246,317 277,064
Interests in joint ventures NEEPHE 7 ERS 21 2,309,944 1,369,744
Available-for-sale investments At HEXRE 28 310,877 116,331
Deposits paid for acquisition of land  WiE L fFREE RS
use rights 22 1,551,551 960,518
Deposits paid for acquisition of WIEMB AR E[Nike
subsidiaries 23 2,471,910 238,095
Deferred tax assets EERIRE B 41 303,786 404,150
Total non-current assets ERBEELTE 19,933,425 17,207,159
Current assets RBEE
Properties under development BRP Y 24 52,859,911 60,504,098
Properties held for sale HiELEYE 24 20,904,988 23,753,872
Other inventories Hiplz & 25 137,808 146,835
Trade and other receivables U B 5 K A BR X 26 4,677,407 3,843,983
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERE
— current portion — REED 18 10,397 10,927
Short-term loan receivables FEWRE BRE X 27 - -
Amounts due from associates g A /N P 20 37,078 329,625
Amounts due from joint ventures FEUE & EFIE 21 2,938,059 3,148,682
Amounts due from non-controlling JE LT Bt BB 2 R FEHE AR AR 3R
shareholders of subsidiaries FQE] 32 542,767 780,518
Taxation recoverable ERdErRE 1,664,408 1,504,280
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER 33 785,305 440,437
Bank balances, deposits and cash RITHET  FREES 33 17,581,484 17,908,117
Total current assets MENVEEARE 102,139,612 112,371,374
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 4R& B & AR S 3%

As at 31st December, 2016
R-E—RF+=-HA=+—H

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Pre-sale deposits

Property rental deposits

Amounts due to joint ventures

Amount due to the ultimate holding
company

Amount due to an intermediate
holding company

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Taxation payable

Bank and other borrowings
— due within one year

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Perpetual capital instruments

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Notes
B 5T

RBEE
FEfTE 5 R EAbBREX 34
BEZRS
MERSES
BN E&E XA 21
A S AR R A RIFRIE
29
JES —E R AR A R 50
30
FANIEE )= PNGIE e 31
FEA-TBf B A R FEEAR AR 3R
A 32
FERIBEIE
RITREMEE
— —F R 35

mERERER

RBEEFE

MEERRBRE

AAAEBEABREERRHE

[N 37
A

RRTER ARGRE

KAERITHR 39
FEIERR A

RERE

2016 2015
—EF-A"% Z—FT-0F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THT
13,953,062 13,594,948
25,723,676 24,423,105
126,120 118,266
672,749 12,450
388,469 22,488
509,304 26,859
825,110 2,468,125
2,161,076 2,903,925
1,543,986 1,626,685
13,398,644 17,805,446
59,302,196 63,002,297
42,837,416 49,369,077
62,770,841 66,576,236
17,685,677 17,685,677
7,011,038 7,874,338
24,696,715 25,560,015
- 1,227,472
2,285,344 2,638,461
26,982,059 29,425,948
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Non-current liabilities
Bank and other borrowings
— due after one year
Notes payable
Loan from a fellow subsidiary
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

FRBEE
RITREMEE

— —FREH
AN
—fEE RZH B R RER
EEHIRRE

FRB A B

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 21st March, 2017.

HAN QINGTAO
3=
USRS
Managing Director

EEESTE

Notes

B &E

35
36
40
41

As at 31st December, 2016
R-E—NF+-_H=+—H

2016 2015
—F-A"% Z—FT-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THT

30,325,635 31,538,386
3,900,000 3,900,000
202,247 214,286
1,360,900 1,497,616

35,788,782 37,150,288

62,770,841 66,576,236

RIZE—tF=-A-+ - HRHEFGHER
RRETIE -

YE LIWEN
EREH

Director

BEFE



BYO'STY6r  19Y'8E9T TPl SI009§°ST  9061068'S (S61'8D) 0'Te 668'90¢ (09€'9€) OSEEE’t  99'288 €811 - 1198921 By
BH—=H=1HT-&Ty 107 "18quada(] 15] ¢ Je duejeq

(r16'¢6) - (716'6) - - - - - - - - - - - 6¢ Suawnisul eydes
YESETYELLRE  (eiediad psipjoy o) woingusig
97157 - 9715 - - - - - - - - - - - 6¢ FTYEYLLE  uawnasul pides jenjadiad o anss)
T51°6v€ 751'6v€ - - - - - - - - - - - - 14 [ENA TN SaLBIPISNS Jo uonisinboy
ot1'62) 6167) - - - - - - - - - - - - ST EfEH  soueiisqns jo uonnjossip uodn aseajey

16981 16981 - - - - - - - - - - - - SIap|oyaIRys
EmEe  Sujonuod-uou Aq uonnguuod fende)

@069 @rOYES - - - - - - - - - - - - By Aueipisqns e jo siapjoyaieys
WU EHE-  Sujoauoruouoipedspuapig
s - - (2z80  rs - - - - - - - - - gL pied spugpini(]
- - - - (v6t'1) - - - - v6y'L1 - - - - Bu JjsUel]
Sep's - - Sev' - - - - - - - - (660'1) vES'8 2L suondo ases Jo as1oiax]
(€eSh0esl  (Lhvh) v9v'LL (o160 (6112187 - £69°¢ - (c8700) - (e6z'szl'l)  9€'sT - - EHTNEThS ol o loj owooul ansuaRido [Bl0]
SIT660E  TOL'BEET  969'966 €060 98'es (618D 19191 668'90¢ 8091) 1091€ 56789 905611 660’1 11911 FHPH-H—3T-&Ty €10 ‘Arenue[ s Je aouefeg

= ANNUAL REPORT 2016

4,

B IR

F—EILFE

—

4

n

Z

A

N

SFE1=

/N

=

Bk

For the year ended 31st December, 2016

=

—F—

]

2

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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SOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
year ended 31st December, 2016

HE—T—NFT_A=+—HIFE

Notes:

(if)

(iii)

Statutory reserves are reserves required by the relevant laws in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and are applicable to the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries.

Included in other capital reserve at 31st December, 2016 is
deemed capital contribution arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
of HK$244,221,000 (2015: HK$244,221,000) and deemed capital
contribution arising from interest-free loans provided by a fellow
subsidiary of HK$62,678,000 (2015: HK$62,678,000).

Other reserve represents the difference between the fair value of
consideration paid and payable and the carrying amount of net
assets attributable to the changes in ownership in the subsidiaries
being acquired or disposed from non-controlling interests without
change of control.

=
ma

kS

Rz

(iii)

CLIE:

SETE R T E AR SRR ([ B 1) 8 -G Ar
HE BERRNAEE 2 B E A e -

RZE—AF+-A=+—8 HtEAXFEEE
FEAR 1E W RS B B8 & R P2 A 1 & 2. 244,221,000
BIL(ZZT— R : 244,221,000 ) & B —
RAENBARIREBIETTEERMELEZHE
262,678,000/ ;L ( =& — A F : 62,678,000/
JT) °

HipfEEREE N RENRERFERENKERE
B IBER TR EEBEARBE ZHER
RERREFEEZFEERBEMRE 2B E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SRERERI R

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—FT—NFH+-A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E-XRE CZIT—AF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt =t FTHERT T
Cash flows from operating activities REKETEHWESRE
Profit (loss) before income tax expense & FT15 %458 2 A& F1| (E518) 2,233,221 (1,235,842)
Adjustments for: MIATIEE ELFE
Bank interest income ;RITH B WA 9 (130,310) (143,623)
Interest income from loans to joint ERTEERETRZ
ventures MEMA 9 (176,721) (245,346)
Interest income from loan to an ERT—RHBERRERZ
associate M BMA 9 (8,299) (1,084)
Dividend income from investments in & 51% & I% B U A
securities 9 (57,512) (2,732)
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading ~ HEHIEEERE 2 e
investments - (309)
Amortisation of prepaid lease #iHIR(SHERIA
payments 10,636 11,156
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - RE REETE
equipment 17 127,905 139,779
Finance costs BB A 10 910,434 1,091,723
Impairment loss on goodwill 2 2R EEE 19 281,331 26,281
Impairment loss on other receivables  FEUH A BR X < R BB E 86,458 20,807
Impairment loss on properties under  ZEREAP MIFEHEYEZ
development and held for sale REEE 24 86,207 1,321,390
Impairment loss on property, plant ME - BEREHEZ
and equipment BIEEE 17 783 2,452
Increase in fair value of investment BEYE 2 N FEEN
properties 16 (116) (654,745)
Loss on disposal of investment HEREYH B8
properties 10,245 8,823
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE &
and equipment R EE 4,333 57,403
Gain on disposal of interest in a HE - B AR#ER
subsidiary g 53 (644,158) -
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries FRERFT B A R 2 18 110 _
Gain on re-measurement of DEERWBEHEHTE M
an associate to acquisition date i YNCIEI &= 420
fair value in step acquisition NFEZ W 52 (21,256) -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—2-R"F ZFHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt st FET FET
Gain on re-measurement of joint DERWEHENTE
ventures to acquisition date fair BECEZWEENZ
value in step acquisition NEEZ W 52 - (32,086)
Reversal of impairment loss B OB 1 3t L A FE AR SR
previously recognised in respect of BHER RIERER
other receivables 9 (3,250) (3,216)
Reversal of impairment loss BEBERERE FHERR
previously recognised in respect of BHER RIERER
trade receivables 9 - (12,133)
Reversal of impairment loss BEBEEREEER
previously recognised in respect of BHER RIERER
short-term loan receivables 9 - (1,019)
Share of results of associates DB E N EEE 15,530 12,835
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEETEES 30,529 (33,565)
Operating profit before working EEESEHB AL BT
capital changes 2,756,100 326,949
Increase in deposits paid for acquisition Yg&& 1 AR B g S
of land use rights 10 22 (1,424,584) -
Decrease in properties under BERAPNFENEYE
development and held for sale > 11,513,332 6,802,475
Decrease (increase) in other inventories E fth 17 & 4> (3840) 795 (1,456)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other  JEUE 5 & H b BR X
receivables (3% 90) m (1,094,117) 510,846
Decrease in short-term loan receivables [f& U 52 21 & FUm - 1,019
Decrease in trade and other payables  FE{SE 5 & HAth
RRFOR (2,599,212)  (6,037,947)
Increase in pre-sale deposits TEEZ SN 1,570,772 4,147,444
Increase in property rental deposits MERERSIENN 13,810 8,425
Cash generated from operations RERBRE 10,736,896 5,757,755
PRC income taxes paid BT TER (2,156,354)  (1,950,730)
Interests paid AT FIE (3,498,183)  (4,116,315)

Net cash generated from (used in) RETFHRE (A RESFEHR
operating activities 5,082,359 (309,290)



Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Purchase of investment properties

Investments in joint ventures

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of
cash acquired

Net cash inflows arising on disposal
of a subsidiary

Net cash outflows arising on
dissolution of subsidiaries

(Increase) decrease in pledged bank
deposits

Bank interest income received

Interest income received from loans
to joint ventures

Interest income received from loan to
an associate

Dividend income received from
investments in securities

Dividend received from a joint
venture

Repayments from joint ventures

Repayments from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Repayments from associates

Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties

Proceeds from disposal of held-for-
trading investments

Payment for purchase of available-
for-sale investments

Deposits paid for acquisition of
subsidiaries

Net cash (used in) generated from
investing activities

RMNBXEEERAR =

—ERREFH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS a8 IR & RE R
For the year ended 31st December, 2016

Notes

B &E

REREEZDNRERS

BEWHE  BERKE
17

BEREME 16
REBTEZRE
BB AR - fIRRE

WA & 52
HE—HNBARIFEEZ
BeRNFE 53
RERNBARMEEZ
WE M FEE

BEIIFIRI TR

(4 hn) 5k

BEURERTTR S A
ERTEEDESDRZ
B B U A
BT —HBE A RER
Bz F 2 A
BESFEERBIA

BEl—HAEEERE

N
(=)

B

DA FRER AR

i B I

LS

g

A =] sm £4
lNCIF R

HEREMEMEHIA

HEREFEBEREMSHIEA

BEAHOERENREA

WEEHB AR NRE

REFESE (FTA) &

REFH

HE—T—NFT_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—F-A"% Z—FT-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THT
(39,261) (80,600)
(737) (779)
(712,689)  (736,686)
374,523 1,718,124
11,411 -
(110) (566)
(344,868) 1,078,794
130,310 143,623
176,721 245,346
8,299 1,084
5,162 2,732
370 341
1,040,824 2,253,089
196,634 261,988
274,028 47,409
55,094 118,005

- 1,176
(154,787) -
(2,247,191) -
(1,226,267) 5,053,080
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &Z&8 B & m ek

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

Cash flows from financing activities
Borrowings raised
Repayments of borrowings
(Redemption) issue of perpetual
capital instruments

Distribution to holders of perpetual

capital instruments

Capital contribution by non-
controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

(Repayments to) advances from
fellow subsidiaries

(Repayments to) advances from
non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

Advance from (repayments to) an
intermediate holding company

Advance from (repayments to) the
ultimate holding company

Advances from joint ventures

Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Dividends paid

Proceeds from exercise of share
options

Net cash used in financing activities

REBMEZDNRERE
HigEE

fEEER
(@) BT KABATR

DIKTKAERTERZAA

fIB A BSEERRIREE

(BRTRREMEBAT)
EES )= FNCIE-E
GERT M E A RIIEEARARR)
(RIEEPNCIE 22 {8 TN

LAt NIk
GERT —HF EEAR R R])
RN BB
(BRTRELIZERAT)
BERRBK
EENEIEPNCIE 2
PR BB
EERE
TTEBIRIES IR

MEEBH AR FR

Notes
B 5T

39

39

49

2016 2015
—EF-A"% Z—FT-0F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THT

26,310,544 21,210,495
(29,583,432) (22,144,720)

(1,123,596) 251,226
(105,617) (93,914)
72,942 18,831
(34,667) 53,893
(668,771) 143,538
480,864 (890,349)
352,257 (389,483)
660,998 2,678
(169,011) (594,048)
- (278,277)
- 7,435

(3,807,489) (2,702,695)



Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year

Represented by bank balances,
deposits and cash

RIEXEEERAA = —Z2-RFFRH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &Z&8 B & m ek

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—F-A"% Z—FT-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FHT FBT
RERERESEINFEE

48,603 2,041,095

FAzRERERESE
17,908,117 16,236,973

EXgsHReRER
HeEogeE (375,236) (369,951)

FRZBESREFRES

17,581,484 17,908,117

RIRTTHETT - FRkRE
17,581,484 17,908,117
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R AR MR

For the year ended 31st December, 2016

HE—

1.

TNt A —FL R
General

Poly Property Group Co., Limited (“the Company”) is a
public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are engaged in
property development, property investment and
management, hotel operations and its related services,
securities investment and construction services. The
principal activities of principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 50.

The directors consider the Company’s immediate
holding company is Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited
(“Poly Holdings”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The ultimate holding company is China Poly
Group Corporation (“China Poly”), a state-owned
enterprise established in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). China Poly and its affiliated companies,
other than members of the Group, are hereinafter
collectively referred to as China Poly Group.

—REHR

FEMEXEBERAE ([ARA]) DES
BEMKLZ ARERAT - EBRMOHES
BBERZAERAR ([BFr]) £ e
ARRB 2 MR B 22 F i E
BRERFR [ AFER] —8HA -

KABRREZER AR - BB AR (5
BIASEDKEMEER MERER
B OBELEREABRE  BHFKRE
NBERE - TEMB AT EBEBKEH
B EE 50 ©

EZRA/NDR 2 ERER AR AR (F
B)IEBRARA R (RFZER]) - ZAF]
R—RAEZTEEMKILZ AR o R
RAAFERMNEBAE (T BEEFRHN]) -
ZAR R —HERPEARKAMBE([HE])
R 2BBERE BAKEZKE R T
S R BRI B ELBE SR ) R LA TS 478 5
FREIRMER -
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2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1st January, 2016

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in
Joint Operations

The initial adoption of these amendments to

HKFRSs does not have a material effect on the

Group's results and financial position.

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

RaBREMBRELEDN(TEHR
g EEA )

(@) EREAHE]RIETEEBHE

HREERA - —F-—XK<F—A
—HEBER

FEVBHE T _FF
EH(BFTAR) Z—T—HFEH

FREE
BEGRTER WEAE

F1IRUBETA)

EASFER  BBEWEREHEZ
F16HEE CEZE 0
385k (1851 A)

ERMBHRE WESEEBER
ERIZE 1158 TR
(fE5TA)

BREMAZEZB BV B RELEE
AIABASEZ R8P BHARRL
BEATE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s
current intention is to apply these changes on the
date they become effective.

Amendments to Statement of cash flows:
HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'
Amendments to Income taxes: Recognition
HKAS 12 of Deferred Tax Assets

for Unrealised Losses'

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?
Amendments to Revenue from Contracts
HKFRS 15 with Customers
(Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)?
HKFRS 16 Leases®
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of
HKFRS 10 and Assets between an
HKAS 28 Investor and its

Associate or Joint
Venture*

PR ER AR MY RE

RABRBMBRELEN(TEHR
BH|EER D (E)

(b) T MEME I RERRH

Al RETTERMBEREE
2l

T OB MR AR LRI
15 5T B BT R 1R AT g AR 4
EOHBREER MAEELE
IRPREM - AEE B AEN LKA
HEAZSED -

BRG] RemER
F7HRUERTA) WERE)

e aedl PRIS®E : 5L
F12RUERTA) KREBREBR

TERIEER I8
BE
EEYHBRELEL £mMmT A2
F 958
ERBVHEREER KERFEYH
155 Y A2

FEMBHERER REFFAL
F15HRUERTA) WA (FE

MRS mE

AERIZE 1558

2BE)?
BBV EREER FHE

F 165

BRMIEMEED KEEHEBKE
F10HKNES RAEELHE
SEIERIE 285 ZHEHNEE
(BFTA) HESEE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2. HRMEBEBMBHREER (FE
MH|EER D (E)

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BHEME = RAEKAIH

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2019

4 The amendments were originally intended to be

effective for periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2016. The effective date has now been deferred/
removed. Early application of the amendments
continue to be permitted.

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Statement of

cash flows: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional
disclosure that will enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities.

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Income taxes:
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of
deferred tax assets and clarify some of the
necessary considerations, including how to
account for deferred tax assets related to debt
instruments measured of fair value.

A RIETT R R BREE

Al(%&)

C RSB —tE—A—ERHERHZ
R

: RSB N\F—A—BSHEES
I
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R#ZFER] °
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BRERBR : KBTS

ZEER S E—RAI S M RKE
REFERELZDABSREZDHN
HIKE o

BEBEFENFE 125 (BT
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2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are
generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow
characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
if the objective of the entity’s business model is
both to hold and collect the contractual cash flows
and to sell the financial assets. Entities may make
an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
measure equity instruments that are not held for
trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at
FVTPL replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS
39 and new general hedge accounting
requirements to allow entities to better reflect their
risk management activities in financial statements.

VPN

=]

2.

PR ER AR MY RE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2. HRMEBEBMBHREER (FE
MH|EER D (E)

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BHEME = RAEKAIH

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, where the
amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

A RIETT R R BREE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2. BRMNERBMBHREER (FE
BH|EER D (E)

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BHEME = R4 KAHT

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)
HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Continued)
HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

e Step1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer
e Step2: Identify the performance

obligations in the contract
e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step4:  Allocate the transaction price to
each performance obligation

e Step5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and
quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue
from Contracts with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included
clarifications on identification of performance
obligations; application of principal versus agent;
licenses of intellectual property; and transition
requirements.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2. HRMEBEBMBHREER (FE
MH|EER D (E)

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BHEME = RAEKAIH

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16,
a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation
to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use
asset and interest on the lease liability, and also
classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into
a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also,
the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are
initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease
payments and also includes payments to be made
in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or
not to exercise an option to terminate the lease.
This accounting treatment is significantly different
from the lessee accounting for leases that are
classified as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases
or finance leases, and to account for those two
types of leases differently.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 —
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or
losses to be recognised when an entity sells or
contributes assets to its associate or joint venture.
When the transaction involves a business the gain
or loss is recognised in full, conversely when the
transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business the gain or loss is recognised only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the
joint venture or associate.

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of adopting the above Standards and
amendments to existing Standards to the Group.
The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
financial statements.
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3. Basis of preparation

(@)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the provisions of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), which concern
the preparation of financial statements. In addition,
the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
investment properties, hotel properties and
available-for-sale investments, which are measured
at their fair values or revalued amounts, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$’000”), unless otherwise stated.

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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4. Significant accounting policies

(@)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st December, 2016 comprise the financial
statements of the Company and the Group and the
Group’s interests in associates and joint ventures.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the date that control
commenced or up to the date that control ceased.
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at that date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
an interests in associates or joint ventures or other
investments.

(@)

(b)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

4. FTEESTBERE)

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) MELEIRIFERER ()

(b) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interest is
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity
attributed to owners of the Company.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by the
Group.

Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of impairment on the asset transferred, in which
case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity or
deficiency in a subsidiary not attributable directly
or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

(0)

interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners
of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any.

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations from 1st January,
2010

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred
and equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. For each business combination, the
acquirer measures the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Acquisition costs are expensed as
incurred.

VPN

=]

4.

PR ER AR MY RE

TESHEEE)

(b)

()

MBS~ B R IR (5)

i Em BARREA ARG
@mOFRE - 2IREAEFHRR
RABZA T - AEBEERNZIE
7 M 25 RIVE R AN 2 B SR PR AR 1
SmEEAAZHED K ZFREML
BERARIEZHRGSEE REE
BaiXkEezEBERAZS -
FEBEEEFAEAZERRAZSF
FEAREZEMEHNEERES
MHIRAREI REREE -

EARRB ZMBIRRAERA - HER
Al RETIRKAEREREREE
(B HEk

EBRasREE
R-Z2-ZFF-—A—HBz%E
BE bt
EBEHIRABKBERE - B
HREDIZKE A2 A ERE
SN FEDEASEESEET T
BENEE FAENEBENME
TTHRAEZNIKE BN A FE
M REBREHEHME - K
BIRAFESRBRETO R
BEEFEMN RGO EREE
JTRISEIE s o WIBRATEEL
FRF S2 3



RIEXEEERAA = —Z2-RFFRH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 BT 8 R &R iz

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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4. FTEESTBERE)

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(0 EBEHREE(E)

(c) Business combinations and goodwiill

(Continued)
Business combinations from 1st January,
2010 (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at the acquisition-date
fair value. Subsequent changes to the fair value of
the contingent consideration which is deemed to
be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, it shall not be
remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the
excess of (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and any fair
value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over (ii) the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date. When (ii) is
greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016

HE—F
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c) Business combinations and goodwiill

(Continued)
Business combinations from 1st January,
2010 (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31st December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill arising on a business combination
is allocated to each cash-generating units, or group
of cash-generating units that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

4. FTEESTBERE)

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(0 EBEHREE(E)

(c) Business combinations and goodwiill

(Continued)
Business combinations from 1st January,
2010 (Continued)

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of
the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this
circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.

Business combinations prior to 1st January,
2010 but after 1st January, 2005

In comparison to the above-mentioned
requirements which were applied on a prospective
basis, the following differences applied to business
combinations prior to 1st January, 2010:

Business combinations were accounted for using
the purchase method. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition formed part of the
acquisition costs. The non-controlling interests
were measured at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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4. FTEEFBER(E)

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(0 EHREHREE(E)

(c) Business combinations and goodwiill

(Continued)
Business combinations prior to 1st January,
2010 but after 1st January, 2005 (Continued)

Business combinations achieved in stages were
accounted for as separate steps. Any additional
acquired share of interest did not affect previously
recognised goodwill.

When the Group acquired a business, embedded
derivatives separated from the host contract by the
acquiree were not reassessed on acquisition unless
the business combination resulted in a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modified
the cash flows that otherwise would have been
required under the contract.

Contingent consideration was recognised if, and
only if, the Group had a present obligation, the
economic outflow was more likely than not and a
reliable estimate was determinable. Subsequent
adjustments to the contingent consideration were
recognised as part of goodwill.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
BE=—F A F+-A=+—HIFZE

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(d) Associates and joint ventures Hﬁ‘% ’Z\\ 7 &AMAi

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post-acquisition change in the
Group'’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment. Any
acquisition-date fair value excess over cost, the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses
for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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==
g)

4. Significant accounting policies 4. TESFBER(
(Continued)

(d) Associates and joint ventures d) BEQARRESELE(E)

(Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group'’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued. For this purpose,
the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a
joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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4. FTEESTBERE)

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e) WEM=

(e) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include properties that are being constructed
or developed for future use as investment
properties.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at
their fair values using the fair value model. Any
gain or loss arising from a change in fair value of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which the asset is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
and leasehold land held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, other than hotel properties and
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief
provided by paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “Property,
Plant and Equipment” from the requirement to
make regular revaluations of the Group’s buildings
which had been carried at revalued amounts prior
to 30th September, 1995, and accordingly no
further revaluation of land and buildings is carried
out. Prior to 30th September, 1995, the revaluation
increase arising on the revaluation of these assets
was credited to the revaluation reserve. Any future
decreases in value of these assets will be dealt with
as an expense to the extent that they exceed the
balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve relating
to a previous revaluation of the same asset. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset,
the corresponding revaluation surplus is transferred
to accumulated profits.

Hotel properties are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their revalued
amounts, being their fair value at the date of the
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(M)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amounts of
these assets do not differ materially from that which
would be determined using fair values at the end of
the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation
of hotel properties is generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and accumulated as a
separate component of equity (hotel properties
revaluation reserve), except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised as an expense, in which case
the increase is credited to profit or loss to the
extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on the
revaluation of such buildings is dealt with as an
expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if
any, held on the hotel properties revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset.

Depreciation on revalued hotel properties is
charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued hotel property, the
attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the
hotel properties revaluation reserve is transferred
directly to accumulated profits.

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful
lives.

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment in the course of construction for
production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in
profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(8)

(h)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases are recognised
in the profit or loss on a straight- line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss using a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised in profit or loss as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term
using a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land
and building are considered separately for the
purpose of lease classification, unless the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, in which case, the
entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease
and account for as property, plant and equipment.

Properties under development
Properties under development developed for future
sale in the ordinary course of business are included
in current assets at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. It comprises the consideration for
development expenditure (which includes cost of
land use rights, construction costs and capitalised
interest) directly contributable to the development
of the properties.

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

()

(k)

Properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Other inventories

Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of
an asset or a group of assets, where the customer is
able to specify the major structural elements of the
design. The accounting policy for contract revenue
is set out under “Revenue recognition”. Where the
outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period, as
measured by (a) the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date to the
estimated total contract costs or (b) the amount of
work certified by independent engineer with
reference to the completion of physical proportion
of contract work. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the
extent that they have been agreed with the
customer. When it is probable that total contract
costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately. Where the outcome of a construction
contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(k) Construction contracts (Continued)

(M

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of
costs incurred plus recognised profit less
recognised losses and progress billings, and are
presented in the statement of financial position as
the “Gross amount due from customers for contract
work” (as an asset) or the “Gross amount due to
customers for contract work” (as a liability), as
applicable. Progress billings not yet paid by the
customer are included under “Trade and other
receivables”. Amounts received before the related
work is performed are presented as “Advances
received” under “Trade and other payables”.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits held at call with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidation statement of cash
flows.

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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4. FTEEFBER(E)

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) €@MIT A

(m) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one
of the two categories, including loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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4. FTEESTBERE)

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) €M I A (&)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At the end of each
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, short-term loan receivables, amounts
due from subsidiaries, associates, fellow
subsidiaries, joint ventures, non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, pledged bank deposits
and bank balance, deposits and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses. (See
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are designated as available for sale
or not classified as loans and receivables.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated as a separate component
of equity (investment revaluation reserve), until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in equity is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m

) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

(Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do
not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.
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4. FTEESTBERE)

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

(m) €M I A (&)

Financial assets (Continued) TREE (&)
Impairment of financial assets TRIEEZRE

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
that investment below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;
or

e significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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4. FTEEFBER(E)

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) €M T A (&)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables and short-term loan receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments of trade
receivables in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 30 to 90 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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4. FTEESTBERE)

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

(m) €M I A (&)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables and loan receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable or a loan
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or loss in
subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.
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4. FTEEFBER(E)

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment losses other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill

above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. In
addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that
standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another standard, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase under that
standard.
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4. FTEESTBERE)

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) €T A (&)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group's financial
liabilities are generally classified as other financial
liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, property rental deposits, amounts due to
subsidiaries, the ultimate holding company, an
intermediate holding company, fellow subsidiaries,
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, joint
ventures, bank and other borrowings, notes
payable and loan from a fellow subsidiary are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

TREERKRE
SEERRTZ B ENREET
ADNRBAFTANREZEERS
MEEMKETAZERZDHE -

BRETADERSERINBEME A
BRRNEERERSERZEMA
e AEEZERAE—RIER
Hpe@AlE -

BN =X
ERNBEDFESRE B2 HH
RARIZERBREES N EH 2
ke BERMERTDFETFRRRSE
X FER e A B2 R F 8 (3K
SER 2 BUL AR BRI 2 LK o

MEXHTIRERF REAERER o

HitEma s

HeRBESHEENES REM
R MEEHSRE  BAWEBR
Al « BRAREIRRE] - FEERRAR]
BESIEPNCIRN )-MNCIE 2235 3
REAECEREA  RITLEME
E ENEBEEKRERZRMERE
ZEXR  HRERERMN R KRS



POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 424 B i& SRR iz
For the year ended 31st December, 2016

HE—F

—NF+ZA=+—HIEFE

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m

) Financial instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue cost.

Perpetual capital instruments issued by the Group,
which includes no contractual obligation for the
Group to deliver cash or another financial asset to
the holders or to exchange financial assets or
financial liabilities with the holders under
conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the
Group, are classified as equity instruments and are
initially recorded at the proceeds received.
Discretionary distribution declared by the Group to
the holders of perpetual capital instrument is
treated as dividend.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(n) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Retirement benefits scheme

contributions

Payments to Group’s defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged as
expenses when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
Payments made to state-managed retirement
benefits schemes are dealt with as payments
to defined contribution schemes where the
Group’s obligations under the schemes are
equivalent to those arising in a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme.

Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions

The fair value of services received determined
by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to
share capital. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to accumulated profits.

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(o) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arises from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

4.

TESHEEE)

) FREH
F 72 B8 B2 35 BN BB IR RIESE
HREAERAEZEE -

BB R EEREEERABEZ
BHINEENER  RIEEHEIE
BEETEMEPEREEETER
WRZEEEMB RUBLEBH
EoRREMEE NS EERE
TR o

ENEARE IR R TR ERZA ol &F MIE AR T UK
A ZHIEA - ThER AR #®E R
ERMREERMHEAE A
RBEFERN 2 HBRELHAE -

BEERIBEEMBED BB HOH
MERREKREEELE TRHER
TREENMBEEMBRE LN
AEEELEEENMBENHENE

EEFIEE E I A LA R FE A
BB M REABIEERELE -



RIEXEEERAA = —Z2-RFFRH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 BT 8 R &R iz

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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4. FTEESTBERE)

4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

) FrE®i(i8)

(o) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deducible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries, and interests in
associates and joint ventures, to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(o) Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on
sale of those assets at their carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale. In all other cases,
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(o) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

o in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

e in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

e the same taxable entity; or

. different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for
a loss the holder incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
(being the transaction price, unless the fair
value can otherwise be reliably estimated) is
initially recognised as deferred income within
trade and other payables. The fair value of
financial guarantees issued at the time of
issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services, when such information is
obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders
when the guarantee is made available with
the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such
Where
consideration is received or receivable for the

information can be made.

issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, except for the case of the
guarantee issued by the Company to its
subsidiary in which the fair value of such
guarantee is recognised as an additional cost
of investment in a subsidiary, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

(Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in
profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as
income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised if and
when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group
under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade
and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities assumed in

business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised
at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial
recognition at fair value, such contingent
liabilities are recognised at the higher of the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the
amount that would be determined in
accordance with (iii) below. Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
that cannot be reliably fair valued or were not
present obligations at the date of acquisition
are disclosed in accordance with (iii) below.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions

and contingent liabilities (Continued)
(iii) Other provisions and contingent

liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts received or receivable from sales of
properties and goods, hotel operations,
investments, services provided and subsidies
received or receivable, net of discounts and sales
related taxes. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as
follows:

a)  Revenue arising from the sales of properties is
recognised upon the execution of a binding
sale agreement, the issue of an occupation
permit and a completion certificate by the
relevant government authorities and fulfilling
the terms of the binding sale agreements,
which is taken to be the point in time when
the risks and rewards of ownership of the
property have passed to the buyer. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold
prior to date of revenue recognition are
included in the statement of financial position
under pre-sale deposits.

b)  Revenue from sales of goods are recognised
when goods are delivered at customers’
premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the
goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Revenue recognition (Continued)

c)

Building management service income is
recognised over the relevant period in which
the services are rendered.

Revenue from hotel operations and related
services is recognised when the relevant
services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised as it accrues on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the Group’s rights to receive
payment is established.

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably, construction
revenue is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference
to (a) the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date to
estimated total contract cost or (b) the amount
of work certified by independent engineer
with reference to the completion of physical
proportion of the contract work. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred that it
is probable will be recoverable.
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(r)

Translation of foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the statement of financial position
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in
equity, in which cases, the exchange differences
are also recognised directly in equity.
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies

(Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated as a separate component
of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed
of.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.
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4. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(s)

()

Borrowing costs (Continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over
the periods necessary to match them with the
related costs. Grants related to depreciable assets
are presented as a deduction from the carrying
amount of the relevant asset and are released to
income over the useful lives of the assets. Grants
related to expense items are recognised in the same
period as those expenses are charged in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and are
reported separately as other income.

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE
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4. Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(u) Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

4.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
BE=—F A F+-A=+—HIFZE

4. Significant accounting policies 4. FTESFHBEE)
(Continued)
(u) Related parties (Continued) (uy BEAL(E)
(b)  (Continued) by (#&)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly (i) ZERBAEB@QKEMMER
controlled by a person identified in (a); Z AT sk E Rz

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has (vii) (@)(i) D E&FTIg 2 A L¥7%
significant influence over the entity or is ERBRBEEAXESN  HZ
a member of the key management }\i%éxﬁgi’(iéifﬁ%
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of RANZEEERBAR
the entity); and &

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of (viii) BB EBEAEBEM
which it is a part, provides key KERAREFR—FHomEAR
management personnel services to the £E _}Z$’EIE’]! Gk
Group or to the Group’s parent. HFE2EBEABRS -

Close members of the family of a person are those BS—AALTHERHREBEKERES

family members who may be expected to BATHEHREERFHE - ?EHHT%

influence, or be influenced by, that person in their BYXZATEENTREBEXE -

dealings with the entity and include: ¥

(i)  that person’s children and spouse of domestic iy ZATHTFLZEEBERNEBAZ
partner; Ao/

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic (i) ZATEESXBEAEBEAZT
partner; and 7R

(ili) dependents of that person or that person’s (iiiy ZALT ERBxIBEBAGEA

spouse or domestic partner. ZEERE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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Critical accounting judgements and key
sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

5.
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Critical accounting judgements and key
sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated net realisable value of properties

under development and held for sale
Management reviews the net realisable value of the
Group's properties under development and held for sale
with reference to its estimated costs to completion,
intended use and current market environment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds its net realisable
value. Appropriate write-off to estimated net realisable
value is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining whether write-off of properties under
development and held for sale is required, the Group
takes into consideration the intended use of the
properties, the estimated costs to completion, the current
market environment, the estimated market value of the
properties and/or the present value of future cash flows
expected to receive. Write-off is recognised based on the
higher of estimated future cash flows and estimated
market value. If the market environment/circumstances
or estimated costs to completion changes significantly,
resulting in a decrease in the net realisable value of these
properties interest, additional write-off loss may be
required. As at 31st December, 2016, the carrying
amounts of properties under development and held for
sale are HK$73,764,899,000 (2015: HK$84,257,970,000)
(net of accumulated impairment loss of HK$929,964,000
(2015: HK$1,491,650,000)).

5.

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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5. RS HE RS THAMBE

5. Critical accounting judgements and key

sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of short-term loan

receivables and other receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31st December, 2016, the carrying amounts of short-
term loan receivables and other receivables are HK$Nil
(2015: HKS$Nil) (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$25,121,000 (2015: HK$25,121,000)) and
HK$4,313,068,000 (2015: HK$3,196,396,000) (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$122,482,000 (2015:
HK$43,592,000)), respectively. More details are given in
notes 26 and 27.

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

Investment properties were revalued as at 31st
December, 2016 based on the appraised market value
by independent professional valuer. Such valuations
were based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual
results. In making the estimate, the Group considers
information from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period.

E2EFERF(GE)

BUEHER R 2R AR 2
e

REEREEEREFEZREZER
AEBZEEGEFTZARBSRE - RES
BIhREEZ RABERGTAKRERE
BE(TEENRBEENRKEESE)H
ZERBHE MBBReRERBEINS
BEEZ REEFE (AL EREAR
a‘l‘ BERFR)MBEL - WERRR

BenSENRTER @ AR EEERNRE
EiE R ZE—XRF+_HA=1+—"8" &
uﬁz%ﬁ;ﬁfﬂm&ﬁtmﬂﬁzﬁﬁ K2 BREES B
BEBET(ZT—RF : THT) KRR
iR & 1%25/121/000,% T(ZFE—HRF:
25,121,000 7T )) 5 4,313,068,000 7% 7T
(ZZ—H%F :3,196,396,0008 7T) (kR
RIRBEH122,482,000/8 L (—E—F4F :
43,592,000%7C)) © FFIEE R M 5E26 &
27 ©

ETREMER 2 A FE

REMENR_T—R"Ft+_-_HA=1+—HH
BYEXRGEMZEFELTEETE
- BRAMEDREES TRZET  WE
RNETAEER  WARESEERER
BERER - WELEFE - AKEEE
EREMSHRUMEZRTME @ WE
REERBEEREPRZTRIEH 2 RER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 &

Critical accounting judgements and key
sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment

properties (Continued)

The fair value measurement utilises market observable
inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in
determining fair value measurements are categorised
into different levels based on how observable the inputs
used in the valuation technique utilised are (the “fair
value hierarchy”):

e Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

e Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

. Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived

from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised in
the period they occur.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of
the fair value include those related to current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates, expected future
market rents and future maintenance costs. The carrying
amount of investment properties at 31st December, 2016
was HK$10,406,785,000 (2015: HK$11,095,284,000).
More details are given in note 16.

5.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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Critical accounting judgements and key
sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discounted rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The carrying
amount of goodwill at 31st December, 2016 was HK$Nil
(2015: HK$281,331,000). More details are given in note
19.

PRC enterprise income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Mainland
China. As a result of the fact that certain matters relating
to the income taxes have not been confirmed by the
local tax bureau, objective estimate and judgement
based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and
other related policies are required in determining the
provision of income taxes to be made. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will have
impact on the income tax and tax provisions in the
period in which the differences realise.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in Mainland China. The
provision of LAT is based on management’s best
estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the
determination by the tax authorities upon the completion
of the property development projects. The Group has not
finalised its LAT calculation and payments with the tax
authorities for its certain property development projects.
The final outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded.

5.
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Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to owners of the Company
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 35 and
36, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and accumulated profits, perpetual capital
instruments and non-controlling interests.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review,
the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total bank and other borrowings
plus notes payable less bank balances, deposits and
cash. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position, plus net
debt.

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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6. Capital risk management (Continued) 6. EXREREE (&)

The gearing ratios at 31st December, 2016 and 2015

were as follows:

Total bank and other borrowings
(note 35)
Notes payable (note 36)
Less: Bank balances, deposits and cash

Net debt

Total equity

Total capital

Gearing ratio

R-EBE—RNER_E—AF+_A=1+—

AzEEARBLRENT
2016 2015
—EB-A"% ZFThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&T FAETT

SRITREAMEE 2R (HI5E35)

43,724,279 49,343,832
FES 4% (B3 36) 3,900,000 3,900,000
B RITET TR kEE (17,581,484) (17,908,117)
Bi% 558 30,042,795 35,335,715
% 1 42 K8 26,982,059 29,425,948
BB 57,024,854 64,761,663
BEAEBELX 53% 55%
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

ERMTERVHEREE

7. Financial instruments and financial risk 7.
management

@) ERIESHE
TERRNEGHEENEBBNIREE :

(@) Categories of financial instruments
The following table shows the carrying amount of
financial assets and liabilities:

2016 2015
ZEB-RF —_T-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Financial assets tREE
Loans and receivables B R EWARR
— Trade and other receivables — FEWE 5 Rk H AR 4,448,030 3,471,755
— Amounts due from associates — FEUNES & R Ak IE 37,078 329,625
— Amounts due from joint ventures — — JEULE &b FRIB 2,938,059 3,148,682
— Amounts due from — KB A RIFEZERR IR
non-controlling shareholders EE 0
of subsidiaries 542,767 780,518
— Pledged bank deposits — 2HEMRITER 785,305 440,437
— Bank balances, deposits — RITETF  ERERE
and cash 17,581,484 17,908,117
Available-for-sale investments aHEERE 310,877 116,331
Financial liabilities EA= =N
Amortised cost BEIHRR
— Trade and other payables — BN E S M AR 13,899,985 13,520,051
— Property rental deposits —YFEHERS 126,120 118,266
— Amounts due to joint ventures — ENEERERE 672,749 12,450
— Amount due to the ultimate — R &&ER A RIRIA
holding company 388,469 22,488
— Amount due to an intermediate — BB —EHEER A A
holding company B 509,304 26,859
— Amounts due to fellow — ENREZMEB R EFIE
subsidiaries 825,110 2,468,125
— Amounts due to — BB A R JEERR AR
non-controlling shareholders RIA
of subsidiaries 2,161,076 2,903,925
— Bank and other borrowings — RITREMEE 43,724,279 49,343,832
— Notes payable — ENRIE 3,900,000 3,900,000
— Loan from a fellow subsidiary — —HRRMBARIER 202,247 214,286
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7. Financial instruments and financial risk
management (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies

Exposure to market risks (currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign currency rates,
interest rates and equity security prices. Market risk
exposures are further measured by sensitivity
analysis. There has been no significant change to
the Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner
in which it manages and measures the risk. Details
of each type of market risks are described as
follows:

(i) Currency risk

The Group’s revenue are mostly denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”), however, the Group
also undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence
exposures to currency risk. In addition, the
currency risk also arises from funding to its
subsidiaries in the PRC. These loans to its
subsidiaries are normally denominated in
RMB while the sources of funding are usually
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars (“US$”).
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7. Financial instruments and financial risk
management (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Since Hong Kong dollars is being pegged to
US$, material fluctuations in exchange rates
of Hong Kong dollars against US$ are remote.

The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management
manages its currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rate and consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

The following table details the Group's
exposure as at 31st December, 2016 that the
currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency and US$ of the
entity to which they relate.

Bank balances, deposits and cash
Short-term loans to subsidiaries

Gross exposure arising from

[\ A

recognised assets

RITHERF - 55
BTHBARZEHER

7. E@MTAER
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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¥ EREE(E)

MEEREEEERBE

(#8)

miEER (&)

(i) BE¥Ek(E)
RRAITEETES - BTK

K IR &

B R é?ﬁﬁ?iz
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2016 2015
—REE —RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EFR AREFTT
11,501 50,421
7,448,665 8,356,487
7,460,166 8,406,908
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HE—F

7.

—NF+ZA=+—HIEFE

Financial instruments and financial risk
management (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group’s profit after tax and
accumulated profits that would arise if foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the
reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. The sensitivity analysis assumes that
the change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the end
of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the

7. TRTARMBRBRER ()

MBRREEEERBE
(&)
s E R (8)

(iy BE¥WERE)
TR IR fisd A< 52 B 10 ¥ 5 HA R
T 35 B KL i O S B B SR 7%
BHIREEE - NEBERBIE
mf‘J&%ﬁrm?‘JZﬁEﬂ’]m (&
R P A E At B B B R T
) - REDIMINRERINEE
B RANEGAEE R R
HHRE A L EEINER R
TRITA @?E$EIWEB“
&) [ FE 5 3R IR M B MR
,TAIELMEE&TEE’JDM““
%QI\E’JTV%EJ{E

lender or the borrower.

Renminbi

2016
ZE-AE
Increase
(decrease) in
Appreciation  profits after

(depreciation) tax and

2015
—_E-RF
Increase
(decrease) in
Appreciation profits after

(depreciation) tax and

in foreign  accumulated in foreign  accumulated

exchange rate profits exchange rate profits

PR & 3 A BRI 1R ) A

SINEER RRIHER SNESEER R R A

FE(RE) #WORD>) HEGEE)  EmCED)

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET THET

AR 5% 419,110 5% 500,411
(5%) (419,110) (5%) (500,411)
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7. Financial instruments and financial risk
management (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(if)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to pledged bank deposits,
fixed-rate bank and other borrowings and
notes payable (see notes 33, 35 and 36 for
details of these deposits, borrowings and
notes). The Group aims at keeping
borrowings at variable rates. Currently, the
Group does not have hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need
arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note. The
Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of LIBOR and
benchmark rate in the PRC arising from the
Group’s US$ and RMB borrowings.
Benchmark rate is the prevailing benchmark
lending interest rate promulgated by People’s
Bank of China being 4.35% (2015: ranging
from 4.35% to 5.5%) per annum (the
“benchmark”).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to amounts due
from (to) related parties with variable interest
rates, bank balances and variable-rate bank
and other borrowings (see notes 20, 21, 29,
30, 31, 32, 33 and 35 for details of these
balances, bank balances and borrowings). It
is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings
at floating rate of interests so as to minimise
the cash flows interest rate risk.

7. T@MIT A

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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7.

Financial instruments and financial risk
management (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(if)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for both derivatives and non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of asset and liability outstanding at the end of
the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group'’s profit for the year
ended 31st December, 2016 would decrease/
increase by HK$28,878,000 (2015:
HK$46,198,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank and other borrowings and
bank balances.

7. TRTARMBRBRER ()

(b) MBREREEEERBE

(%)
mis

(if)

Bk (&)

M=k (8)

AT BRE D TIERITE R
FTETARNBEHRZ AR
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
BE=—F A F+-A=+—HIFZE

7. Financial instruments and financial risk 7. TRITEARMERBREE(E)
management (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MBREREEBEERBE
and policies (Continued) (#8)
Market risk (Continued) mig AR (8)
(iii) Other price risk (i) HtERERE

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from its investment in listed available-
for-sale investments. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks.
The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on listed equity instruments
quoted in the Stock Exchange. In addition,
the Group has appointed a special team to
monitor the price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 5% higher/lower:

Investment valuation reserve would increase/
decrease by HK$1,474,000 (2015: increase/
decrease by HK$1,838,000) for the Group as
a result of the changes in fair value of listed
available-for-sale investments.

AREBEFIKER LA H Hj’%
18 & T [ e A (B A5 LR

EE#FAEETRRER Z&é
HENEEZEFRER - NEHE
ZEEERRARERSETRAE
BRFHmE EMEETR -
BESh - NEEE R IK B B
EmERER  YHNEHFE
R 25 S AT e 2 LR

SRR E DT
ATERED N THER RS H
RPTE e < (B EREEE

WERETAEZE®REA T
[&5% :

REBZEEGBERKEGIE
/WA 1,474,000 T(—F
— R 380,84 1,838,000
BIT) EEE?EAL?U_—H HER
B2 NFEEES
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HE—F

—NF+ZA=+—HIEFE

7. Financial instruments and financial risk
management (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Credit risk

As at 31st December, 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks with
high credit ratings, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk.
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Financial instruments and financial risk
management (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group has net current assets amounting to
approximately HK$42,837,416,000 at 31st
December, 2016.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank and
other borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings as
a significant source of liquidity. As at 31st
December, 2016, the Group has available
unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$9,356,170,000 (2015: HK$10,548,550,000).
Details of which are set out in note 35.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.

7. T@MIT A

(b)

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

K b I (48)

mEEEREEERBER

(&)
RBE =R

NZE—RE+A=+—8 K
SEBHBERY EEFED
42,837,416,000 7 TT, °

REERBESRARTE  A&E
ERkgFRehERRENEE
BRRFERZKT  UXNHARE
LEME WRERSRENDZ
TE BEEBYERRITLEAME
BEZR%  UEERTEERRNZ
M °

REBEBRITREMEEERE
ERBESRRE - RZTE—XRF
+TZA=1T—08 AEBZKRHH
IRITERRLE A#99,356,170,000 %
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7. Financial instruments and financial risk 7. SRTEARHERAKRESE (8)
management (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BrFS5EPREE B RREE
and policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRRE(E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables MEES R FZEBR
Weighted
average  On demand or Total
effective less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-5years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
mE¥H BRRY AfFRRE

BBRIE IR-F —ELfF BENE iy R
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TER TiEn TR TER

2016 25
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ #¥74 ¢ HEE
Trade and other payables ERESREMER 13,899,985 - - 13,899,985 13,899,985
Property rental deposits NERERS 126,120 - - 126,120 126,120
Amount due to the ultimate holding B &AERA AIFE

company

— interest-free — A58 21,160 - - 21,160 21,160

— variable rate — SR 4.64% 377,951 - - 377,951 367,309
Amount due to an intermediate e —RRRER A AR

holding company

— Interest-free — iR 6,228 - - 6,228 6,228

— fixed rate —EEFIR 5.5% 413,446 - - 413,446 399,706

— variable rate — FEH% 5.35% 106,827 - - 106,827 103,370
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  JEfTFI ZHIB A FZUE

— Interest-free —THR 622,863 - - 622,863 622,863

— variable rate — FEH% 7.27% 211,437 - - 211,437 202,247
Amounts due to non-controlling ‘Hﬁ% ]

shareholders of subsidiaries El31 Hxﬂxim

— Interest-free — A8 557,957 - - 557,957 557,957

— fixed rate —EEf= 6.24% 668,493 - - 668,493 643,398

— variable rate — BB 5.02% 989,816 - - 989,816 959,721
Amounts due to joint ventures EHAELENE

— Interest-free —T&t 8 672,749 - - 672,749 672,749
Bank and other borrowings BITREMEE

— fixed rate — EflE 6.36% 5,623,000 16,761,831 o 22384831 19,362,685

— variable rate — FEF= 453% 8188237 17,017,001 2258099 27463337 24,361,504
Notes payable ENZRE

— fixed rate — EflE 4.75% - 4482566 - 4482566 3,900,000
Loan from a fellow subsidiary —BRZHBARER 6% - 202,247 - 202,247 202,247

32,486,269 38,463,645 2,258,099 73,208,013 66,409,339

Financial guarantee issued in respect B HFBAATIRASLE
of credit facilities to associates and ~ FEREEEE 2 BB ER
joint ventures
- maximum amount guaranteed  — B ERE (HizE44)

(note 44) 1,853,932



7.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 &

Financial instruments and financial risk

management (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

RMNEBXEEERAR = —F—

NEFH

BA SRR R

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—ANF1+-_A=1+—HIFE

7. TRMITERMBERBRER(E)

(b)

MEEEEEREBERBEK

(%)

REBESEE(E)
RBEERAMERERE (E)

Weighted
average  On demand or Total
effective less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-5years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
MEFEY RERY KRES
ERFI% PR—F —ZhE RENE MEBE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET Ti#n TEL TR THET
2015 it it
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ kT4 & REAE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 RE MR 13,520,051 - - 13520051 13,520,051
Property rental deposits mERERS 118,266 - - 118,266 118,266
Amount due to the ultimate ER&BERA TR
holding company
— interest-free — &8 22,488 - - 22,488 22,488
Amount due to an intermediate e —BREERARTE
holding company
— Interest-free —TEE 26,859 - - 26,859 26,859
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  JEff R ZH B2 AZUE
— Interest-free — T3 8 2,253,839 - - 2,253,839 2,253,839
— variable rate — B % 7.27 224,022 - - 224,022 214,286
Amounts due to non-controlling  ERIHTE A RIFERRRFHE
shareholders of subsidiaries
— Interest-free — &8 540,273 - - 540,273 540,273
— fixed rate — Bl % 7.12 152,481 - - 152,481 145,982
— variable rate e £ 517 2,289,261 - - 2,289,261 2,217,670
Amounts due to joint ventures ERAEMEHT
— Interest-free — iR 12,450 - - 12,450 12,450
Bank and other borrowings BAIREMEE
— fixed rate — BN 8.13 11,197,523 13,841,580 - 25,039,103 21,607,029
— variable rate — FE)F|% 4.79 7,349,304 23,138,328 764,757 31,252,389 27,736,803
Notes payable eSS
— fixed rate — EEFIE 4.75 - 4,482,566 - 4,482,566 3,900,000
Loan from a fellow subsidiary —HRZHBARER 6.00 - 214,286 - 214,286 214,286
37,706,817 41,676,760 764,757 80,148,334 72,530,282
Financial guarantee issued in respect EEHFHBEARRAELE
of credit facilities to associates FIEREEREZHBER
and joint ventures
— maximum amount HRERE (i)
guaranteed (note 44)

2,780,000

227
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7.

Financial instruments and financial risk
management (Continued)

(c) Fair values

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair

value

The following table presents the fair value of
financial instruments measured at 31st
December, 2016 on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair
Value Measurement”. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

Level 1(highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets for
similar financial instruments, or using
valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market
data

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values
measured using valuation techniques in
which any significant input is not based
on observable market data

e MBHRME
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7. Financial instruments and financial risk
management (Continued)

(c) Fair values (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial instruments carried at fair
value (Continued)

At 31st December, 2016, the Group had
following financial instruments carried at fair
value all of which are based on the level 1 of
the fair value hierarchy:

Assets BE
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
— Listed — kM

During the year ended 31st December, 2016,
there were no significant transfers between
financial instruments in level 1 and level 2.

Fair values of financial instruments
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
were not materially different from their fair
values as at 31st December, 2016 and 2015.

7. T@MIT A

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

K b I (48)

(0 RPEGE)

(i) UAAFEFEZEMIA
(&)
RZE—RFE+=A=+—
B AEBLTE&RT AR
NEEERHEZE—RFTE
ZAFEAR:

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHET

29,472 36,761
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7.

Financial instruments and financial risk
management (Continued)

(c) Fair values (Continued)
(iii) The fair values of financial assets and

financial liabilities are determined as

follows:

The fair values of financial assets with
standard terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted active bid prices and ask
prices respectively; and the fair values of
other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis using prices or rates from
observable current market transactions as
input.

8. Revenue

Sales of properties
Rental income and building management

Revenue represents the aggregate of the net amounts
received and receivable from third parties, net of
business tax payable in the PRC. An analysis of the
Group's revenue for the year is as follows:

WRIHE

service income

Income from hotel operations B E &8I
Sales of goods HEEm
H At

e MBHRME

7. TRTARMBRRER(E)

(0 DFEE)
(i) TREEREMAEGEZD
FEZATHFREE :

ERM AR EGR MR A
RERBRBMEEEZEME
B BERFHEDNEMSZEE
EERHREET MEMSHE
BEREBRBEZIAFEDNR
BARZEBRA - ARTER
ZEHTER S EEEARIE
BT RBERES T MERE °

8. WA

WASBHEHE =77 B W R PR YR IR 58 2 48
FONREN 2FBEERR) - AEREFA
WAZ DT

M WA REFERRBWA

2016 2015
—F-R"% ZFThF
HK$000 HK$'000
T TAT
28,931,153 23,377,815
1,180,330 1,114,910
189,032 198,046
77,951 92,292
201,860 150,304

30,580,326 24,933,367
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Other gains, net

Dividend income
Exchange loss
Government subsidy

Gain on re-measurement of an associate

to acquisition date fair value in
step acquisition (note 52)

Gain on re-measurement of joint ventures

to acquisition date fair value in
step acquisition (note 52)
Interest income from bank

Interest income from loan to an associate

Interest income from loans
to joint ventures

Reversal of impairment loss previously
recognised in respect of
other receivables

Reversal of impairment loss previously
recognised in respect of trade
receivables (note 26)

Reversal of impairment loss previously
recognised in respect of short
term loan receivables (note 27)

Others

9. Hbl

PR B A

b 5 518

BT il B

DEBREBRERE—H
REAZWBEEB A FE
Z Was (FRE52)

DEBBBREFTEAEDLE
ERFERAHz A FEZ WS

bl d
HP%

(Mf3E52)
RITA B HA
ERT—MBMEQAEK 2
F B WA

ERTAEREFTRZMBEWA

1 08 1 30 EL A R U AR SK
EER O RERE

BOIBER I E 5 8RK
B R 2 RERE B (FFE26)

BOoBERERERER
B R RERE (FfFE27)

Hitb

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

22 337
@ FRE

2016 2015
—E-RE —Z—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FAT
57,512 2,732
(458,308) (465,530)
135,924 26,017
21,256 -

- 32,086

130,310 143,623
8,299 1,084
176,721 245,346
3,250 3,216

- 12,133

- 1,019

82,184 55,755
157,148 57,481
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10. Finance costs 10. REE R A

2016 2015
—ET-XFE CZZT—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

Finance costs on interest bearing STEEEREKA
borrowings 3,746,104 4,358,890
Less: amounts capitalised o BAMERIR (2,835,670)  (3,267,167)

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose from
specific borrowings.

The capitalisation rate of borrowings was 5.82% (2015:
6.68%) for the year ended 31st December, 2016.

910,434 1,091,723

FRAENMLZEERNRERERE -

BE-_ZE—XNF+-_A=+—HLEFE"
BEEEREE A582%(ZFE— R4 :
6.68%) ©
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

11. EEE £

RIEFB QN TEN (F622F) F383 15 %
NAI(WEESFEER)BRAI(5F622GE)
WEHNESMSOT

11. Directors’ emoluments

Directors emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and
the Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) are as follows:

Other emoluments

Hit/f &

Retirement

Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits Bonuses contributions emoluments

FER RIKER
e Hitp @R A B L3 BMe
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT

2016 —E-RE

Wang Xu T8 - 2,467 306 18 2,791
Xue Ming =8 - 1,048 - 18 1,066
Han Qingtao CEyEbE - 3,199 667 18 3,884
YE Liwen = | - 2,807 574 18 3,399
Zhu Weirong SRR - 1,231 574 8 1,813
Choy Shu Kwan 29| 260 - - - 260
Ip Chun Chung, Robert = #x 8 240 - - - 240
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia ~ 225%%5 260 - - - 260
Wong Ka Lun BERMW 260 - - - 260
Total aer 1,020 10,752 2,121 80 13,973




234

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 424 B i& SRR iz

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

11. Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

11. EEME (B)

Other emoluments

Hih B &

Retirement

Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits Bonuses contributions emoluments

ek RINER
we  HiEd AL FTEIER “ame
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

2015 —T-hF

Wang Xu By - 1,237 - 18 1,255
Xue Ming AR - 1,218 - 18 1,236
Han Qingtao BE= - 3,323 - 18 3,341
YE Liwen 2R - 2,771 - 18 2,789
Choy Shu Kwan 2k 220 - - - 220
Ip Chun Chung, Robert IR A 220 - - - 220
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia RIS 240 - - - 240
Wong Ka Lun =R 240 - - - 240
Total A&t 920 8,549 - 72 9,541

In each of the two years ended 31st December, 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors, as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors
has waived any emoluments during each of the two
years ended 31st December, 2016 and 2015.

WRE-E—XE+=A=+—A1FE
TEEF  ARBERATTEELAH
S (EREE B T EBA KB 2 R
HEWHE  REE=T—AFR-F
—AFT=A=t—BIEREFEEE
BRE B AR AN -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

12. Five highest paid individuals 12. AfumEHFMA L
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in NEBANESHMALTH @ 8FEAAF]
the Group, three (2015: four) were directors of the “(ZE—RF W) ES(HeH
Company whose emoluments are included in the R EXHFETT) o 2 TR (ZZE—RF :
disclosure in note 11 above. The emoluments of the —L)EEEHMALT 2B T ¢
remaining two (2015: one) highest paid individuals are
as follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAETT
Salaries and other benefits e hEAEF 5,379 2,849
Bonuses 1E4T 2,478 -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R {K1& K524t 2k 239 18
8,096 2,867
The emoluments of the remaining two (2015: one) BRTIMM(ZE—RE : — ) BaH5MA
highest paid individuals were within the following TN FIATAER :
bands:
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—1F
Number of Number of
employee employee
EEAH BEAH
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 # 7T Z 3,000,000 745 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T ZE 4,000,000 75 7T 1 -

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 /& JTZE 4,500,000 78 7T 1 -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

13. Profit (loss) before income tax expense 13. BRATEHE XA ER (EE)

Profit (loss) before income tax expense is arrived at after Br FT/S 8B X Bilm Al (B548 ) B #0 Bk (51
charging (crediting): A)
2016 2015
ZE-XFE —T-0F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Staff costs BTAHA
— directors’ emoluments (note 11) — EZEMe (FIsE11) 13,973 9,541
— other staff costs — Hih 8 TR A 894,726 910,482
— other staff’s retirement benefit — Hh 8 TRIKEFETE
scheme contributions H 132,099 137,787

1,040,798 1,057,810

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments #5781 & 7E

(included in administrative expenses) (FFATTHRX ZA) 10,636 11,156
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - RE REETE

equipment 127,905 139,779
Total depreciation and amortisation W& M iHEER 138,541 150,935
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETEN &

— audit fee — Tt & 7,100 6,600

— out of pocket expenses —RKBEH 854 861
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses &R A L 2 FERHA 24,670,727 21,115,381
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading HEFRIEEERE 2 W

investments - (309)
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries FRENIN B A R 2 1R 110 -
Loss on disposal of investment properties &R E Y 2 EE 10,245 8,823
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BERREZEE

plant and equipment 4,333 57,403
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 19) B8 RERE (FEE19) 281,331 26,281
Impairment loss on other receivables JE W LAt BR TR 2 B 5 18 86,458 20,807
Impairment loss on property, ME - WEREEZBEEE

plant and equipment (note 17) (MtEE17) 783 2,452
Operating lease rentals in respect of ATBRBEZKREHERS

— rented premises — HEW=E 36,374 38,353
Property rental income and building MEMEE WA RBEFEIRRG

management service income, WA (HBrEERAY

net of direct expenses of 567,207,000 JT

HK$567,207,000 (ZF—HF : 563,623,000

(2015: HK$563,623,000) BIL)) (613,123) (551,287)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

14. Income tax expense

The charge comprises: FxX B8 :
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBNFH
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR PG
PRC Withholding Income Tax hE RS
LAT T ER
Deferred taxation RIER IR

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2015:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
there is no assessable profit for both years.

The PRC Statutory Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at
25% based on the estimated assessable profit for the
year.

The PRC Withholding Income Tax of 10% has been
levied on gain arising on dividend income from a fellow
subsidiary.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 41.

Certain PRC subsidiaries are also subject to the PRC LAT
which is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of properties, being the
proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditure including costs of land use rights and
development and construction.

14. FRIE8HAX

2016 2015
—E—XRE Z—ZE—TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHBT FET

i 1,017,635 555,333
i) 5,751 -
1,023,386 555,333

947,352 880,579

41,311 100,537

2,012,049 1,536,449

EBFNER A EE (Gt ERBOR Fli%
BE16.5%(=ZZF—1E : 16.5%) 51 H&
AAMEFEYERERTEHN - MW B

BENEVELERE

REDEE B EMBRIRIBEAFEMEFE

ARBURAHZIR K 25% 515 -

BRZRZNBABFEREWAZWRE %
TR 10% B R TR FT S ©

BB IAZ ISR EE41

EHTHEMNEARIMASRZ D E L g E
B BB EFHER D (B L&Y
SRR AT R - BRI ER
RERK S A B i 85 R EE PR ) B F 30%

£ 60% 2 RAEFREEUL -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

14. FiS BB (/8)

FAMGEHRAXEGSBRERT ZBRAF
BiFA s AE A (B 1R ) IR T

14. Income tax expense (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the profit (loss) before income tax expense in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss as follow:

2016 2015
—B-XF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET

Profit (loss) before income tax expense B P45 35 A 2 Al ) (FE548) 2,233,221 (1,235,842)
Tax at PRC statutory tax rate of 25% R BAER R 25%1E

(2015: 25%) HMBE(ZZE—HF : 25%) 558,305 (308,961)
Tax effect of share of results of associates B A &) 24 7 TG £ 3,882 3,209
Tax effect of share of results of joint DB EEE I HETE

ventures 7,632 (8,391)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for A {EFREBHIR 2 S 2

tax purpose k7 303,123 524,790
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax AR Z WA Z T f5 s 22

purpose (45,998) (33,225)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERIEEEB Z RS E 542,419 691,645
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses A 2RI RERNIBEE 2

previously not recognised W& (116,782) (45,151)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 7> E {th 5]A#E % 4& & 2 [ff B A &)

operating in other jurisdictions Z TR =R 7 = 28 130,913 90,713
Effect of LAT + i IRE R 2 B (236,838) (220,145)
LAT IR ER 947,352 880,579
PRC Withholding Income Tax P EIEIATEH 5,751 -
Others EHih (87,710) (38,614)
Income tax expense FTiSHiFA 2,012,049 1,536,449
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15. Earnings (loss) per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss)
per share for the year is based on the following data:

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NFT_A=+—HIFEF

15. BREF (F8)

FASRERNLEERN (BR) IRET
SIBIEAE ¢

2016 2015
—E-RE “Z-1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Earnings (loss): B (B1R) :
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to RAREAR NEEEREN (BE)
owners of the Company 80,745 (2,817,149)
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-1F

Number of shares: fRinEg

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic earnings (loss) per share
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares on
share options

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of diluted earnings (loss) per share

The weighted average number of shares has been
adjusted for the shares issued during the year ended 31st
December, 2015 as set out in note 37.

The diluted earnings (loss) per share for the year ended
31st December, 2016 and 2015 are the same as basic
earnings (loss) per share presented as there was no
material dilutive effect from the assumed exercise of the
share options on the profit (loss) attributable to owners of
the Company.

AEEREREMN(BE) 2
ERBEF O
BB R EBR ERBEYE

SEEREEAN (BR) 2
ERBET O

3,661,537,046  3,661,467,799

- 57,571

3,661,537,046  3,661,525,370

K37 FAE - RBE-—T—AF+=
A=1+—BLEFE  ROMEFHHZ
FADHITROELAE

MR BRRITEBRES AR T%ﬁ)\ﬁifﬁ
/m?'J(EEﬁE)j[ﬂij( PER R WEE
T—RERZTE—ARF+ZA=1— EIJJ:
FE Hx?%ﬁ%?ﬂﬂ()@ﬂé!)iﬁiﬁﬁz W2
PREAR A (B1E) MR -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

16. REYE

16. Investment properties

Level 3 fair value measurement F=RANFEF=
At beginning of the year F4
Additions NE

Acquisition of subsidiaries
Transfer from property,
plant and equipment

Transfer from properties held for sale HERBIELEME
Change in fair value RNEEES
Disposals HE
Exchange adjustments BEE 3 5 2

At end of the year FR

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at
31st December, 2016 and 2015 were arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on that date by AA
Property Services Limited, an independent professional
surveyor and property valuer not connected with the
Group. AA Property Services Limited is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation
were determined either on the basis of capitalisation of
rental income derived from existing tenancies or by
reference to comparable sales transactions as available
in the relevant market. The Group’s property manager
and the chief financial officer have discussions with the
valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results twice a year when the valuation is performed for
interim and annual financial reporting.

Yo B B B 2 =)
BEME - BB MEE

2016 2015
—E-XFE —ZET-TEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
11,095,284 10,053,392
737 779

- 39,048

- 33,443

- 1,054,865

116 654,745
(65,339) (126,828)
(624,013) (614,160)
10,406,785 11,095,284

AEBBREMENR_T—RFR-ZF—1
F+ZA=+—HZAVHEDNKBEIEX
REMRYEXEEMRTYEBEREBRA
A(EANEEMERE)RZANGEE
E e REMEBRERARTIEERER
BeZKE  AAGEERKIHYHER
o2 FAREL Y BT EZ 85 - %fh
BNERERAHECHERAZERE
ARG E2ENEAMBAGIAELR
HEXHMETE - AEEMEEEANE
BB EEREF MR GEREGEM
wEERRMEESER  WME25ITH R
FEHFBRSE °
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16. Investment properties (Continued)

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
measured at the end of the reporting period is
categorised as level 3 of fair value hierarchy as defined

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

16. REYE ()

AEBEMERBELHERBARDNES
KFEARRERE 2 FED BB
FHERAFE - XD BAIRIIEREYE

RBERRFTEZARBREN R Z AT
BRI BREBREEMEHRELERE13
AEEN A TESEHNESE =R -

in HKFRS 13.
The carrying value of investment properties comprises: WEYE 7 REERE
2016 2015
—E-AE —T0F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Properties held under E 5T AT ARFE
p&/ES
— long-term leases in Hong Kong —REBEBZRHELD 195,000 195,000
— medium-term land use rights in — PO B2 A A L fE PR A

the PRC

10,211,785 10,900,284

10,406,785 11,095,284




POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 424 B i& SRR iz

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

16. Investment properties (Continued) 16. IREWE (&)
Information about level 3 fair value EBRE="MAFEIEZER
measurements
Fair value as at Relationship
31st December,  Valuation Significant Range or of unohservable
2016  techniques * unobservable inputs weighted average inputs to fair value
R=B-XE
tZA=+-H EXTTEER FUBRGARESR
MAYE feER BARE GEIMEYS AVENBE
HK$'000
TAL
Completed properties 195,000  Direct comparison  Transaction price HK$19,000  The higher the transaction
in Hong Kong BENE (HK$/square feet) (2015: HK$19,000) price, the higher the fair
REBNRIMR R 5B 1900087 value
(BL/THR)  (ZB-LF:1900087) R5ERES ATEER
Completed properties 4,825,331 Direct comparison  Transaction price RMB3,600-RMB45,800  The higher the transaction
in PRC ERUR (RMB/square metre) (2015: RMB3,600- price, the higher the fair
INRERE T 5B’ RMB45,700)  value
(ARETL/FHK) AR%3600TE RAHERHR  ATEES
AR 45,8007
(ZF-1%:
ARE3,600LE
AR#45,7007T)
Completed properties 5,386,454  Income approach  Capitalisation rate 24%1035%  The higher the capitalisation
in PRC WA B = (2015:1.4%t0 25%)  rate, the lower the fair
RPENRTHZ 24%%£35%  value
(CT-HF: 14%E25%) ERLLEES
RFEHE
10,406,785
2 Fair value of completed properties is generally derived using 2 ETIYMENRAFE-—REAEELEES
the direct comparison approach unless reliable market H(RAMIESRESEEREMEBRS A EMEE
information is not available for certain properties due to their BB TYERBRIN) o

locations or specialised function uses.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is BEYEZ N FERAETINGFEERRA
recognised in the line item “increase in fair value of [REYEEZ ANFEEI] BB ER -

investment properties” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during the RERNE =R FEAE AL o
year.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

17. Property, plant and equipment 17. )% - BMERRE
Furniture, Plant
Hotel  Leasehold fixtures and Motor and  Construction
properties land  Buildings equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
B %8

BEpE  AELH B  REA A ERRME RRIRE GEl
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
TEr TR TEr  TEr  TEr AL TEn  TEn

Cost or valuation: HARREE !

At1stanuary, 2015 R-B-RE-F-B 118012 11530 7734 D638 175437 238280 20359 2740557
Additions RE - - 33,428 9,718 4433 7,341 25,680 80,600
Transfer fiyd - - - 7,988 - - (7,988) -
Transfer from properties held ~ EHFH{EHENZ

for sale - - 276,047 - - - - 276,047
Disposals e - - (3208 (13979 (3,656) (142 3455 (75,720
Acquisition of subsidiaries YRR 2 ] (Bt 52)

(note 52) - - - 3,532 5,950 - - 9,462
Transfer to investment properties  EE|H A% - - (11,577) - - - (23,085) (34,662)
Increase in fair value upon transfer EZ A RAATE

to investment properties M2 EYRR

recognised in statement of )

comprehensive income - - 7,859 - - - - 7,859
Surplus arising on revaluation ~ Efi % 46,927 - - - - - - 46,927
Elimination of accumulated HEZHITE

depreciation (46,927) - - - - - - 46,927)
Exchange adjustments & 5 % (70,245) - (44311) (13,541) (9,945) (14,184) (1,332) (153,558)

At31st December, 2015and ~ R=ZF-T%
Tst January, 2016 tZA=t-8k
ZE-x5-F-H 1,109,881 115,230 980,972 230,100 172,219 230,024 12179 2,850,605

Additions 5E . - S Y 4,656 1,771 2013 39261
Transfer i - - - 9,322 - 1,507 (10,829) -
Transfer from properties under ~ EEERTF

development - - 174,379 - - - - 174,379
Disposals e - - (4,363) (3,8684) (3,481) (28) (2,123) (13,879)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—HHEAR

(note 52) (MtzE52) - - - 570 4 - - 574
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 53)  (H EHIB AR (HfzE53) - - - (340) - - - (340)
Deficitarising on revaluation ~ EfEEE (71,323) - - - - - - (71,323)
Elimination of accumulated HEETE

depreciation (44,745) - - - - - - (44,745)
Exchange adjustments R A% (62,353) - (54,523) (12,415) (9,085) (12,922) (635)  (151,933)
At 315t December, 2016 RZB-KE

T=B=1—H 931,460 115,230 1,096,465 254,174 164,313 220,352 605 2,782,599

Comprising: piE:
At cost R - 115,230 1,096,465 254,174 164,313 220,352 605 1,851,139
At valuation - 2016 f&ltfE

S B 931,460 - - - - - - 931460
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17. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Accumulated depreciation:

At st January, 2015
Charge for the year
Impairment loss
Disposals
Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 52)
Transfer to investment properties
Elimination on revaluation
Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2015 and
Tst January, 2016

Charge for the year
Impairment loss
Disposals
Acquisition of a subsidiary
(note 52)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 53)

Elimination on revaluation
Exchange adjustments

At 315t December, 2016

Carrying value:
At 315t December, 2016

At31st December, 2015

iR

R=Z-1%-f-H
EER

HEFE

i

WM (HFEs2)

gRanx
BfaRiH
[EStBE

R-B-1f
+ZB=t-8Ek
“E-RE-f-H

MR
HEEE
e
E-RHBAA
(FzE52)
HE-EHBAR
(FizE53)
R
Ef%

VPN

Ay =]

PR ER AR MY RE

17. Y% - BERRE (B)

Furniture, Plant
Hotel  Leasehold fixtures and Motor and  Construction
properties land  Buildings equipment  vehicles  machinery in progress Total
B 28
EENE  HELH B¥ ET RE HEREE EEIE Rt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEL T AL Tin TAL Tan AL AL
- 41,384 209,643 130,39 98,644 210,526 - 690,793
48,072 2,305 35373 28,320 20,400 5,309 - 139,779
- - - - - 2452 - 2452
. . 6243 787 Q%0 (1346) - 8316
- - - 2,290 3,852 - - 6,142
- - (1,219 - - - - (1,219
(46,927) - - - - - - (46,927)
(1,145) - (12,702) (8,027) (6,037) (12,658) - (40,569)
S3689 24852 145152 114159 204283 N YRES
45,773 2,305 31,883 25,816 17,564 4,564 - 127,905
- - - - - 783 - 783
- - (3,620) (3,383) (2,512) (25) - (9,546)
- - - 246 1 - - 247
- - - (196) - - - (196)
(44,745) . . . - . - ()
(1,028) - (12,733) (8,280) (6,376) (11,579) - (39,996)
S B9 M036 159355 1283 198,026 - 66587
931,460 09,236 856,089 94,819 41477 22,326 605 2,016,012
1,109,881 71,541 756,120 84,948 58,060 25,741 12179 2,118,470
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

17. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 17. ¥1% - BERRE (&)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are i - R MEREIE B R E AT
depreciated using the straight-line basis at the following E BEEFERQOT :

rates per annum:

Hotel properties 2% BRI 2%
Leasehold land over the lease term FHE T 15 49 F B
Buildings 2%-18% BF 2%-18%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment  20% R4~ BB NGRS 20%
Motor vehicles 20% E 20%
Plant and machinery 5%-23% 5= K i 25 5%-23%
2016 2015
—EBE-RE ZE—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET

The carrying value of hotel properties, ETFHA AT R FFZ
leasehold land and buildings located at:  JE[E¥% - E i RiEF

ZBREE :
— long-term leases in Hong Kong — REBZRHELY 86,242 89,113
— medium-term land use rights in the ~ — FAFRE 2 fr HA £ 3th {F F
PRC 1,770,543 1,848,429

1,856,785 1,937,542
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

17. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 17. ¥)% - BER&RE ()

The fair value of the Group’s hotel properties at 31st
December, 2016 was arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that date by AA Property
Services Limited, an independent professional surveyor
and property valuer not connected with the Group. AA
Property Services Limited is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation were
determined by either discounting the construction cost
or arrived at by the income approach, whereby the
income derived from the hotel operations with regard to
past trading accounts are capitalised at an appropriate
rate of return to arrive at the value of the property
interests with due allowance for outgoings and expenses.
The Group’s property manager and the chief financial
officer have discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results twice a year when the
valuation is performed for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair value of the Group’s hotel properties measured
at the end of the reporting period is categorised as level
3 of fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13.

AEBBENWER-_ZT—RF+_H
=t —HZAHERBLEFAERMFD
EEEMRTYEEREGRAR (HAE
B EREE) MR B ZAEEE - RTY
EEHRARRBDNEBHNEMES 2K
8 BRAREERNMIHHEHEE 2F
BAMEETHEZER - ZEEDER
PrIREEM AR RARAEZEE - BHRE
BEHRERGBERHRE CE2BE XK
WABZRE - AEHMEERZEE > A
SRR R EREEE BE - AKEY
XEBEANMBEMBECREFMAMGAE
B ER T A ERRREESER - X
B2 P AR FERBRE -

RBERRFEZAEBBENE L AT
BN BRBREEMERELERE13
SATEEMN A ESREIEE =/
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

Information about level 3 fair value

17. Y% - BERRE (B)

FRE=RAFEFAEZEH

measurements
Fair value as at Range or
31st December, Significant weighted  Relationship of unobservable
2016 Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs average  inputs to fair value
R-B-RE
tZB=+-A EXFTEE gEx FUREAARER
WAYE fHERHE BARE nETs  AVENEE
HK$'000
TEL
Hotel properties in Beijing, PRC 359,550 Income approach Capitalisation rate 5%-11%  The higher the capitalisation rate,
R REEENE LN AR % (2015:5%-8%)  the lower the fair value
WEN%  BALLEER ATEEE
(ZF-1% :5%E8%)
Estimated profits from RMB6,700  The higher the estimated profits
operations (2015:RMB6,300) ~ the higher the fair value
(RMB/square metre) ARB6700T  HhEHEMER - ATESS
SEGHEN (Z%2-1f:
(ARRT/FhK) ARH630070)
Hotel properties in Wuhan and 571,910 Cost approach Adjustment to construction 10%-20%  The higher the discount rate,
Guiyang, PRC P cost (Discount rate on (2015:10%-20%)  the lower the fair value
RAERERRRNEENE building cost 10%220% HREES  ATEEE
RENAHE (ZE-TF  10%E20%)
(BTHAREE)
Construction cost per RMB4,700  The higher the construction cost,
square meter -RMB9,700  the higher the fair value
SEARRERA (015:RMB4700  EERAER - ATESR
- RMB9,700)
ARE4700TE
AR%9,7007C
(ZZ-1%:
ARE4700TE
ABH9,7007T)
931,460

Surplus on revaluation and exchange adjustment of
properties held for own use are recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
“Surplus arising on revaluation of properties”.

There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during the

year.

FEARYE CEE AR NIE L BRI
FAETHWERZ [MEEMAR ] HER -

RERFE=RWBEMEARES -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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18.

19.

Prepaid lease payments

The Group’s prepaid lease payments
comprise:
— medium-term land use rights in the
PRC

The Group’s prepaid lease payments
comprise:
— current asset
— non-current asset

Goodwill

Cost:

Accumulated impairment losses:
At Tst January
Impairment loss for the year

At 31st December

Carrying amount:
At 31st December

18. AAMHEERE

2016 2015
—F-R"% ZT-HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T T
AEBZENEERIBRE
— PAFR B 2 AP B At {5 R
326,640 357,099
NEE ZFANHAEFRIBERIE
— RBEE 10,397 10,927
— ERBEE 316,243 346,172
326,640 357,099
19. &
2016 2015
—E-RfE —ZE—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHIT
D& NE 816,630 816,630
ZEHREEE
R—H—H 535,299 509,018
FAREEE 281,331 26,281
Rt+t-—A=+—8H 816,630 535,299
BRM{E :
R+=—A=+—8~ - 281,331

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be

deductible for income tax purpose.

TR M O MR R R B BT -
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19. Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units

containing goodwill

Goodwill of HK$NIil as at 31st December, 2016 (2015:
HK$281,331,000) acquired through business
combination has been allocated to certain cash-
generating units within the property development
segment. Goodwill is tested for impairment by the
management by estimating the recoverable amount of
these cash-generating units based on value in use
calculations. These calculations use cash flow projection
for the specific property development project based on
the financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 4.4%.

Key assumptions used in the value in use
calculations

The following describes the key assumptions on which
management has based its cash flow projects to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Revenue from the property
development project

WMERERER ZWA

Cost of construction

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

19. & (&)

SERECREELENZREE
B

R-ZB—XE+-_F=+—0 BR%E®
EHEHNRESEL(ZE—RF:
281,331,000 7T) EL B MEZEE S
NG TREELSEN - EREREER
BEFE LA GTHSERSEEEMNATK
EEENETRHERBENR - Z5E R
ERNFEH UCDEEEEBH EZMKEEZ
RER  ARETEYWEEREBERERE
HR - RBEeREENMBZABREXRRE
4.4% °

AT REAEERAEAZER
(EE

AT AR EETEERERRE - 3t
RERERAMKEZ EEBMR

The selling price is estimated by management by reference to the average
selling price of a similar property in the relevant locations

BEE2EREMREEUNE 2 FHEERZEE

The cost of construction is estimated by the engineering department based

on the projected cost to completion of the project

RS AR T2EMRIBIA B 55 T 2 TR AN 5T 2 EERN AR

As at 31st December, 2016, due to decline in expected
revenue from the relevant project companies, the
recoverable amounts of these project companies as
separate cash-generating units are estimated to be lower
than their carrying amounts and an impairment loss of
HK$281,331,000 (2015: HK$26,281,000) was
recognised for these project companies in 2016.

RZZE—RE+ZA=+—H BREH
5B AR TEEMA T - TERfILETEH
AR (ERERIR S EEEM) AT E €
FONEREME R NEREE
B R EHERREEE281,331,0008L(=
T—FhEF :26,281,000/87T) °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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20. Interests in associates

Cost of unlisted investments in associates R Ef <A 7] 2 3E_E IR &K AN
DRUREE1L BB &

Share of post-acquisition losses and
IR B AR B
L

reserves, net of dividends received
Goodwill

JE Y B 2 A B FUA ¢
— TEtE
— BEEF=E 8%
— BEEFZE8.9%

Amounts due from associates:
— Interest-free
— Fixed rate of 8%
— Fixed rate of 8.9%

The amounts are unsecured and repayable on demand
or within one year.

2016 2015
—E-XFE CZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FAT
271,422 304,888
(26,578) (29,385)
1,473 1,561
246,317 277,064
2016 2015
—E-XE —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FAT

- 359

37,078 48,214

- 281,052

37,078 329,625

BRFBRGRERR  BARZREEX
R—FREE -
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20. Interests in associates (Continued)

Details of the Group’s principal associates as at 31st

December are as follows:

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

20. REtENT 2= ()

AEBRT - A=1T—HZIBHEQA
ZEEWE

Proportion of ownership

interest by the Group
AEEEEEELLA
Place of establishment
Name of associates and business 2016 2015 Principal activities
BENTER R/ EEH ZB-AF “B-0F FERH
BNREFHERERRERAR  PRC - () 49% Property development
(TEMEE]) FE MEZR
HETIPEHEREERLHE PRC 30% 30% Property development
(MBEEMLEHE]) FE MEZR

The above table lists the associates of the Group which
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Note:

(i)  The Group previously held 49% equity interest in EJ{RE
in 2015. The Group acquired additional 36% equity interest
of EJN{RZE in 2016 and thus accounted for as a subsidiary
of the Group. For details, please refer to note 52.

EERR - FRIIMAEE Y EERE
EABAYEY AEEREAT  WRA
Y5 HL AL A2 BRI EARTI  § S
ERBRIE -

GE

(i) AEER-_Z-AFHFEMRE49% K
Tz - —T—RF - AKBEREIINEE
INERE 36% A - B AR EED
MEBAR - FIEF2HMEES2 -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016
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20. Interests in associates (Continued)

Summarised financial information of

material associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group'’s material associate is set out below:

MENDEHE

As at 31st December

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Included in the above amounts are:
Cash and cash equivalents

Current financial liabilities

(excluding trade and other payable)

Non-current financial liabilities
(excluding other payable)

Year ended 31st December

Revenue

Net loss and total comprehensive income

Included in the above amounts are:
Depreciation and amortisation

Interest income
Interest expense

Income tax expense

m :

Rt+t=A=+—H
MEEE
FRBEE
mEBRE
FERBEE

EFA LB IEE A -
HeRERARS

nHETMEE(TERES
K B e 50R)

FRBERAME(TEEEM
FEfFRIR)

BE+t-A=1T—-HLFE
WA
EIRFR L e E R A

FALRFRHA 73 -

FEHA
MERX

PS MR X

20. REAE N T 2% (BB)
BERBENTMEEREE

AEBSEABEARNTBEERBTEET

2016 2015
ZE-RE —ZE—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHEIT
1,597,360 1,442,008
4,830 4,277
(280,424) (289,846)
(505,618) (238,095)
134,123 94,302
(141,353) (162,446)
(505,618) (238,095)
(51,767) (12,551)
(140) (147)

- 38

(30,789) -
(934) (1,163)




RIEXEEERAA = —Z2-RFFRH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 BT 8 R &R iz

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
HE—T—NF+_A=+—HIFE

20. Interests in associates (Continued) 20. ABtE NTl 2= (B)
Summarised financial informa